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He told, that when he was a young Man,-he
had taken a great many Liberties. |

Mr, Serj. Pengelly, My Lord, we humbly ap-
prehend, this Evidence is not proper to be gsiven :
If they have any particular Queftions to afk of my
Lord, let the Counfel propofe them, or afk my
Lord Nurthand Grey to the Character of Mr. Lynch
in general ¢ But thus to give an Account (by way
of Repetition of, a Difcourfe between Lord North
and Grey and Mr. Lynch) where he was born, and
where he was bred up, and to give a Hiftory of par-
ticular Fadls, iswhat they oughtnot todo,

Lord North and Grey. 1 am glad to be in-
terrupted by that worthy Gentleman, 1 only de-
fire to know to what Points you would be pleafed
to afk me, |

L.C. Juf. Mr. Hungerford, you linow what
the Rule of Pra&ice and Evidence 15, when pb-
jeCtions are made to the Credit nnq ReEutntlon
of the Witnefs ; you can’t charge him with par-
ticular Offences: For if that were to be allowed,
it would be impoffible for 2 Man to defend him.-
felf. You are not to cxamine to the particular
Falts to charge the Reputation of any Witnefs ;
but only 1 general you are to afk what his Cha-
racter and Reputation is, '

Mr. Hungerford. My Lord North and Grey is
an entire Stranger to him; but he was only go-
g to tell you what Account Lynch gave of him-
felf.

L. C. Jup. That is very well. Confider, if
that 15 not the fame as if you were to charge him
with particular Falts, You fay, he himfelf, when
he was with that noble Lord at his Houfe, gave a
Character of himfelf much to his Difadvantage.
It is impoffible for him in fuch a Cafe to give an
Aniwer to it 5 thercfore by the Rule of Evidence
vou cannot do it,

Mr, Reselbey, If that noble Lord was eoing
to giveany Character of him which he heard from
other Perfons it might alter the Cafe.  But furely
when the Character he gives of him is grounded
upon what he {aid of lumfelf, is not that much
ftronger than the Hearfay of others, the Talk of
Strangers ¢ The Character he had of this Perlon
is from himielfy therefore we hope he fhall give it
in Ividence.

Mr. Hungerford. It they won’t let this noble
Lord enter into a Relation of what Character this
Lynch gave of himfelf, we cannot help it.

L. C. Juff. You know, if there be any Objedti-
ons to him, to Ius general Charaéter, he can anf-
wer them @ But if ObjeCtions are grounded on
particular Charges of his being a bafe, an infamous
and an ill Man, not having any Notice of this, it
15 impoffible for him to defend himfelf,

It you will afk my Lord North and Grey what
gencral Character he gave of himfelf, you may.

Mr, Hungerford. 1t my Brief be true, the whole
ten Commandments have been broken by him.

L. C. Fuft. Very well; and fo you charge him
with the Breach of the ten Commandments, and
he muft let 1t go for Fadt, becaufe he cannot have
an Opportunity of defending himfelf,

Mr. Keteloey. " What Charaéter in general did
he give of himfelf to your Lordfhip?

Lord Nerth and Grey. I don’t know how to
anfwer it, as to his giving a general Charalter of
himfelf. " Thus much I mutt fay, I faw him twice.
The ficft time he was brought down by the Gentle-
man at the Bar; the fecond time he came, he was il
recetved ; and I ordered it thould be told him, that

in cafe he defigned to -ftay there, that I had ne
Room or any Lodging for him. As to particy-
far Things, I don’t care to fpeak of them. I thoyld
be very forry to fay it when it was faid in my
Company, and under my Roof,

Mr. Hungerford.  'We will not prefs it any
farther.

Lord North and Grey. 1 muft beg your ord.
thip’s leave, if the Gentlemen have no farther 1o
fay to me, and your Lordfhip have no farther
Commands, that I may return to my Prifon.

Mr. Hungerford. 1 hope they will make way
for my Lord North and Grey through the Crowd -
And, 1f your Lordfhip pleafes, we will go on with
our Evidence,

George Taltot, fworn.

Mr, Hungerford. Pray give my Lord and the

Jury an Account of what you know of Mr.

Lyneh. Mr. Stephen Lynch, what Character
hath he ?
Talbot. Why Sir, the Chara&ter I know of

him 1s this, that he is a Man that hath been o ex-
travagant, that he hath brought himfelf to Necefity
by 1t ; kept very infamous Company.

Mr. Hungerford. What Charafter hath he 2
Hath he the Chara&er of an honeft Man ?

Talbot, He hath a very indiffcrent Sort of a
Charaéter.

Mr. Hungerferd.  Hath he got a good or a bad
Character ?

Talbot. 'The Chara®er I can hear of him is a
very bad Charater.

Mr. Ketelley. We don’t afk you as 1o the
Particulars of his Life and Converfation, but
only the General Charatter he hath, and the O.
pinion the World hath of him ; whether he hatly
the Character of an honeft Mun, and s 2 Perfon
fit to be believed ?

Jalbot, The Chara®er I have had of him, is,
That he is not to be believed.

Mr. 4. Gen, How long have you known
him ?

Talbot. 1 have not feen him thefe fix Years.

Mr. At Geir. What is your Employment ?

Talbot. I am not able to follow any thing
now,

Mr. Ait. Gen.  He fays he hath not feen him
thefe fix Years: How long ago was your Ac-
quaintance with him ?

Talbot. 1 met him ar the Canaries, when 1 was
coming from thence, which is about fix Years
ag0 3 L know nothing of him fince, but what i
have heard of him.

Mr. At Gen. Have you ever had any Dealings
with him? *

Talbot. 1 never had much Dealings with him,

what I have had have been very little to my
Advantage,

Mr. Ketelbey, 1€ Mr. Attorney defires the Par-
ticulars——— '

Mr. Hungerford. We conform ourfelves to your
Lordfhip’s Rule, to afk only to the general Cha-
ratter of the Man : But if Mr. AAttorney will enter
nto Particulars, we will join Iffue with him, and
2o into that Method too.

Mr. At. Gen. 1 afked him how long he had
known him, he fays he had not feen him thefe
fix Years,

Mr. Ketelbey. Have you had a Character of him?

Zalbot, The worlt I could ever hear of any
Perfon 3 T know nothing of my felf, but what I
have heard from others,

Mr, Winchmay,



I 722- Bn R-'

Mr. Winchman fworn.

 Hungerford. Pray give my Lord and the
]ulr;{ran Eccufunt of what you know of this

Stephen. Lynch ¢

Winchman, 1 knew this Gentleman fourteen
Years ago, in the Ifland of the Canaries, there he

- an Jrifb Gentleman Company, one #/lfon ;
]}f:[ivas thenﬂ well-belov’d by every Body: The
Gentleman took him into his Company, and af-
serwards he grew extravagant, and the Gentleman

turn’d him out of his Company.
l]rl;.lflr. Hungerford. Is he accounted an honeft Man

or a Knave?
Winchinan.
Thing _
Mr. Hungerford. You fay you won’t truft him
for any Thing ?
Winchman. No.
Mr. Hungerford, ‘The wifer you,
M. Ketelbey. Is he a Man to be credited ? can

you believe what he fays ? | _
Winehman. 1 think I would not believe him.

Mr, Ketelbey.  You are right.
Faues Darcy iworn.

My, Ketelbey. How long have you known Mr.
Stephen Lynch ¢

Darcy. About a Twelve-month. ‘

Mr., Ketelbey, 1 dont alk you as to his parti-
cular Life and Converfation, but in general what
is his Charatter, 15 he 2 Man to be believed or
credired ?

Darey, Idon’t talke 1t that he s,

Mr. A1, Gen. Where did you know him ?

Darcy, 1 firlt knew him laft Winter in Lon-
doit ?

Mr. Huugerford. Is Mr. George Fitzgerald there?
My Lord, here is a Complaint made that the
‘Witneffes can’t be let in,

L. C. Fuff. They muft be let in.

Mr. Soll. Ger. Who made the Complaint ?

Mr. Hungerford. A Gentleman here in Court.

Mr. So/l. Gen, Itis the Bufinefs of your Sol-
hators to take care that way be made for your
Witneffes.

Mr. Hungerford, It is not the Bufines of your
Witnefles to ftop the Paflage.

Mr. Soll. Gen. They don’t {top the Paffage,

Mr. Husgerford. Nos what is your bufy Co-
lonel there [pointing to Col. Huske] a doing?

Mr. Seiy. Chefbire. We mutt ftay here half an
Hour for every Witnefs,

Mr. Fitzgerald did not appear, then Mr.
Fobi Blake was fworn.

Mr. Hungerford. Mr. Blake, do you know
Sitephenr Lynch ?

Blak:, Yes, Sir.

Mr. Huagerford.  Pray give my Lord and the
Jury an Account of him, whether he isa Perion to
be believ’d or not.

Blake. I heard a very ill Charaer of him a-
bout fix Years ago. I have heard that he married
two Wives,

- Mr. Hungerford. Is he to be believed or no ?

Blake. T know nothing but by hearfay, I believe
he is not to be believed, becaufe I have heard fuch
a bale Charaéer of him.

Collins {fworn.
Mr. Husgerford. Will you give my Lord and

the Jury an Account of what you know of Stephen
Lynch.

Collins. Sir I never exchanged a Word with

him,
Yoir. VI

I will not trult him for any
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Mr. Huigerford, What Charaéter hath he ?
Collins.* A very infamous Charalter. I know
him by Eye-fight only, I have feen him upon the
Exchange of London.
Prifoner. Is he a Perfon to be credited or not ?
Collins. No, I believe not,
Mr. Freunch fworn.

Mr. Hungerford. Do you know Stephen Lynch?

French. 1 know him by Eye-fight.

Mr. Hungerford.  What Character hath he? is
he a Perfon to be believ’d unon his Oath ?

Freneh, 1 don’t think he is.

Mr, Hungerford. How long have you known
him ?

Freich, Six or eight Months.

Mr. Kelly and Mr, Blake {worn,

Mr. Ketelbgy, Mr. Kelley, how long have you
known Stephen Lynch ?

Kelley. 1 believe T have known him f{ince the
beginning or middle of April Latt.

Mr. Aetelbey, What is his Chara®er, is it an
honourable Charatter ?

Kelley. I never heard any give him a Charaéter
that was not very vile,

Mr. Ketelbey. Mr. Blake, how long have you
known Stephen Lynch ?

Blake. Sir, I never had any Acquaintance
with him, but I have heard he hath a vile Cha-
racter,

Mr, Huigerford. Have you had any Difcourfe
about this Trial, have you heard any thing faid
by Lyuch himfelf, about the Matter that is now
in Judgment before this Court ?

Blake. 'There was one Mr. French, a parti-
cular Acquaintance with Lyuch 5 I met Mr. Ficich,
hearing he was of the fame Inn with me, (I be-
long to the Middle Temple) and he told me he
wanted Money,

Mr. Soll. Gen. You know what he told you is
not Iividence,

Blake. Saith he, there is one Mr, I'ynch owes
me a good deal of Money, and I want o go
and fee him, and T have no mind to go there by
mylelf, Next Day I confented to go along with
him, as thinking there could be no Danger in
that : When we came to him, I {ufped, fays Mr.
Lynch, that you come for fome Money that I
owe you, Upon that, he defired him to fit down,
and told the Gentleman he was forry he had dif-
appointed him. Then he begun to talk of my
Lord Newth and Grey, and my Lord Oirery,
and Mr. Layer | believe I thall hang him 5 buc
as to my Lord Nerth and Grey, and my Lord
Oirery, I know nothing of them : I know no-
thing more of Mr. Layer, but what I had from
him himfelf.  Some Words pafs’d between him
and me, and talking of my Lord Totwnfbend, he
faid my Lord Townfbend was of a morofe Tem-
per, but my Lord Carferst was of a better
‘Temper.

Mr. Ketelbey. Speak to the Purpofe; I delire
to know what you can fay of Mr. Lynch’s Cha-
racter ?

Blake. 1don’t know any thing of Lywch, but
that he'1s of an infamous Charalter.

Mr. Ketelbey. What did he fay of Mr. Layer 2

Blake, He faid he would hang him,

Mr. Ketelbey. Did he fay any thing about the
vilenefs of the Plot, or why or how far he thought
it his Duty to difcover luch Villany 2 _

Blake. No, I don’t know of any fuch thing.
I heard him fay, my Circumftances are very

Qg 2 poor';
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roor ; and the Motive that induc’d him to do this,
was to fave the Lives of a thoufand People.

Mr, Hungerford. Did he fpeak any thing of
oetting Money ? |

Blake. No, 1 can’t fay any fuch thing.

L. C. Fuf, That is not a fair Queftion.

Blake, 1 can inform your Lordfhip more: Saith
he, I was forced to do thisy but 1f I had got off
from this Affairy I would fight any dozen People

in London to come off from it, |
Mr. Soll. Gen. Where do you live, Sir? Do

you live in the Middle Temple ?

Blake, No ; I live at Mus. Ireland’s in Porty-
sal-Street. |

Mr. Hungerford, In the Converfation you had
with Lynch, was there talk of any Money he was

to have ? |
Mr, 8o/, Gen. You alk’d him that Queftion

before, and was told 1t was not a fair Queftion,

Mr. Hungerford, 1think I did not, Mr. Darcy,
what do you know more of Mr, Lynch ?

Darcy. Sir, I went to fee Mr, Lynch on Ac-
count of fome Money which I lent him, and
when be was taken up i Menchafler-Court T went
to fee hum 3 there he received me awilly, [ took
him afide and afk’d him for my Money. 1 told
him fo freely, and afked him how he got Money
and feveral fine Clothes which he had s he told
me a2 Lady us’d to come twice or thrice 1 Week
to vifit him, and this Lady was the Miftrefs or
Dauaghter of one of the Chief Minifters of -
fand 5 he faid this Woman

L. C. Fuf. You muft not put him in this
way.

Mr, Ketelbey, Mr. Blake, have you given an
Account of the Charatter of this Lynch ¢ T only
afk you the general Character.

Blate, T have told you already.

Prifoner, I have two or three more to the fame

Purpole.

Teriv fworn,

Prifsirci. How long have you known Lyich ?

Teiry. Seven Years.

Prifoner, Hath he the Charalter of an honeft
Man?

Terry. He hath the Charaler of being a loofe
young Fellow 5 that is all I know of him.

Prifoner, Is his Character good or bad ?

Terry. His Charater is loofe,

Mr, Hamilton {worn,

Prifoner. Do you know this Stepben Lynch ?

Hanilton, Yes.

Prifoner. What CharaCter is he of 3 is he to be
believed ?

Hamidton. No, T believe nots I was cautious of
keeping him Company ; I believe him to be of a
vile infamous Character, that will o or fivear any
thing,

Mr. Hungerford. We leave the Chara&er of
this Lyiuch here, with the Weight of the Blemifhes
charg’d upon him by our Witnefles, to the Con-
fideration of the Jury.

There is another of the Witnefles, Mr. Plunkest,
to whofe Charatter we fhall likewife examine.
We fhall call 2 Witnefs or two to that mater,
and then we fhall clole,

Mr. Thomas Brown fworn,

Mr. Ketelbey, Do you know Pluikets ?

Brown. Yes, I have known him thefe ten
Years,

Mr. Ketelbey, What is his general Charaéter?
Brown, Lle hath but an indifferent Characer.
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Mr, Ketelbey. Is he a Man to be believ'd 2
Brown. No, my Lord, I.don’t believe he i
Mr. Keating fvorn.

Mr. Keteloey, Have you known Mr. Pluyles
and how long? ’

Keating. 1 never had any Knowledge of hin
before the beginning of Fuly Lafi,

Mr. Ketelbey, What Chara®er and Reputa.
tion hath he¢ Hath he a good or an il Cl.
racter ?

Keating. T will tell you: About the Beain-
ning of Faly laft a Man that owed me fome M-
ney on a Note of his Hand ——

Mr. Sl Ger. My Lord, we muft oppok:
the going into Particulars 5 they know they ap
confned to examine as to his general Charadier
only.

Mr. Hungerford. But if the Gentleman will fol-
low fome of your Examples, and introduce him.
lelf by Prefaces, we can’t help it

L. C. Fuft. Toa general Queftion you muft
give a general Anfiver,

Keating. "the Knowledge I have had of him,
L never knew any thing tolerable in his favouyr .
I never heard a sood Chara@er of him.

Mr. Ketelbey. Did you ever hear a bad one ?

Keatzug, Yes, a very bad one, that he was a
drunken idle Fellow, always kepe Company with
other Women,

Mr. Ketelbey. And from the Characer you have
had of him, do you think there is any credit to
be given to him ?

Keating. No, I don’t think there is:

Mr. Hungerford. My Lord, here we produce a
Man of Quality, Sir Danicl O Carrell,

Sit Daniel O Carroll fiworn,

Mr. Hungerford, Do you know Plupkets ?

Sir Daniel.  Yes, Sir, I do.

Mr. Hungerford, Pray what is
racter ?

Sir Dawrel, I can give no good one of him
for it is a mighty bad Charater he hath; he caus'd
his Colonel to be brought to Town to be ex-
amin’d

Mr. Ketelbey. 1 only afk you in general 5 don’t
enter into the Particulars : 1 only afk in general,
from the Charater he hath in the World, do you
look upon him as a competent Witnes to be be.
liev’d againft another Man.

Sir Daniel, 1 would not take his Evidence to
hang a Daog.

Mr. Huugerford, And here he attempts to hang
a Proteftant!

Mr. Thomas Spelman,

Mr. Ketelbey. Do you know this Plunkest, and
how long have you known him ?

Spelman. 1 have known him feven or eight

Years,
Mr. Ketelbey. What 1s his seneral Charalter in

his Life and Converfation ?
Spelman, I never knew any ill done by him,
Mr. Ketelbey, "What is his Charaer?

Spelman. 1 can’t give any Charaéter of a Man
I dor’t know. All I know of him, is abour a
Difpute between him and Sir Daniel Carrol! about
a Horle, and nis defiring the Lawyer to fue Sir
Daniel,

Mr. Hungerford. Did he not fay fomething
before that ?

Spelman.  He fud, the Lawyer he employ’d
would do lim Juflice,

his genera] Cha-

Mr., A,
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Mr. Az, Gen. You fay you don’t know any ill

Charatter of him.

Spelman. No, 1 don’t.
Edward Barnwell fworn.

Wr. Hungerford. Do you know this Plunkett,

what is his Charalter ¢
Barnwell. Pray let me tell you, I have been

examin’d twice upon this Account. The firlt
time that I brought Pluukett to be acquainted
with Mr. Layer, Mr. Layer’s Man brought me
word and faid, Mr. Layer had his Goods feized
wrongfully 5 upon that [ fent Plukest to the
Savey, to have two Soldiers from thence 5 and I
faid, go to Mr. Layer’s Houfe, there are fome
Baliffs that have wrongfully feized his Goods,
you muft go and turn them out. He did go
with the Soldiers, and turned the Bailiffs out of
the Houfe ; upon which Mr. Layer gave him half
a Crown : Atter this Mr. Plunkett had no Friend
but me 3 and he came and prefs’d me, and de-
fired me to apply to Sir Dawiel Caroll, for fome
Wioney he faid he owed him for a Horfe. I told
him I thought it was wrong to prefs Sir Dansel
upon that Account.

"Then about eight Months ago he came to me,
and faid he had met Mr, Layer in Lincoli*s-Inun-
Frelds, and that Mr. Layer did not know him
[ wold him, fays he, I am one of thofe that
ferv’d him at fuch a time, and that he had given
me half a Crown, and that then Mr. Layer re-
member’d him.  This 15 all T know 5 I'm fworn,
and will tell the Truth.

Mr. Hungerford. Is he a Man as may
hev’d, even upon his Oath, or not ?

Barmwell, I muft tell you, that I found him
in {fo many Miftakes about his own Wife, that,
by God, Iwould not take his Word for a2 Half-
penny.,

Mr. Hungerford, This contradifts what M,
Plunkett fays pafs’d between him and Mr, Layer
in Lincoly’s-Inn- Fields, with refpect to the giving
him Half a Crown, it feems to be for former
Service.

L. C. Fuft. How doth it? I'm to learn again.
Plunkett 1wore, that he came with him under a
Gate-way, and there, after he had talk’d with
him, he gave him Halfa Crown. This Gentle-
man owns he gave it to him for the Service he
had done at {ome diftance of Time before,

Mr. Hungerford. Go on, but don’t fwear by
God any more,

Barmwell. ¥ am a Soldier, 2 Man of Honour,
of eighty Years of Age, and would not do an ili
thing for the World.

Gentlemen, as I have been fent for by the
Miniftry, and examin’d in the Council, it hath
been faid, Mr. Pluntcit hath made me write 2
Letter to his own Captain ; and thefe Men were
obliged to give in Bail, and he would pay for the
Charges. i

Mr. Ketelbey, What did Mr. Plunkett fay to you,
In relation to what pafs’d between you and Mr.
Layer ?

Barnwell. He told me Mr. Layer gave him
Half a Crown, in kindnefs for the Service ke had

formerly done him, in turning the Officers out of
his Houle.

be be-

Mr. Matthews Phylips {worn.
Prifener. Do you know Plunkett 2
- Plylips.  Yes.
Prifoncr. 'What Character hath he ?
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Plylips. 1 think, by what I have known by him,

he is not to be believd,

Prifoner. Is that his general Charater ?

Phylips. Tt 1s, that every body gives him- that
knows him,

Alexander Phylips fworn,

Mr. Ketelbey, Do you Lknow Pluikett 7

Al Phylips.  Yes.

Mr. Ketefbey. 1Tow long have you known him !

Al Plylips. 1 have known him about eleven
Weeks.

Mr, Ketelley,  What Charaer hath he ?

L. C. Fuft. T never heard the like; when you
give the Charater of a Mau, you give that Cha-
racter by Men that "have not known him cbove
cleven or twelve Weeks.

Mr. Hungerford. Have you ever had any Deal-
ings with him 2

Phylips. No, not I, but my Uncle hath.

L. C. Fuft. Moft of your Witneffes have known
him but a little time, feven Weeks, eight Weeks,
eleven Weeks, &9¢, It would almolt make 2 Man
fufpect, thar fome People have been fet up on
purpofe to give an il} Charater of thefe People
on this Occafion, To talk of feven or eight Weeks
Acquaintance ?

Mr. Hungerford, ‘That Man is crouded in [
don’t know how, but Sir Danie/ Carell is tumbled
about and cannot get out 5 Sir Danie/ isa Gentle-
man of Merit, and as fuch hath been diftinguifh’d
by the Government, and ought to be treated a
hittle beteer.

Patrick Mabone fworn,

Mr. Ketelbey,  What Chara®er hath M.
Plunkett ?

Mabone. T have known Mr. Plunkett feveral
Years, and that he was an idle broken Man, and
a great Liar, and not to be believ’d.

Mr. Hungerford, He would lye before and be-
hind, I think you fay?

NMabone, Yes, he did.

Mr. Ketelbey, Do you think he is to be cre-
dited, if he comes to give Teftimony againft a
Perfon ?

Mabone. Upon my Word I think he is not, by
what he told me; becaufe I have fourd him to
lye backwards and forwards,

Mrs. Child fworn,
Mr. Ketelbey. Mrs., Child, pray have you had

any Difcourfe lately with Mr. Plunkett the Ser-

jeant?

Mrs. Chifd. I never had any Difcourfe with
him but that Day my Hufband was confin’d,

when I run to look for Mr, Plunkets’s Wife,

and Plunkett’s Wife was not at home; but was
gone to fee her Idufband at the Meflenger’s 5 1

went thithery Mr. Plunkett hearing I was at the
Door, he defired that I fhould come in.  Saith

he, Mrs. Child, how comes it that your Huf-
band doth not come to fee me? Yon krow, fays

I, upon what Account my Hufband abfents
himfelf.  'Why, he s not taken up yer? Yes,
fays I, heis, and confin’d upon your Account,
He takes me by the Hand, he takes me into
the Coal-Hole, and take notice what I fay to
you, and get to your Hufband and tell him
quickly.  And he told me, that he took my
Hufband to a Lawyer that was going to pay off
the 18 /. that Sir Daniel Caroll owed him, and the
Lawyer would not fee him, and fo they came

away together,
Mr., A,
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Mr. Ait. Gen. She fpeaks much to the Pur-
ofe + For fhe confirms what Mr. Plunkett fwore.
Mr. Ketelbey, What did Plunkett fay ?

Mrs, Child. He faid, he was going to get a

Scttlement for Life.
Mr, Ketethey, What was he to get a Settlement

for ?

Mrs. Child, For what he faid of Mr, Layer s
a Story he had told me of my Hufband.

L. C. Fuft. You have called a great many
Witnefles to che Difteputation of Lynch and
Pluukest, to fay they have generally il Cha-
racters, and are vile infamous Fellows, and not
to be believ’d ; and there is the Subftance of all

your Evidence if you ftay here ull to-morrow

morning,.
Alice Drun fworn.

Mr. Kezelbey, Do you know what Character

Plupkett hath e |
Alice Duwrn. His Charaer I had from himfelf]

that he liv’d with another Man’s Wife.

Mr. Ketelbey.  Hath he a good or bad Cha-
racter?

Alice Dunn, e hath a bad Character.

Mr. Ketelbey. Is he to be believ’d 2

Alice Dunn. No, he 1s not to be believ’d.

Fobi Richmond fworn.
Mr. Ketelbey, Tlere, Richmond, have you feen

Plunkett Jately ?

Richinoud, No.

Mr. Ketelbey. How long is it ago fince you faw
him 2

Richinond.
more,

Mr. Ketelbey, What Difcourle had you with
Lluikest ar that time when you faw him ?

Richmond.  Plunkett afl’d me if I was a Ser-
vant of Mr, Leye’s? I faid, I was ;3 and in dil-
courfe I afk’d him if he had ever receiv’d any
Moncy of Mr, Layer for the Ufe of the Pretender ?
Fle kneeled down upon ius Knees, and ftruck him-
felf upon his Breaft, and faid, he never had re-
ceiv’d any Moncy of Mr. Layer for the Ufe of the
Pretender 1n his Life-time,

Mr. Ketelbey, How long s this ? Is 1t three
Weeks ?

Richinond,
apo,

Mr, Ketelbey, Who was prefent befides you ?

Richinond,  There was no body elle in the
Room,

L. C. Fust. I would be glad to know, that he
never receiv’d any Meney for the Ufe of the
Pretender, What do you mean by that ?

Ricomond. He kneeled down upon his Knees,
and faid, he wifh’d he might be damn’d if ever
he recetved any Money for the Ufe of the Pre-
tender.

Mr. Hungerford, Your Lordfhip may remember
Plunkett fwore, that Layer gave him Half a
Crown at one tume, and other Money at feveral
other times 3 and now he folemnly fwears upon
his bended Knees that he never received any Mo-
ney for the Ule of the Pretender, that is, upon
his Account,

L. C. 7uff. When you are drawing Confequen-
ces from the Expreffions, confider what thofe Ex.
prefhions are: He folemnly protefted that he never
received any Money for the Ufe of the Pretender,
It doth not appear that he did; nor did he fay
that hedid.  'Well, go on.

About threc Weeks ago and

I belicve *os about fix ‘Weeks
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Mr. Ketelbey, My Lord, we will leave it here
as to Plunkett : We will beg leave to call fome
Witnelies as to Mrs, Mafoi’s Character.

Mrs. Clayton fworn,

Mr. Ketelbey. Do you know Mrs. Mafoir, o
Mrs. Butda, or Mrs. Herbert, or what do you call
her ?

Mrs. Clayton. 1 know her by all thofe Names -
Buaa 1s the Name fhe always ufed w go by,
fhe hath gone by the Name of Mafon, and Bevan,
and Herbert,

Mr. Ketelbey, What 1s her Chara&er and Re-
putation ?

Mrs, Clayton.  Very indifferent.

Mr, Ketelbey,  Is it bad or good ?

Mrs. Clayton,  Very bad.

Mr. Ketclhey, Have you had any talk with her
at any time about Sir Pobr Meers and his Man
Thonitas ?

Mrs. Clayten, 1 have heard her fay that ——

Mr. Soll. Gen. They are afking what che
Witnels hath heard Mrs. Mafenr fay at any time
about Sir Jobiz Meers and his Man, which being
E{ a particular I, furely is not a proper Que-

on.

Mr. Hugerford. What have you heard her fay
about any Papers?

Mrs. Clayton. I'fee her havea printed Book ;
I vled o go ofien where Mrs. Mafinr lodged ;
and going one Day there, 1 faw a Gentleman
ficing, which was Mr, Layer: Hle had fent a
Porter for Mrs. Mafon. When fhe came, fays he,
the Parhament Man I was' {peaking of is not pro-
vided of the 300/ I have a good Mind to lend it
him.,

Mr. Huigerford, Pray how does Mrs. Alafei
oct her Itving ?

Mrs. Claylon. By deluding young Women,
and carrying them about for Money.

Mr. Hungerford, That is to fay a Bawd 5 1s it
not ?

Mrs. Clayten, Yes,

Mr, Ketelbey, Did you hear of any Rewards the
was to have by coming here ?

Mis. Clayton.  She faid the was to be paid, or
¢lfe the would not do 1t.

L. C. Yuf. What do you mean? You have
been fo often admonifh’d by the Courty but it
fignifies nothing.  You are charging Mrs, Mafor
with being a Bawd, when you ought only 10 en-
quire as to her gencral Character.

Mr, Ketelbey. 1 afl’d you generally the Que-
{tion, whether fhe had 4 good or a bad Cha-
racter ¢

Mrs. Clayton. 1 did anfwer that Queftion.

L. C. Fuff, At this rate the molt innocent
Perfons may be branded as the moft infamous
Villains 3 and 1t 15 impoffible for them o defend
themfclves,

Mis. Peirce {worn,

Mr. Hungerfard, What do you know of this
Mrs. Mafon ?

Mrs. Peirce, 1 know I loedg’d in the Houfe
where the did Jodge.

Mr. Hungerford, What Charadter hath fhe ?
a good one or a bad one?

Mrs. Peirce, A very indifferent one,

Prifoner. Is fhe to be believ’d or credited ?

Mrs, Peirce, No, fhe is not to be credited. -

Mr. Hungerford, Had fhe a good Reputation or
an infamous onc ? *

Mrs.
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. Mirs. Peirce.. She hath a bad Reputation,
Mr. Serj. Pengelly. You have feen Mri Layer

there ?
Mrs, Peirce. Yes.

Mrs. Wilkinfon fworn,
M. Ketelbey. Do you know this Mrs, Ma-

fon 2
/ Mrs. Wilkinfos, 1 don’t know Mrs, Mafois 5

but I know Mrs. Bevan. |

Mr, Ketelbey. What Charater hath fhe ?

‘Mrs. Wilkinfon. 1know her to be a vile Wo-
man, and doth not care what {he fays, or what fhe
doth. ~

Mr. Ketelbey. Is that her gencral Charatter?

Mrs, Wilkinfon,  Always {ince I have known
her.

Mr. Ketelbey, How long is that 2

Mrs, WZilkinfon.  About two Years,

Mr. .D)’Er fworn.

Mr. Ketelbey, Mr. Dyer, do you know Mrs.

Mafon ¢
Dyer. T know one Bevan.
Mr. Keteloey., How long have you known

her ? |
Dyer.  She lived with me thirteen or fourteen

Years ago. |

Mr. Ketelbey, What was her Chara&er then 3

Dyer.  She robbed my Shop, and I fent her to
Bridewoell.

Mr, Ketelbey. What 1s her Charalter and Repu-
tation now ?

L.C. Fuft. 1 defire you to forbear this irregu-

lar Pradtice.
Mr. Hungerford. s this Woman to be credited

or not ?
Dyer, I know nothing of that.

- Mrs, Bafkett fworn!

Prifoner. Had you any Difcourfe with Mrs,
Mafon ¢ .
Mrs. Bafkett. No, Sir, I don’t know her.

Prifoner. Had you any Difcourfe with her?

Mrs. Bafkett. 1 don’t know her.

Prifencr, Nor Mrs. Buda ¢

Mis, Bajkett,  No, Idon’t know her.

Prifencr, Nor Mrs, Bevan ¢

Mrs. Bafkett.  1don’tknow heratall.

Prifoncy. Do you know Mr. Lynch? Have
you feen him lately ¢

Mirs, Bafett. I faw him laft Night,

Prifoner.  Did you hear him fay what Reward
he was to have for {wearing againft me 2

L. C. Fuft. That muft not be.

Prifoner. Did you not hear him fay he was to
have geol. for fwearing againft me ?

L. C. Fup. Wehave a Compaffion for you, and
therefore bear this from you, which we would not
from any body elle,

Mr. Soll. Gen. My Lord, this 1 not to be
endured, The. Prifoner turns about to the Jury,
and tells them that Lywch faid he was to have
500 /. a Year. |

Mr. Hungerford, 1 believe the Gentleman that
fat next to him did not hear him.

Mr. Wearg, My Lord, I did hear him fay
to the Jury that Lynch faid he was to have 500/,
a Year, -

L. C. Fuf. T muft tell you, if you did but
confider of what little Confequence 1t would be
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to you; you would riot do it: When jou thought fic
to make him your Confident, ‘carry him fo the
Green Man with you, and to my Lord Norib and
Grey’s; and there he was entertained courteoufly
by him; and do you come now to brand him with
betng an 1ll Man ?

Prifoner.  Lynch fays himfelf that he did not
know me till Fume latt; and how could I have
fo much Friendfhip for him on fo fhort an Ac-
quaintance ¢

L. C. Fuf. Then for this Woman, if you
would do Service to yourfelf, prove the Packets
arc not under your Seal, and that you did not
deliver them to her with your own Hand ; prove
fomething of that, and thefe Proofs will be of
more Service to you than ten thoufand of thefe
Witnefles,

Prifoner. My Lord, if T was admitted to
prove, [can make it appear it is all a Sham and
a Forgery,

a l\l.([r. Hungerford, It was never proved to be his
eal.

L. C. 7ufl. You are miftaken : The Woman
{wore 1t was his Seal, and the Officers {ore they
were under the Seals when they feized them
and 1t 1s proved now to be his Seal for the Seal is
vifible.

Prifoner. How do they prove it to be my
Seal ¢ My lLord, it is not my Seal. I defire
Major Barnwell may be afked as to this Woman's
Charalter.

Maj. Barnwell. 1 know her : She is a vile
Woman ;3 fhe had like to have cheated me of
1500 /.

Prifencr.  You arc only afked as to her Cha-
raCter 1n general. Is fhe a Woman to be cres
dited, or not?

May. Barnwell, No, the is not,

Mr. Keteloey. 1 hope you are fatisfied with this

oeneral Anfwer,

Mr. Hungerford. They won’t let us go into
Particulars; that the Courfe of Pratice won't
allow.

M. Ketelbey. It is impoffible for us to diret
the Anfwers to the Quetlions,

Mr. Lebatt fworn,

Prifoner. Mr. Lebast, pray give my Lord and
the Jury a general Account of this Mrs. Buda, or
Mrs. Mafen, whether the ought to be credited or
not, or gain Credit,

Lebatt. No: She would take any body’s Life a-
way for the Value of 2 Farthing,

Mr. Hungerferd, Now, my Lord, wez will clofe
our Evidence as to the Character of thefe Witnefles
againft the Prifoner at the Bar: We hope we
have proved their Characters to be fo infamous, as
no Juryupon Earth will believe them. Here is
this to be obferved

Prifoner. 1 beg Pardon 3 here isa mighty Talk
of my Arms : I am {o fortunate as to have a Pet-
fon here that will give you an Account of them,
and how they came to be brought thither,

Mr. Bowers fworn.

Mr. Ketelbey. What Trade are you of 2

Bowers. A Gunimith, /

Mr. Ketelbey. Did you make any Fuzees?

Prifener., No; pray let me afk him; Pray
give my Lord and the Jury an Account of a
Blunderbufs, a I'uzee, a Carbine, and Piltols s

what
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what you kiow of them. Iid not you owe me
fix Pound on a Note under your Hand ?

Bowers. My Lord, about five or fix Months
ago, Mr. Layer had a Law Suie for me: I fold
him a Pair of Piftols, and a lictle after T fold
him another Par. Mr., Layer had them for &
D:be: He had m his Houfe two Guns. 1 pro-
mifed Mr. Bemict a Gun when the Caufe was
over, inftead of Money. I gave him one of thofe
Guns : There is another Gun, and a Mufker which
Mr., Layer had of me.

Mr, Layer had a Note of niinc for fix Pound,
which 1 owed him : T importuned him to take a
Carbine for a Man to ride with, and a Blunder-
buls for his Houfe, in order to fet off this Debt 3
and I brought him them when he was going into
thz Country : I brought him fome Powder, and
I brought him three Dozen and a half of Car-
tridges.

Prifoner. Did I order you to bring them, or did
you bring them of your own Head ?

Bowers, You bid mebring a dozen and a half,
or two dozen s and I broveht three dozen and a
hn]f: The R‘E{’lfﬂl’l Wils, thilt Imight ﬂlOI‘[L‘I] my
own Debt.

Mr. Raynbam, fworn.

Prifoncr. Pray will you give my Lord and the
Jury an Account of the Piece of Arms I had of
you, and for what Realop ?

Ragnbam, 1 went with him to one Mr.
Pritchaid’s in Friday-Street, there was a Mufket
in his Compting-Houlc ; he faid he would difpofe
of 1t: Mr, Layer alk:d him his Price ; he fud he
would have fifty Shillings for it. Mr. Layer
faud that was too muchj fays he, you fhall have
2 Tral of 1t, and it your Sifter carries her Caufe
againlt Mr. Watfon, you fhall give me fifty Shil-
lings for it

Prifoner. Did he put it on me, or did I de-
fire it ?

Raynbam,  You afked him what it was worth,
and whether he would difpofe of it ?

Prifonei.  Did not he fay feveral times that he
wanted to difpofe of it, and defired me to take it
on thole Terms ?

Raynbam. Yes: He faid on that Condition that
your Sifter got her Caufe you thould have it, and
cave him fifty Shillings for it.

Mr. Samuel Steward, {worn,

Prifoner.  Mr, Steward, only give my Lord
and the Jury an Account whether or no I was
not intrulted with Things of great Value, and
what Occafion 1 might have for a few Arms ;
whether you don’t know of Money put out on
Mortgages 2

Steward. Yis, to the Value of thirty or forty
thoufand Pounds within thefe two Years.

Prifoncr.  Don’t you think it reafonable as to
thefe Arms, that I fhould have them in my
I'Joufe to guard my Houfe ?

Steward. I thought it very reafonable,

Mr., Hungerford. My Lord, we have done
with examining of Witnefles, to the Credit of
the Wineffes  produced againft the Prifoner
illnd leave that Matter- to the Confideration of the

ury.

Mr. Ketelbey. Pray Mr, Steward, do you look
upon that Paper they call a Scheme, with a French
Motto upon it. Before you look upon that Paper,
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] afk you if you are acquainted with the Hand-
writing of Mr. Layer ¢ 3
Steward, Yes, verywell -
Mr. Ketelbey. How long-have-you beest: ac-
quainted with his Hand-writing ? 1

Steward, Two Years and an half, _

Mr. Ketelbey.  Have you atany time feen him
write ? -
Steward,  Yes, a thoufand times,

Mr. Ketelhey. Do you believe that to be his

Hand ? '
Stewoard, 1 do not believe it to be *his

Hand. ‘ '
Prifoner.  Is it like the Character I write ?

Stewward,  Not at afl ¢ You write a fhorter
Charater ; this is 2 long one. 3

Mr. Beimet, fworn, -'

Mr. Ketelbey. Have you been acquainted with
the Hand-writing of Mr, Layer ?

Bennet. I have been very well acquainted with
the Hand-writing of Mr. Layer,

Mr. Ketelbey. You have feen him write ¢

Bennet,  Very often, a thoufand and = thoufand
times.

Mr. Ketelbey. Look upon that Paper : See if
you believe that to be his Hand-writing ? -

Bennet, No, my Lord, 1 do not believe that
to be his Hand-~writing : I never faw him write
a Hand like it in my Life. 1 don’t think it to
be his own Hand-writing at all; I never faw
him write fuch a Hand as this.

Mr. Att, Gen.  Shew him that Paper ¢ [awhich
was @ Poper feized among the Prifoner’s Papers in
toe great Bundle,] Look on that Paper, and give
my Lotd and the Jury an Account if you know
whofe Hand-writing it is,

Bennet, 1 believe it 15 my own Hand-writ-

Ing,

Mr. Ait, Gen. By whofe Direftion did you

write it ?

Bennet. By Mr. Layer’s Direction.
Mr. A, Gen. For what Purpofe was it

writ ?

Bennet, 1 can’t remember.

Mr, Att. Gen. Did you write this for M.,
Layer 2

Bennet. T believe ] did 5 but I can’c tell what

particular Reafon I writ it for,

Mr. At. Gen. Now, my Lord, here 15 one

of the Papers that were found in the Bundle, in

which the Lifts were found, proved to be writ by

Mr, Layer’s Clerk by his Direion,

Mr. Serj. Chefhire. He is pofitive as to its not
being his Mafter’s Hand-writing; yet as to his
own, he owns it,

Cl. of the Cr. Ttisa Lift of Names.

Mr. Ketclbgy, Before you read it, what did he

fay 2

Mr. At Gen, My Lord, he faid it was his

Hand.

Cl. of the Cr. Itis partof a Jury between Layer

and one #atfon,

Mr. Ait. Gen, ‘This was found amongft his
Papers that were fealed up, It was taken in that

Bundle where the Lifts were.

Mr. Ketelbey, We fubmit it to your Lord-
fhip and the Jury: We apprehend we have
proved this Scheme not to belong to Mr. Layer 3
We have called two Witneffes cthat have known
him many Years, and have feen him write a

great
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great many times, and that they verily believe it
not to be his Hand-writing. We don’t know
how it is pofiible to leave it ona better Foot.

Therefore, my Lord, we fhall leave 1t to your
Tordfhip’s Diretion, and the Confideration of

the Jury. |

Mr. Hungerford. My Lord, all that I would
now obferve is, that this Gentleman 15 indicted for
High-Treafon. The main of the Charge aganft
him is, that he was concerned in defigning to
raife an Infurreftion. How that appears to be
proved, I have fpoke to already; but this muft
be allowed, that whatfoever Defolation and 1l
Confequences might now have enfu’d, there hath
been no Blood fhed, no Armics raifed, or Inva-
fions attempted : And I think upon fuch an
Evidence that comes not up to the Charge in thé
Indiétment, the Blood of this Gentleman ought
not to be reached : At leaft we humbly hope it
fhall not.

Prifoner. My Lord, as to Lyuch, 1t appears
our going down into Effex was merely acciden-

tal : When we came to the Green Man, we did
not ftay there three Quarters of an Hour ; and
he fays we went down twice in the Time, All
this mighty Bufinefs, this publifhing a Declara-
tion, talking of an InfurreCtion, which is the
Treafon, and laid as an Overt-Aét in Effex; all
this was done before Dinner by his own owning,.
[t was not three Quarters of an Hour from
the Time we went in, till the Time we came
out. We wenton tomy Lord North and Grey'ss
and when he was there, heis afked, 1t there
was any Difcourfe there about any fuch De-
fign? He fays therc was nothing faid of 1t there,
Is it poflible when fuch a Defign was on foot, he
and I alone fhould go together to the Green Man,
and thoroughly recapitulate the Affair; which
when we came to my Lord North and Giey’s no-
thing thould be faid of it ?

When we come to Pluikett, he faith that he
became acquainted with me firft of all, by rea-
fon of fome Goods that were fuzed in 2 Houfe
in Queen-fircet 3 that he never faw me all five
Years after this in Lincolw’s-Inn-Fields.  Plun-
keer did not at firft know me: We looking upon
one another, then he renewed his Acquaintance
with me, and told me of the former Service he
had done me ; and thereupon I gave him half
a Crown, which he faid was given him by me
to it Men into the Pretender’s Service, He
confeffed, as I proved by Major Baruewell, that
I gave it him for former Service. As to the
thirteen Shillings, he was afked whether he did
not come to borrow fuch a Sum of Money of
me 3 he faid hedid; 1t was in order to releafe
Major Bariewell out of the Marfbalfea. Being
afked whether he was not acquainted with Sir
Daniel Carroll, and whether there was not fome
Difference about a Horfe in Spain between them,
he faid there was, and that he came to advife
with me whether he could recover the Money
of Daniel Carroll. s 1t not natural that the
Guinea he talks of might be another Man’s
Money, that was told him by one Fefferys was
fent to him by me : He talks to him as to that
Guinea, when he comes to be afked whether it
was not purcly out of Kindnefs and Charity
that T did lend him that Guinca, he doth not
deny it, and now would infinuate that it was
civen him to lift Men for the Pretender, From
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the Improbability of the Thing, from his own
owning, no Perfon could believe him. I believe
there are ninety-nine out of a hundred that can-
not believe one Word that either Lynch or Plun.
ket {wore,

~ Then the next Matter they tallk of, the pro-
duce a Schemz: Iow hard and difficult ‘was
it to give any Evidence that fo it thould be read s
and I humbly apprehend it did not ftridly a-
mount to legal Evidence, Mr, Doyley he faid
he knew my Hand fourteen or fificen Years agp,
and that he hath reccived Letters from me about
five Years ago, and hath compared this Scheme
with thofe Letters 5 and cherefore he believes it 1o
be my Hand, When he comes to be afked whe-
ther he hath thofe Letters here with which he
compared this Scheme? No, I have them not
here : Yet chiefly his Belief was that it was my
Hand-writing, by comparing thefe Letters and
this Scheme together,  “Lhis amounts to nothing
more, when 1t comes finétly to be confidered, than
only a Similitude of Hands, and furely Similitude
of Hand with Submiffion, is not Prooi in crimi-
nal Cafes: And when it amounts to no more, it
ought not to be receiv’d.

Here s, fay they, a Circumftance that what
Lyneh and Pluafett {wore muft be true, becaufe
here was a Scheme for an InfurreGion. In this
very Scheme or Paper, as 1 tock Notice of, not
one Man is mentioned by Name in it; only Sol-
diers to be had here, the Tecwei to be feized, the
Bairk and the Exchange to be feized, and the
World to be turned upfide down § but by whom ?
There is no Time mentioned, there is no Date
toit, This Thing if it be fuch a Scheme, if it
had been written by me, which I abfolutely de-
ny that it was writ by me, it doth not appear
but that it was written feveral Years ago.  When
they come to afk thofe Gentlemen the Under-
Secretaries, if this be fo remarkable that they
lay the whole ftrefs upon this Paper, whether I
acknowledged it to be mine, they could not fay
I owned it to be mine. One of the Lords lays
his Finger on a Paper, and faith, Don’t you fay
thisabout Arms? Which I deny to be fo, How
comes it that none of thofe Lords directly ofiered
the Paper to me, and afked me, Is this your Hand-
writing ! There was my Lord Chancellor, my
Lord Harcourt, and feveral other Lords prefent,
that very likely would have afked that Queftion ;
but either they did not think it material, or they
had not the Paper there, or they did not think
it of that Conlequence, or they knew I would
deny it

When we come to call Witnelles to this Wo.
man, this vile, this infamous Woman, I could
fhew you fhe hath been privy to Forgeries, If
it was not to take up your Lordfhip’s Time, I
could fhew that this 1s a Contrivance between a

‘Gentleman and her ; I am very loth to name him,

to carry on fuch a Paper as this to get Money of
the Government. |

Here have been five or fix Witnefles, whofe
Credit ftands unimpeached, who tell you her
Word is not to be taken for a Groat. Another
fays, he wonld not hang a Dog on her Evidence,
This Scheme muft come from her ¢ She fays,
{he had two Bundles of Papers that were delis
vered by me to her fealed up 5 and fhe fays this
Scheme was amongft them; and fhe can the
better fwear it, becaufe fhe hath fet her Mark

Rr upon
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upon it. Onc of the Mcflengers doth not know
whether fhe was in the Room or no. If this
Woman is not to be believed, then all the other
Evidence relating to this Paper falls to the
Ground, It is a Maxim in Reafon as well as
Law; take away the Foundation, and the Work
muft fall.

Gentlemen of the Jury, I would have you to
take Notice of this Evidence, and not go away
with 2 miftaken Notion, becaufe here isa valt
deal of Talk abour the Pretender, going to
Rowe, lifting of Soldicrs for the Pretender’s Ser-
vice, &Fc.  Your Lordlhip will wll them all
that is nothing, unlefs they believe an Overt-
A& to be done in Lflx: That is the true State
of the Cale wich humble Submiffion. There-
fore 1 hope fuch Lvidence as this Evidence of
Lyuch and Plunkett (but only to confine it to
that of Mr. Lyxel) hath proved nothing at all
acainlt me; and 1f what he hath fworn doth
not affet me, then all the other ftands for no-
thing 5 that’s the tue State of the Cale. 1
would not have che Jury think a Man s to be
husted cut of his Life by fine Speeches, far-
fetched Innuendces, and the like.  You wall con-
fider the Charalior of this Man, that he 15 not
to be believed, Pl feave it to you, and I hope
God Almigaty will direét you: 1 afk you no
more than Jultice, If a Man’s Life 15 to be
taken away by fuch fuandalous Evidence as hath
appearcd agundt me, there 15 an Ind of all your
Laberties, your Wives may be taken from you,
your Children made Slaves, and all that 15 valu-
able to you, your Lives and Eftates will be bue
Very precarious.

Mr. Soll. Gen.  May it pleafe your Lordfhip
and you Gentlemen of the Jury, you have heard
a very long Evidence, and 1t 1s my Part, as ex-
aétly and faihfully as I can, to fum up to you
the Subftance of it, and to reply to the Objec-
tions which have been made on the Behalt of
the Prifoncrs as well to uch Objeétions as have
been made by the Prifoner himielf, and by his
Counfel for himy, as to thofe which anfe from
the Iividence that has come out of the Mouths
of his Witnefles: And after I have done this, I
doubt rot but it will appear to your Satisfatti-
on, that the Isvidence which has been given for
the King flands unanfwered, and is a ftrong
Proot ot lligh-Treafon againtt the Prifoner ac
the Bar,

Gentlemen, the Tirealon with which the Pri-
foncr ftands charged is compafling and imagin-
g the Death of the King.  This high Crime
confitts i the Imaginatdon ot the Hearr; but it
nult be proved and made out againft the Of-
fender by Aés which he hach done.  The Overt-
Alts of this Treafon alledged to be done by - the
Prifoner, are, in the firft place, confulting and
confpiring to levy War againft his Muefty : In
the next place, publifhing a treafonable Decla-
ratton, contaming Exhortations, Encourage-
ments, and Promiles of Rewards, to ftir up the
King’s Subjetts to take Arms, and rife in Re-
bellion agamit his Muyelty 3 confulting and con-
fpiring to exale the Pretender to the Crown of
this Realm, and put him in Poffeffion of the
Government - by' armed Force, and Troops to
be levied for that Purpole 5 the actual inhtting
and retaining of Men to ferve in this Rebellion ;
and, finally, a Confpiracy to feize and imprifon
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the facred Perfon of the King himflf

Gentlemen, the heinous Nature and deflruGive
Tendency of thefe Falts were fully expliined
to you in the Opening of the Caufe.  Ii they
had met with Succefs, the Event could undoub:.
cdly have been no lefs than the entire Subverfion
of our prefent happy Eftablithment ; and, in
confequence of that, the lofs of every thing that
s dear and valuable to us. For this Realon i
wis rightly admicted by onc of the Counfel for
the Prifoner, that the Crime, if proved, is in-
capable of Agaravation ; and being fo, although
it 1s impoffible to fay too much concerning it
yet to fay a great deal to you muft be unnceeffary,
becaule 1t 15 equally impofiible for the Hearts of
Englifbincin and Proteftants to fugpelt too little
to themiclves on fo important, {o moving an Oc-
calion,

The Evidence which has been eiven confifts
of feveral Parts and ditferent Kinds, cvery one
of which conduces to fupport and corraborate
the other, arnd taken together, they make up
the fulleft and moft convincing Teftimony that
can be expected inany Cafe.  In the firflt Place,
living Witncfies were produced to you who were
privy to the treafonable Aéts and Confultarions ;
m the nexe Place, feveral Papers have been read
to you, fome of them written with the Prifon-
cr’s own Hand, but all of them belonging to
him; and laft of all, you have the Conicilion
of the Prifoner himfelt proved by two Wit
nefics,

The firlt Witnefs was Mr. Stephen Lyuch,
who gives you an Account in what manner
he was firlt introduced to the Prifoner at the
Bar, Ile tells you he came into Englaid about
April alt, and had feveral Meetings with one
Dr. Murphey, who was his old Acquainiance.
At thefe Meetings they had a Difeourfe relating
to the Pretender, and an Atempt to be made
lor a general Rifing in his Favour ; and Dr. Afwr-
pbey having thus difclofed the Sceret, told  Lynch
that if he would be of the Party, he would re-
commend him to a Gentleman who had 2 confi-
derable Share in the Management of the Affair.
Lyneh ook Time todeliberate upon it, and in two
or three Days after told Muiphey he was refolved 1o
be of the Party.

Afterwards in Fune Ialt, Dr. Murphey carries
Lyiichs to the Prifoner’s Houfe, who propofed to
them to go to the Griff-Tavernn in [Hslborne.
Thither they went, and the Prifoner foon came
to them ; and you have heard in what manner
Muiphey prefented Lyuch to the Prifoner, as be-
ing the Gentleman he had before fpoke to him of,
and what Propolals were made at that Meeting by
the Prifoner to Lyach. That there was to be an
Infurrection in the Kingdom in Favour of the Pre-
tender, in which they fhould be fupported by a
great many of the Army and the Guards, as well
as by fcveral of the Nobility and Genery 5 and that
he wanted a fit Perfon to take one of the firft Steps
in 1t by feizing the Perfon of fome Generaly or o-
ther great Man,

It may be proper here to take Notice of an
Objettion which was made to this, which is the
very beginning of our Evidence : That Lynch
berng an abfolute Stranger tc the Prifoner, it is
very extraordinary that the Prifoner fhould make
a Propofal of fo dangerous a Nature to him at
fult Sight.  But this is plinly accounted for

by
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b;,} the Witnefs who, tells you he was intimately

acquainted with Dr. Murphey, and Murphey was
yery intimate with and introduced him to the

Priioner, as a Friend, who might be confided .
ﬂgreeably to this you obl‘erve' that the firlt thing
‘he Prifoner accofted Lynch with, was that he had
had fuch ftrong Recommendations of Lywch, that
he was fully fatisfied in him,

This Witnefs goes on to give you an Account
that in a Day or two after, in Purfuance of the
Directions he had received from the Prifoner, he
went to the fame Tavern, and fent for the Pri-
foner. They had fome further Converfation about
2 Rifing, and the Inclination which appear’d
i1 the Nation for a Revolution. And now it
was that the Prifoner inform’d Lynch that there
was a areat Man at the Head of this Affair, who
neither wanted Wit, Courage, or Rclolution,
and would at a proper time give Lynch Orders
to effe@ fomething conliderable. At this Meet-
ing the Prifoner particularly engaged Lyuch to
feize the Earl of Cadsgai. The Reafon of
this Attempt the Witnefs gives you, "that it
was in order fo difeonirage the King's Party, and
aiimate the Pretender’s.  And, Gentlemen, the
meaning of this is plin and obvious; for if
an Infurre@ion was begun, what could be more
likely to create 2 Confufion in the Army, and
difpofe the Soldiers to revolt, which appears to
have been a main Part of this Defign, than the
feizing of their General !

There were feveral other Meetings both before
and after the Prifoner’s going into the Country,
where the Witnefs told you he had flaid fixteen
or feventeen Days, At thofe Meetings they dif-
cours’d concerning the Confpiracy 5 and at one
of them itis remarkable the Prifoner told Lyuch,
that if they once made a Beginning here, they
fhow’d want no Affiftance from Abroad. And
at laft Iyuch tells you, that he being under
Neceflities, exprefling great Uneafinefs at the
Delay of the Project, and, as I remember, talk-
ing of going beyond Sea, the Prifoner actually
advanc’d to him a Sum of Money, no lefs than
etght or ten Guineas at different Times, in order
to engage him to flay in Eugland, and to affift in
the intended Defizir of e Revoluiien.  This 1s one
Proof of the Overt-Act luid in the Indictment of
lifting Men.

As they had confider’d how to difpofe of the
General, fo it appears they did not negleét the
Army ; for Lyurch acquaints you, that upon Dif-
courfe about that, he afk’d what Encouragement
they had from the Army ; upon which the Pri-
foner anfwer’d, that they had great Encowrage-
ment from thence; and feveral Serjeants and
common Soldiers had given them Reafon to be-
lieve they would join them. Zjyuch being afk’d
as to the Tume when this Defign was to be put
in Execution, he told you there was no certain
Time fx’d, but the Prifoner inform’d him 1o
was to be at the breaking up of the Camp; and
at the fame time gave a Reafon for i, which
is by no Means to be pals’d over, That they
could not bave fo good Oppertunitics lo lalk with
the Soldiers (that s, to feduce them from their
Duty and Allegiance) wbilf they were cucamped,
as in their Quarters,  Purfuant to thele Conful-
taions, Mr. Layer afterwards told him “twould
be neceflary to take a proper tunc to view my
Lord Cadogan’s Houfe, The Pretence for go-
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ing thither was that Layer hid a Particular of an
BEftate which was to be fold to lay before his
Lordfhip. He tells you that in Faét they went
to the Houfe, furvey’d it, talk’d of the Feafible-
nefs of the Attempt, and at that time they alfo
difcours’d of feizing the Tower 5 and the Pri-
foner told the Witineis that the Zower would be
immediately furrender’d to the Party on the Day
the Plot fhould be put in Exccution ; for a cer-
tain Officer would take upon him to mount the
Guard there that Day, who would facilitate the
Delivery of it to them. And the People of the
Mint were at the fame time to have Arms put in-
to their Hands.

This is a very remarkable Paffage, and fiils in
with the Scheme which was afterwards produced
to you in the Prifoner’s Hand-Writing,

The next Meeting where any thing pafs’d
worth repeating to you, was at the Qucer’s-
lead-Taviin o Great Queen-street 5 and when
the Witnefs came to the Prifoner there, he found
one /Fi/fsr n Company with him, and another
Man, who feem’d by his Cloaths to be a Serje-
ant of the Guards. The Ule to be made of
that Fa& s, that it 1s a Circamflance which falls
in with the written Scheme; for you obferv’d
that one Gesige 7¥ilfon 15 there mention’d as the
Perfon who was to manage the Serjeants, and re-
ceive Orders from the principal Officer.

At this Meeting Lyuch tells you they talk’d
over the Bulinefs, and drank good Succels to the
Enterprize. When they parted, he complain’d
to the Prifoner of the long Delay.  Upon which
Mr. Layer told him there was o Nobleman at
the Head of the Defign, who had full Power
and Authority trom the Pretender (whom he
called King) who would lofe no fit Opportunity
to put it in Execution. He did not name this
Nobleman, but told ZLyuch that he fhould
Le prefented to him in due time, and alfo re-
ceive Orders from him to feize my Lord Ca-
(6Ia7T,

cntlemen, it will be very material for you
to fix this Cicumftance in your Memories, and
to connedt it with the Evidence which comes af-
terwards, and what was done in confequence of
this Mecting.

For after Layer had thus declared that there
was 2 Nobleman at the Head of the Confpiracy,
and Lyneh fhould be prefented to him in due
Time, then it follows that upon the twenty-
fourth of Auguft, the Day the Bifhop of Rechefter
was committed to the Zower, which appears by
the Evidence to be the Tine of their next Meete
ing, Mr. Layer propoled to Lyuch to rile out
to take the Air, which was agreed upon for the
next Day.

In that Journey the Prifoner perfuaded Lyvicl
to carry Arms, becaufe as he then declared 2e
bad that about biin which be worw’d not lofe for alf
the TWerld, Upon the Road Layer told Lyuck
they were to go to my Lord Newvh and Grey's,
and when they were got pretty near the Green
Aan at Layton-Stoze in Effex, 1t was thought to
be too late to go on to dine at Lord Narrh and
Grey’s 3 and therefore the Prifoner propofed to
ftop at the Green Man to take a Dinner,

At this Place the Overt-Acts of High Treafon
committed in Effex, which we were fo much call'd
upon to make out do arife, During their {tay here
the Witnefs gives you an Account that they dif-
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courfed of the whole Projett of the Infurrettion,
the Means of cffeéting it, the Unealinefs that was
in the Nation, and in General all the feveral mat-
ters they had confulted of before; and after they
had done this he tells you Mr. Layer the Pri-
foner propofed to him that deteftable and  {hock-
ing Defign of feizing the facred Perfon of the
King, which he fomcetimes call’d fending a firong

b

Guard to take Care of —— at other tumes to fecure
the King’s Perfon.

He tells you farther, that Mr. Leyer pull'd
out of his Pocket a Manufcript Paper, and de-
liver’d it to the Witnefs in part folded down,
and he read that Part of it which was left open.
That this Paper contain’d a Declaration, with a
Recital, that iy Lord Cadggan was Ehcn a&u:_llly
in their Cuftody : Fhat there were m 1t Invita-
tions to the People to Rife in Arms and repair
to their Party : Encouragements to the Soldiers
to Revolt, with an ORer of Three Guineas to
every Horfeman and Serjeant, Two Guineas to
every Corporal, and One Guinea to every Com-
mon Soldier, to be paid immediately on their
jolning the Party ; and a Promife of further
Rewards. Lynch acquaints you that the Prifoner
talk’d of this Declaration being of his own Com-
pofing, and that from the Dilcourfe which pafs’d
between themn, and the Appearance of the Paper,
he apprehended it to be of the Prifoner’s Hand-
Writing.

My ELord, after this Declaration had been
thus produced, the Prifoner took it back again,
put it into his Pocket, and kept it; and there-
fore the Paper itlelf being in his Cuftody, we
were properly admitted to prove the Contents of
it by Parol Evidence ; and I apprehend if we had
no further Proof of thefe Overt-Aéts which were
done in Effex, this alone is fully fufficient to
maintain the Indi@ment to be regularly and pro-
perly found in that Coury.

From the Green Mau they went on to Epping,
to my Lord North and Grey’s, with whom 1t 1
admitted the Witnefs was not at all acquainted,
and confequently could not of himfelf have any
particular Reafon for going thither, but it ap-
pears to have been upon the Motion of the Pri-
foncr.  When they came to the Lord North and
Groy's Houle, Lynuch tells you that the Prifoner
introduced him to his Lordfhip ; and this brings
back to one’s Memory, and makes 1t impoflible
not to recolleét what the Prifoner had told Lyuch
at their laft Meeting, in time next preceding this
Jeurney, that there was a great Man at the Head
of this Defign, to whom he fhould be prefented
in ue time.

Gentlemen, after this Lyneh went a fecond
time to my Lord North and Grey’s at Epping,
and there he found the Prifoner at the Bar 5 in-
decd he does not own to you that any thing
pafs’d between them relating to this Confpiracy
i the Prefence of my Lord North 5 but at that
Place Lywch, in Converfation with Mr, Layer,
exprefs’d an Unealinefs that the Affair was de-
lay’d, but Layer bid him be eafy, for it might be
done fooner than he expetted.

Gentlemen, this 1s the Subftance of the Evi-
dence of what pals’d in Effex.  But the Witnefs
tells you he had afterwards feveral Converfations
with Mr. Layer, and when he exprefs’d his Con-
cernment at the Delay of putting the Defign in
Exccution, Layer told him  he was {o bent upon
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the Succefs of it, that rather than it fhould fail,
he would be a fecond Mafmello : This was re_
prefented as a ridiculous Expreflion by one of
the Council for the Prifoner : But we have af]
heard what Confufions were rais’d by that pro.
fligate Iellow in the Kingdom of Naples; and i¢

is plain, that was the Example the Prifoner referr’g
to by this Ixpreffion.

Mr. Lyuch was crofs-examin’d by the Counfe]
for the Prifoner, with as much liberty as they
thought fit toufe; but I did not obferve that hus
LEvidence was at all weaken’d, I think I may fay,
it was rather confirm’d by it, fince it was upon .
their own Queftions he gave his Reafons how
Layer came to deal fo openly and unguardedly
with him at ficlk Sight. And thofe Realons were
ftrong, for it is not improbable, if Murpbey and
Layer were engag’d 1n a Treafonable Defign,
that onc of them fhould have confidence in 2
third Perfon on fo ftrong a Recommendation from
the other,

The next Witnefs is Matthew Plunkett, and I
apprehend, notwithftanding every Thing that
hath been fud againft his Teftimony, that it is
rather ftrengthened, as to the Falls fworn by him,
than weakened by the Evidence for the Prifoner.
He tells you, his firft Acquaintance with Mr.,
Layer was about five Years fince, and had its
Rife upon this Occafion : The Goods in the
Houfe where the Prifoner then lodg’d, being
taken in Execution, (whether his own Goods or
not, s not at all material) one Major Barnwell,.
who hns been examined for the Prifoner, was
employed to procure Perfons to refcue thofe
Goods 5 Barrwell applied to this Witnels, who
got two Grenadiers, that were let in at a private
Door by Mr. Layer’s Clerk. They did their
Work, drove out the Officers, and refcued the
Goods; and for this Service Mr, Layer rewards
them with 2 Crown and fome Brandy. Since
that, 1t appears he has been employed on othef
Meflages between Major Barnwell and the Pri-
foner 5 and 1n what manner Plunkest is fupported
in thele Circumf{tances, and by Confequence in the
reft of his Teitmony, by Major Barawell himfelf,
who has been produced to difcredit him, I fhall ob-
ferve when I come to confider the Evidence for the
Prifoner.

But the Witnefs having given you this Ace
count of the Introdution to the Correfpondence,
tells you, that in Fuly laft, Fames Plunkett came
to him from the Prifoner, enquird privately
what Acquaintance he had amongft the Soldiers,
and defired him to meet the Prifoner at the
Italian Coffce-houfe in Ruffel-Court 5 but he did
not meet him there, not having Money nor Incli-
nation to go to a Coffee-houfe. He gives you
an Account, that on the Sunday following, re-
turning from St. Awayew’s Church, as he was go-
ing over Lincolw’s-Inn-Fields, Mr. Layer met him,
Plunkett had forgotten Layer's Face, by Layer re-
membred him, and afk’d him if he knew him 3
to which Plunkett anfwering that he did not, the
Prifoner told him his Name, which made him
recolle€t.  Layer then enquired if Fames Plun-
kett had not been with the Witnefs, to defire him
to come tothe Mtalian Coffee-Houfe, o few Nights
before ; and having made himfelf known by thefe
Circumftances, took Plunkett into 2 private Place.
There they had a long Converfation, in which
Layer began with declaring how well affur’d he

was
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was of Plunkets's: good Affeltions to the Prefes-
der, and faid, he wanted fome old Soldiers, fuch
as Plunkett was, that would head and difcipline
4 Mob, for they had other Men enough. Plus-
zest faid he did know feveral old Soldiers, but he
hefitated a little about the Prefender’s being a
Papift. ‘The Prifoner to take off the Force of
that Scruple, anf{wered, 72 bad as good have a
Papilt for our King as a Lutheran, I dow’t know
what Difference theve is between them (that is) be-
rween a Popifh King and a Profeflant one
An important Difference! Which I with with all
my Soul, were not too much forgotten, or per-
haps, too little valued, by many amongft us, who
are not fo frank in declaring as the Prifoner,

Mr.- Layer proceeded to excite the Witnefs to
join in his Treafon, by a falfe Reprefentation of
the State of the Nation, and particularly of the
Injuftice, as he calPd it, which was done to old
Soldiers who had ferved abroad ;5 a Topic moft
likely to captivate an old Serjeant, After this
Preface, he inform’d the Witnefs there was to
be an Infurrection, and Plunkers afking who was
the Promoter of the Defign, told him it was
my Lord North and Grey, whom he comimended
as a fine General 5 and then he went through a
Sort of Lift of feveral other Perfons of Confi-
deration. The Witnefs have declared that he
knew feveral Soldiers, faid, he could procure

five and twenty, whereupon Mr, Layer defired-

he would make a Lift of their Names, and the
Places of their Lodgings, that they might be in
Readinefs upon Call; and at parting, gave him:

half a Crown.

After they had thus talk’d of the Confpiracy,
there followed a very obfervable Paffage ; for
the Prifoner declared that the Defign had been
put in Execution fome time ago, if fome Perfon
had not difcovered it to the French Ambaffador,
who writ of it to the Regent, and o it was no-
tified to the King, However, even this Appre-
henfion of a Difcovery did not terrify them,
for the Projet was to go on.  The late Duke of
Ormond was to come 1n a fingle Ship, and Ge-
neral Dillon in another, and they were to bring
others with them ; which you take Notice falls in
with the Evidence of Lynch, that Layer declared
to lum that they fhould not want Encouragement
or Affiftance from abroad, when once they had
made a Beginning here.

The next Intercourfe between the Prifoner and
Plunkett was not perfonal, but by the means of one
Feffreys, a Nonjuring Clergyman.

Gentlemen, you obferved that the Prifoner
told Plunkert at parting, that he would fend a
Meflenger to him with Money ; and afterwards,
at his own Houfe, on the Morning he went out
of Town for Norfolk, that he had left a Guinea
with a Nonjuring Clergyman to give him to
do Service with 3 —— And fays Layer, whilft
I am abroad, you may be fure I fhall not be
idle. Accordingly Mr. Feffreys came within a
few Days after, and appears to be that Cler-
gyman, for he faid, he came from Mr, Layer.
He tells you, they difcourfed on the old Sub-
Ject, and Feffreys defired he would get Men
in readinefs, and- faid he had feveral other Pla-
ces o go to on the fame Errand, Feffreys
gave the Witnefs no Money at that Time, but
came a fecond Time, and gave him only half a

Guinea, which he faid Zayer had fent him for

for High~Treafon.
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his Encouragement,  Befides this, he tells you
Layer gave him a Crown at the Caffle-Tavern in
Drury-Lane, exprefsly to encourage him to lift
Men for the Pretender. Upon the Prifoner’s Re-
turn to Town, a Letter was fent by Feffreys to
the Witnefs, to defire him to go to the Prifon-
er’s Houfe; and when he came there, the Pri-
foner gave him a Guinea with his own Hand.
There were feveral other Converfations, fiveral
things faid to keep Plunkett firm to the Defign,
and many groundlefs and malicious Slanders
calt by the Prifoner upon his Majefty’s Govern-
ment 4 and in all thofe Converlations Plunkert
tells you, the Prifoner always ftil’d the Presender
King, *Twould be tedious particularly to re-
peat all thefe things to yous but there is one
thing I. can’t help obferving before I go off
from this Part of our Ewvidence, T mean, that
Plunkett told you more than once, that he was
to procure five and twenty old Soldiers for the
Service. Now that happens to be exatly the
Number, which is affign’d to each of the eight
Serjeants in the Prifoner’s own Scheme, which
was produc’d to you, and is a ftrong Cir-
cumftance in foppore of this Witnefs’s "Tefti-
mony.,

Gentlemmen, I have gone through the Evi.
dence of thefe Witnefles, and I beg leave to
fay they are, within the Meaning and Intention
of the Law, two Witnefles to prove the High-
Treafon charg’d upon the Prifoner ; and it hap-
pens in this Cafe, that they make out all the
particular  Overt-Aéts alledg’d in the Indict-
ment. Both Lyuch and Pluskert prove repeated
Confultations to levy War, to bring in the
Pretender, and the aftual liking of Men; and
Lynch alone proves the publifhing the treafon-
able Declaration, and that Part of the Defign,
which no Body can hear without the utmoft
Indignation, the feizing his Majefty’s Perfon,
I'rom henceforth I apprehend I may ke i,
that the Charge 1s proved ; though in Truth
we have gone a great deal farther in order to
put the Teftimony of thefe Witneffes beyond
all doubt, to deliver them from all poffible
Objections, and to demonftrate to you the Na-
ture and Extenfivenefs of this black Con'pi-
Facy.

The next Head of Evidence, is that of the
Papers 5 and notwithftanding the Jittle Cavils,
which have been urged againft them, thofe Pa-
pers are fully proved to be the Prifoner’s, and
by him deliver’d to Mrs. Mafon, It {tands thus;
Mrs, Mafon {wears, that the Prifoner deliver’d
thefe Papers to her in two Pacquets, as things
of great Confequence, feal’d up with his own
Seal, which Scal is now remaining, and appears
on the Covers. That fhe lock’d them up fafe
in her Trunk tlll they were feiz’d by the Mef
fengers, and out of that Trunk the Meffengers
took them. That fhe fet her Mark upon each
particular Paper, which appears to be the fame
Mark which by way of Experiment they would
have her to make in Court 3 and fhe {wears, that
thefe .are the very fame Papers which the Pri-
foner deliver’d to her with his own Hands,
The two Meflengers give you an Account, That
they feized thefe Papers at Mrs. Mafoi’s Lodg-
ings, on the twenty ninth Day of Seprember lalt 5
that they took the two Pacquets our of the

Trunk, the fame Seal being then upon the Covcrsz
an
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and that Mrs. Mafon was by, and mark’d them
‘0 their Prefence; that they likewife put their
Marks upon, and never deliver’d them out of
their Cuftody till they had fo done. Indeed,
Turner fays he left them in the Hands of Ius Fel-
Jow Meflenger, Spear, during the little "Time he
went for Mr. Stanyan, but Spear {wears they re-
ceived no Manner of Alteration during that
Space, and upon the whole, they fwear them to
be the fame Papers which they took out of the
Trunk. ‘_

Upon this Evidence, we apprehend we were
intitled to have read the Papers, without gving

any farther Account of them. }
T did mention to your Lordfhip the Cale of

my Lord Prefion, whi_c:h was not fo flrong ; Ibrq
he lying together with Abton in the Hold of
the Ship, upon the Ballaft, a Bundle of Papers
lay between them ; Aften took them up, and
put them in his Bofom, and therei they were
feizd 3 but being found together with my Lord
Prefton, thofe Papers, though the very Overts
A&s of the Treafon laid in the Inditment, were
read againft him upon that Proof only. Indeed,
after they had been read, the King's Counicl,
in order to give a farther Strength to onc or
two particular  Papers, entered into a Proof
of their being my Lord Preflow’s own Hand-
Writing,

The firlt Paper we call’d for was the Scheme,
a regular Plan of this Confpiracy ; and, Gen-
tlemeri, in order to prevent any Pretence of
Hardthip, before we read it, we call’d a Wit
nefs to prove this Scheme to be the Prifoner’s
T7and-Writing : It was Mr, Doyley, who fwears
lie verily believes it to be his Fand. He gives
you the Reafons of his Belief : That the Pri-
foner liv’d with him as a Clerk two or three
Years, not whillt he was a Boy, but after he
had ferv’d fome Time with another Mafter, had
been us’d to Bufinefs, and ¢ain’d a fett’d Hand;
and during that Time he frequently faw um
write. To fupport this farther, he tells you,
that he had tranfacted Bufinefs for Mr. Layer,
as his Agent, until about four or five Years
ago, and had received feveral Letters from him,
which he was fure were his, becaule he (M.
Dley) had done the Bufinefs requir'd to be done
by thofe Letters, and Mr. Layer had paid him
for it ; that he had compar’d his Paper call’d
The Scheme, with thofe Letters; that the Cha-
raGer of the Letters agreed with what the Pri-
foner wrote when he was Clerk to him ; and
the Chara@er of the Scheme with that of the
Letters.

But, Gentlemen, this Scheme is an Evidence
fo confiderable 1n it £If, and of that general
Confequence to this whole Caufe, that we went
farther yet, and, not out of any Neceflity, but
in order to give you abundant Satisfaction, we
proved it to be written by the Prifoner from  his
own Confeflion. Mr. Stenyan told you, That
the Prifoner upon his Ixamination before the
1 ords of the Committee of Council, where he

was prefent, and tocok Notes, confels’d this -

Scheme to be of his Hand-Writing.  The Coun-
f] for the Prifoner objected, This Queftion was
not dire@ly afk’d him (Is this your Hand?) and
confiquently he did not fay, & is sy Hond. *'11s
trae, that docs not appears can there be no o-
ther Ividence of a Conteflion, but fuch direct
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Queftions and Anfwers.. Upon the Examina-
tion, the Prifoner was afk’d whether he knew of
any Arms lodg’d in Wesiminsicr 2 He told the
Iords he knew of no Arms bemng lodg’d.
Thercupon this Paper was fhew’d him, and he
was afk’d, Tlow came you to write inn this Schesie
of your own Hand-TVriting, that there awere diis
lod’d 2 To this he made Anfwer it was a Mif
take, I fhould have writ Arms that fhould be
lodg’d.  Can any Thing be more plain than this?
It was fo evident that the Paper was written by
him, that it was taken for granted, and call’d his
Hand-Writing in the very Terms of the Queltion
probably he had confels’d it before the Clerks
were cali’™d in.  If 1t had not been his Iland,
would not the natural Anfwer have been, why
do you afk me about what is written in thac
Paper 2 I know nothing of it, it is not my
Hand-Writing 5 but mftead of that he admits
it without the leaft Difficuley, and takes upon
him to tell the Lords what he intended to have
written,

The Gentlemen on the other Side, endea-

vour'd to avoid the Force of this Evidence,
by this ingenious Turn —— I fhould bave <written
Aims that fhould be lodg’d (that 1s) If I had
wiit ity I fhould bave <written Aims that fliould be
lodg’d,  But I defire to be mform’d, if he did
not write it, how came he to know any
thing about it? How could he take upon him
to fay 1t was a Miftake 7 Whole Miftake ? He
admits 1t to be his own. So that this Obfer-
vation comes to nothing, and this Scheme, af-
ter all their Objeétions flands confefs’d, as
well as prov’d, to be Mr, Layer’s Hand-Writ-
Ing.
Upon the Foundation of all this Proof, which
I beg leave to obferve does fuppore all the other
Papers found in the two Pacquets, the Scheme
was read, and when it was read, it required
your ftricteft Attention; for in that Paper ap-
pears a regular Defign, form’d for the total
Deftru@tion of this Government, to be execut-
cd in the City of Lsadon, the Capital of the
Kingdom, This, if there was no more, fhews
a jult Foundation for what was lately declared
to us in a folemn Munner, That if this Con-
fpiracy had not been happily dete@led, we fhould
before now have feen that City involv’d in Blood
and Confufion, fuch appears to be the plain
Intent of it, The moft profligate of the Peo-
ple were to have Arms put into their Hands,
in order to fubdue and pillage the better
Sort,

Inthe furlt Place, the Tewer was to be feiz’d,
and a certain Officer c2peted 0 be upon the
Guard that Day, whe fhould be their Friend,
and let in the Party who were to make thems
felves of that Garnifon.  The Royal-Exchange,
being in the Heart of the C.ty, was to be the
Flead - Quarters of the Gencral; and another
Party was to plunder the Lamk,  So that to
give us a Talte of the Views of thefe Confpi-
rators, Spotl and Rapine were not, 1n the Exe-
cution of their Defign, to have been accidental,
procceding from the Fury of Action, the com-
mon Excyle for fuch Outrages, but a premedita-
ted avowed Part of the Mealures concerted before-
hand.

The Artillery was next to have been {eiz’d,

and a4 Stratagem is contrived to effect it And
{o
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And to crown all, his Majefty himfelf was to
he made their Prifoner : Horrid Refolution !
Colour’d indeed with the Name of Securing
his Royal Perfon from the Infults of the Mob ;
bur how thin a Pretence this 15, I need not
fpend Time to cxplain to you, fince the Wri-
ter of the Scheme himfelf has called it but a
Pretence.

The Scheme goes on, and the Confpirators
being fenfible how much our future Hopes, as
weli as our prefent Happinefs depend on the Pro-
teftant Succeflion in his Majefly’s Family, the next
Step to be taken, 15 to get his Royal Highnels
the Prince into their Power - A Prince at
Ricluond, deferibed under a Cane Name, but the
meanine of it 15 plain.  When all this appears,
how can the Counfel for the Prifoncr object, that
there is rot {ufficient Foundation to accufe therr
Cl. . deldy of compafling the Death of
the King 2 Could this have ended in any
thing ¢li. #  Or can any one dream, that either
of thofe precious Lives, I have now mentioned,
could have been preferved m the Hands of fuch
Mifcreants ? '

Gentlemen, having obferved thus much, 1n
fhort, upon the Nature of the Scheme, 1t will be
proper to take Notice to you, that as this Paper,
thus tully proved, is of it felt a ftrong Evidence,
fo it greatly corroborates and fupports the Teft-
mony of the two Witnefles, as to every oncof the
Overt-Alts charged in the Indiétment, and tallies
with 1t throughout,

This is true, as to the general Delign, but
appears molt remarkably in fome of the parti-
cular Facts,  The Proje&t lid down in the
Scheme for feizing the Zower 1s exallly the fame
with what Lyach told you the Prifoner commu-
nicated to him whilft they were viewing my Lord
Cadogan’s Houle : Zhat the Officer who fhonld be
upoir Duty there that Day inight be their  Friend,
aird favour the Defign.  In like manner, the
Circumitance of eight Serjeants being to have in
Readinefs twenty five Men a-picce, falls in with
what Pluikest the Serjeant fwore, that he was to
procure chat Number of old Soldiers to engage in
the Enterprize.

But there is one Obfervation arifing from a
Circumftance of time, which i1s extremely {trong,
in Confirmation of the Teltimony of the Wit-
neffes, and fhews manifeftly, that the Account
they aive, muft arife only from their Know-
ledee of the Truth of the Falt, and could not
poffibly be fram’d and modell’d to anfwer thefe
Papers; 1t 1s this, thar Mr. Layer, who was
taken up on the Information of Lynch and Plun-
kett, was actually in the Cuftody of a Meflenger,
and made his Efcape on the 19th Day of Sep-
lember Jaft 5 but thele Papers, which thus fall in
with and fupport the Fadls they {wear, were not
feized, as the two Meflengers acquaint you, till
the 29th of that Month 3 which 1s near ten Days
after.

Gentlemen, one would have thought there had
been no Occafion to go any farther

My Lord, I defire that the Prifoner may not
talk to the Jury, whilft I am obferving upon the
Evidence.

L. C. 4.  Sir, you muft not do it

Prifoner. My Lord, 1 did not {peak to the

Jury,
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Mr, Hungerford offers to fpeak.

1. C. Fust. Irell you, Mr, Hemgerford, 10 1s
not right 3 Mr. Layer hath made his Obfervations
to the Jury, and made his Nods, and fometimes |
have feen his Lips move,

Piifoner.  You can’c tell what I faid.

Mr, Sofl. Gen. I faw you tarn about to the
Jury, and faw your Lips move at the fame
Trme,

My Lord, T defire he may fltand up, and
look towards the Courty, which 1s his proper
Poiture,

Gentlemen, Twas fuying, that after this Scheme
had been produced, one would have thought the
King’s Counfel might fafely have refted it here.
Can any body doubt of this Treafon, and of
the Priloner’s Part in it, when he himfelf hath
thought fit to record the Confpiracy with his
own Hand, However, we did not leave it here:
But 1n order o give you entire Satisfaction how
deeply this Gentleman was engaged, whar a large
Share he had taken upon him, and how dangerous
and extenfive this Confpiracy was, we read feveral
other Papers, They confift of Lifls of the Names
of feveral Perfons, many of them Officers of the
Guards, and of the Army ; fome of them ge-
neral Lifts, others particular 1 For what Purpofe
thefe muft have been made vp or procured, by
a Perfon engaged in fuch a Delign, is extremely
plain.

My Lord, it hath been faid with great Jul-
tice, That this is not to be fo underftood, as
to bring any Imputation on the Gentlemen
pamed in thefe Lifls, T dare fay, that by far
the greater Number, if not all of them, are
Perfons of the utmoft Fidelity to his Majetty,
and Zeal for his Service,  Bur Men engaged In
fuch Defigns, who are plotting to overturn a
Government, muft weigh and calculwe  the
Strength of that Government, as well as ¢heir
own., They muft know who is to Le relied
upon, on one Side as well as che other, 2nd con-
fider who are fit to be applied to, and who not ;
therefore they muit take an Account of Perfons,
concerning whom they have no Hopes, as well
as thofe of whom they have Hopes. Thus it
was in my Lord Preffor’s Cafe ;5 he had got
Lifts of Ships, and of the King’s Ofhicers and
Troops: The meaning of it was well underftood
upon his Trial 3 the Court underftood it, and
the Jury underftood it, that he had procured
them, in order to the better Information of him-
felf and his Accomplices in the Conduét of that
Plot.

Gentlemen, in the next Place, feveral Let-
ters were read to you, which were alfo found
amongf{t the Papers depofited by the Prifoner
with Mrs, AMafon, You will remember on this
Occalicn, what Mrs, Aafonr fwore, that the Pri-
foner hath fome ume gone by the Name of
Iountaine, and gave Direflions to her, that if
any Letters came dire¢ted to Mr. Fountaine,
fhe fhould take them 1n, and dehiver them to
him. She tells you, a Letter did come direéted
to Mr. Fortntaines that fhe delivered it to the
Prifoner, who opened it, read 1r, and kept it
as a Letter for him 3 which wasan exprefs own-
ing of that Name, and feveral of the Letters
now produced are direted by the Name of Foun-

taine,

There
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There was found together with the Letters,
a Cypher, that is, a Lift of feigned Names for
Perfons and Things, which has been in Part
read 3 and in this Cypher the Cant Expreffions
made ufe of in the Letters are contained, and
the Perfons and Things fignified by them de-
cyphered in plain Words, Sir WWilliam Ellis (a
Follower of the Pretender, with whom it appears
the Prifoner had fettled a Correfpondence) 1s
there defcribed by the Name of Exflace, and
the 6rft Letter that was read, is fubfcribed with
that Name and direCted to Fames Fountane,
Efg; In that Letter Sir WVillian Ellis tells him

he 15 entirely of bis Opinionr as to the Method of car-

rying on the Manufalfory, and the procuring of

good Workmen is the jirft Step to be :m:.:{e.i Ma-
mufattory wanted fome Explanation, but it s fully
cleared up by the Word IWorkinen, which
follows. For look 1nto the Cypher, and 77&i-
ment ftands for Soldiers 5 fo that the Manufasiory
muft be fuch as 1t was fit for Seldicrs to work 1n,
He goes on and advifes him particalarly fo ges
fone of the ableft of Mis, Barbara Smith’s,  Bar-
bare in the Cypher means the Army ; fo the Advice
amounts to this, That in order to raife a Rebellion,

he fhould feduce fome of the ableft Soldiers of

the King’s Army. A Counfel, which is now
made very plain, the Prifoner has endeavoured
pun¢tually to follow, To encourage him in this,
he tells lim, that it will be very agreealle to all
concernedm—— particularly to M. Atkins. Now
according to the Prifoncrs own Iixplanation in
this Cypher, Atkins is one of the feigned Names
for the Pretender.

The next Letter is dated the 11th of Fuly laft,
fubfcribed N. €. and acknowledges the Receipe

o

of a Letter dated the 8th of AMay, with anothel
Letter inclofed, which the Writer fays was pre-
fently delivered to Mr. St. John, who took it ex-
treme kindly : Look into the Cypher, and it ap-
pears that Mr. 84 Feln s one of the fictitious
Names for the Pretendcr 5 fo that this Leter
fhews, that the Perion to whom it was written,
correfpond immediately with the Pretender him-
felf. But it feems Mr., St. Fobn did not <vell un-
derfland what velated to Mr. Burford, which the
Letter-Writer bopes may be foon cleaicd by an An-
Jwer. What this was which wanted Iixplanation,
1s 1n the Dark s but fo much we know, that in
the Prifoner’s Cypher, Burford ftands for the Earl
of Orirery.

There is another Letter dated the 27th of
May, 1n which the Writer tells Mr. Layer, that
their Friend bad bis Letter of the 22d of March,
and took wvery kindly the Care he bad taken of bis
little Concerns,  'Who is meant by that Friend,
whofe Concerns were the Prifoner’s Care, does
not certainly appear 5 but it is very natural to
think, itis the fame Perfon before called Arkins
and 8¢, Fobn. However, it feems their Friend
was agamn at a Lofs about certain Names
~—— Burford, ——— Steel, —— Digly, —— the
little Soldier, and Simons, which were not in his
Rental,

‘The Word Rental in Mr. Layer’s Cypher, is
the Cant Term for a Cypher ; and in that like-
wife are to be found the other Words, which his
Friend did not then underftand ; particularly
Simans, which is put there for the Lord North
and Grey. But if chat did not appear by the
Cypher, yet the Defeription which follows, would
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be enough to convince every Man in his private
Judgment who was meant by it He is of
the North, a Grey bair’d ancient Man, Cant Fx-
preflions plainly, which take in both the Tides
of that Noble Lord, The Letter-Writer adds,
that their Friend (the fame whofe Concerns were
taken Care of ) very well remembers this Perfon,
and bath a very particular Effcen aid Falue for
bisn, and that be is (in their Phrate) a very geed
Tenant, and a wery honeft Man.

Gentlemen, Some of the Papers were read to
you of a more cxtraordinary Nature than even
thele Letters 5 I mean the Notes figned Fanes R,
with the Pretender’s own Hand. Thefe are not
only one Evidence of the Plot, but a Purt of
the means by which it was to be effeéted 3 for
they appear to be Receipts framed with Blanks,
to be Alled up with Sunis of Money as Ocealion
offered, with a Promife of Repayment with In-
tereft,  Thefe were fome of the Ways and Means
for raifing Supplics out of the Pockets of fuch
People, as fhould be found weak and Glly, as
well as wicked enough, to advance Money on
fuch a Shadow of a Security, for fo flagitious
a Purpofe.  But they afk us who proves the Sub-
fcription to be the Pretender’s Hand 2 1 An-
fwer, It 15 certain that is not marerial 5 bue if
it were, we have it fufliciently from the Prifoner
himfelf.  The Account he hath thought fit to
give of them, you have heard from Mr. Dele-

faye 5 that he had written to his Correfpondent

Sic WWilliam Ellis, that if Sir Willicin could fend
him over fome blank Receipts under the King’s
own Hand (lo he called the Pretender) he be-
lieved they might be made ufe of for the car-
rying on his Caufe : That his Intention was to
have tried his Friends, and to have raifed Mo-
ney on thefe Receipts,  This fhews the Prifoner
received them as being figned with the Preteidei’s
own Hand 3 and fhews likewife the Ule intended
to be made of them; and it appears he had
the Confidence to juftify himfelf in this Pradtice,
by the like Mcthed having been taken by King
Charles the Second, juft before his Reftora-
{1on.

My Lord, thisis the Subftance of our Proof
as to the Papers and the Obfervations which
have occurred to me upon them ; and I will pre-
fume to fay, with great Submiffion to your Lord-
fhip’s  better Judgment and Obfervation, that
upon this Evidence, taken together with the
Teftimony of the two Witnefles, we might fafely
have trufted our Caufe to your Lordfhip’s Di-
rection, and the Confciences of the Jury. Bur
we went farther ftill, not becaufe we wanted it
to convict the Prifoncr, for we had already
done fufficient for that Purpofe, but in order
to give abundant Satisfaltion, not only to the
Gentlemen of the Jury, but to the whole World,
of the Reality of this Confpiracy in general, as
well as of this Man’s Part in it ; that they may
fee and be convinced of the jut Grounds there
were for this Profecution, and for the Treat
ment the Prifoner has met with. For this Rea-
fon it was, we call’d M., Stanpan, and Mr. De-
lafage to give an Account of his Confeflion,
upon his Examination before the Lords of the
Committee of Council ; and I apprehend; we
were properly and agreeably to the Rules of Law,
let mnto that Evidence.  'We have had the Judg-
ment of the Court upon that Point, therefore I

won’t
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won’t trouble your Lordfhip with any Authorities
for it, but rely upon that as the beit Authority,

Gentlemen, the Relation Mr. Delafaye and
Mr. Stanyan gave, was, that the Prifoner declar-
ed to the Lords of the Council, that he had been
at Rome in the Year 1721, and flay’d there fome
Time, and had feveral Conferences with the Pre-
tender in Perfon ;@ That in one of thofc Confe-
rences, he asked for fome Token or Credential,
in order to give him a Credit with the Party
when he returned to England , that 1t was not at
firft granted, but afterwards he put hus Requet
into this Shape, that the Pretender’s Wife (the
Queen he called her) would be pleafed to fland
Godmother to the Prifoner’s Child.  Some Time
was taken to confider of this Propofition, and
then Word was brought by Colonel Hay to the
Prifoner, that the would ftand Godmother to the
Child 3 and 1t was agreed, that the late Dutchefs of
Orsiend fhould reprefent her. Afterwards the Pre-
wender confented to be the Godfather, but Laycr
was to procure {fome Perfon to be bis Proxy.

What was then agreed upon, was followed by
the [alt.  When the Prifoner reurned Home,
and the Child was to be Chriften’d, he applied
to my Lord Orrery to reprefent the Pretender,
and to the lnte Dutchefs of Ormond, to repre-
fent the Drincels Sodiefks, The latter complied,
but my Lord Ojreiy declined the Service 3 and
thereupon the Prifoner made Application to my
Lord North and Gray, who was piecafed to ac-
cept it. The Child was chriften’d at Chelfea,
and my Lord Nerth and Grey ftood as Proxy
for the Pretender, and the late Dutchefs of Or-
wond for the Princefs Sobicfki; and the Prifoner
fud, they both were privy that they reprefented
thofe Perfons.

The Prifoner’s Confeflion likewife verifies every
material Circumflance of Lynel’s Ewvidence, as
to what paffed in the County of Zffew.  That
he was at the Green Adan with one Lyneh, and
there fhewed him the Heads of a Decluration
which he had drawn : "That they went from thence
to my Lord Nsith and Giey’s, and there the Pri-
foner prefented the Witels to his Lordfhipas a
very honeft Man, and a Perfon fit to be em-
ployed i feizing my Lord Cadogan; and after-
wards he faid, as a Perlon fit to be employed in
an Infurve¢tion,  That the Prifoner and Lyuch
lay at my Lord’s Houfe that Night, dined with
him at his own Table the next Day ; and that
the THealths of the Pretender, his Wife, and
Child, were drank by them after Dinner, and
the fame Healths were drank, and (if 1 under-
flood it right) begun by that noble Lord him-
felt,

There was a farther Circumftance fworn by
Mr. Stanyan, in which he is confirmed by Colo-
ncl Zufke, that at the Time Mr. Layer was ap-
prehended, a confliderable Quantity of Arms, and
about fifty Cartridges, made up with Ball, and
firted for the Ufe of Soldiers, were found in his
Houfe : And the Prifoner being afked, upon his
<xamimation, what he did with them ? He faid,
they were for his Ule, incafe there fhould happen
any Difturbance in the Nation.

‘The Priloner entered into an Examination of
the Gunimith, how he came by thefe Arms but
that 1s not at all material: In his Houfe they were
found, and he has confeffed they were intended
for his Ufe in Cale of a Difturbance in the Nation.
What Difturbance was there likely to happen, but
from himf{elf and his Accomplices ?

for High=Treafon,
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Gentlemen, The Prifoner’s Efcape out of the
Mefienger’s Cuftody, is another ftrong Circum-
{tance, In order to fly from Juftice, he ventured
to get out of a Window two Stories high, and
had the Fortune to meet with a Sculler, which
carried him crofs the Water into Sonthwark, When
the Witnefs firft endeavoured to ftop him, it ap-
pears he was in the utmoft Concern 3 begged of
him for God’s Sake to let him go, pretending it
was an Arreft; and then he pulled our of his
Pocket a great many Guineas, and bid the Wit-
nefs take what he pleafed, fo he would butlet him
go 5 but the Meflenger purfued him pretty clofe,
and he was retaken,

Gentlemen, this 1s a very material piece of E-
vidence to fhew the Guilt of the Prifoner. The
Law of Eugland fuppofeth Guile from Flight, and
though 1t was fmid, that any Man in Mr. Layer’s
Condition would have done the fame thing, if he
could 5 thatcan be true only in this Senfe, thatany
Man in his Condition, as to the Confcioulhefs of
his own Guilr, would have done it but 'an inno-
cent Perfon would never have brought that Impu-
tation upon himiclf, by endeavouring to efeape.

This 1s the Subftance of the whole Evidence
which has been given for the King againft the
Prifoner at the Bar, as well as T can recolleét it
and, Gentlemen, 1 perfuade my felf; when you
have confidered 1t ferionfly, you will be fatishied
that it makes good every part of the Indiétment.
But be that never {o ftrong, the Prifoner ought to
be heard againft it, and have a full Opportunity of
making his Defence: For if he hath a good De-
fence, either in point of Law or Fad&, to take off
the Force of this Evidence, God forbid that he

fhould fuffer by 1.
The Prifoner entered upon his Defence, and his

Counfel were pleafed to fet out with making
fome Obfervations upon the Cafe, as we had
left it

My Lord, they furft made an Objection in
Point of Law, that the Treafon, for which the
Prifoner is indicted, 1s compafling the Death of
the King, and one of the Overt-Adts laid is only
a Confultation to levy War, which they infilt is
not an Overt-Act of that Species of Treafon, nor
indeed any Treafen at all, becaufe the Words of
the Statute, 25 Zdw. I, import a War actually
levy’d 5 and for the Senfe of thofe Words, which
no body ever doubted of, fome ancient Freuch
Writers were quoted,

My Lord, I apprchend this Objection, if it
be one, is rather to the Indiétment than to the
Evidence, of which they know they may pro-
perly take Advantange in Arreft of Judgment.
But with great Submiffion to your Lordfhip,
there is no Weight in it either way. One can’t
help being a little furprized to hear 1t mertioned,
after thar Point has been eftablifhed by fo many
Refolutions, which at the fame time they tell us
they are aware of; and in the very laft Cafe of
High-Treafon, which was in this Court, I mean
that of Ker, Dorrel, and Gordsn, it was {olemnly
determined by the unanimous Opinion of all the
Judges, that a Confultation to levy War, in or-
der to ‘deftroy or depofe the King, 1s an Overt-
A& of High-Treafon, in compafling s Death.
This was the receiv’d Doftrine before the Reve.
lution, and it has been adhered to ever fince;
and though the A& of Reverfal of my Lord Rufe

fers Attainder has been mentioned, yet if that

were Jooked into, I dare fay, no Declaration will
ST be
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be found in it, contrary to this Determination. But
they go farther and object, that here is no Overt-
At at all proved to be done in the County of Ef-
fex5 and 1f fo, then whatfoever Proof there may
be of Facts done in Middlefcx, that will go for no-
thing, and the Prifoner muft be acquitted upon this
Indi¢tment.  And, my Lord, fofar I agree with
them, that unlefs we have proved one Overt-Act
at lealt to be done in Zffex, we cannot maintain
this Indictment.

In fupport of this Objection they would have
it, that the only Tranfaction in Effx, is what
patled at the Green Man, and the Whole of that
is reduced fingly to the Publifhing the Declara-
tion 5 and that, fay they, is not legally proved,
and 1f well proved, yet it is no Overt-Aét of
Treron. As to the Proof, they objet that the
Paper iclelf 1s not produced, and Parole Evidence
of the Contents of @ Writing is not to be ad-
mitted.

But, my Lord, I have given this an Anfwer
already, by oblerving that the Prifoner took
back the Paper, and kept it; fo that the Writ-
ing itlelf being proved to be in the Cuftedy
of the Party, we were entitled within the ordi-
nary Rule, to give Parole Fvidence of the Con-
tents, But, my Lord, tlis Declaration was a
Part of the treafonable Confultation then had ;
and fure I am, it would be the fineft Invention
to fecure certain Impunity to Plotters that ever
was thought of, if, inftead of difcourfing, the
Confultation fhall be carried on by Papers hand-
ed from one to another, and no body can be
convicted, becaufe the Paper is not to be found.
As to that Part of their Objection, that it is no
Overt-Aét of Treafon, one of the Gentlemen
thought fit to treat it in a ludicrous Manner.
“Twas only scading o FPicce of Paper, fuppofe they
had fung a Ballad,  That Gentleman will par-
don me, if Tfay, thofe Exprefiions did not be-
come this Occafion,  \n Accufition of High-
Treafon, which highly concerns the King and his
Government, is an Aflair of a ferions Nature ; and
1f he does but refle€t upon the Contents of that De-
claration, which the Witnefs related, he cannot
think 1t a Matter to be fported with.

Mr. Ketelbey was pleafed to fay, that this could
be no Overt-Act of Treafon, becaufe it was but
publifhinga Libel.  But furcly, that is very ex-
taordinary.  Publifhing of a Paper may amount
to one Crime or another, according to the Sub-
Jeft-Matter of that Paper ; and can it be a Que-
{tion at this Time of Day, whether the publifh-
ing a Declaration or a Book containing Arguments,
or offering Rewards directly to ftir up the King’s
Subjects to rife in Rebellion againft him, be High-
Treafon ¢ The treafonable Intent in this Cafe can-
not be doubted, and ’tis as certain that the Puabli-
cation 1s an Act; what is there then wanting
to make it Treafon ? But, my Lord, this has
alfo beenadjudged, and thercfore T won’t argue it

My Lotd, I have faid thus much about the
Pecliration tor the fake of follﬂwing the Gen-
tlemen, who are Counfel for the Prifoner, in their
Arguments ; but after all, their Foundation, which
is 1 Suppofition 'that there are no other Overt- Acts
proved in Effex, befides this of the Declaration, en-
tirely fails them 5 for your Lordlhip will inform
the Jury, that Lyuch depoled that whillt they ftaid
at the Green Man they did more than talk a litle
Politics, they confulted about the Projett of an
InfurreCtion, and the Prifoner there actually pro-
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pofed to him (befides what was contained in the
Paper) the Delign of leizing the King’s Perfon,
which are two other Overe-Adts laid 1n the In-
dictment.

Upon this, another Objection was raifed by
Mr. Ketelbey, which, if it holds, will go to the
Whole ; and that 15, thar we have but one
Witnefs, Lyich alone, to the Falts in Effex ;
and this Indi@ment mult fail, unlels there
are two Witnelles to fome or other of the O-
vert-Alts 1 the County where the Indidtment is
faud,

Bat, my Lord, that is not now to be difput.
ed. The Law is clearly fectied, chat on an In-
dictment for High-T'reafon, in compafiing the
King’s Death, if feveral Overt-Aéls are uid,
and fome of thofe Overt-Aéis are proved by one
Witnefs to be done in the County where the
Party 15 indifted, and others of them are
proved by another Witnefs to have been com-
mitted In a different County, that Evidence is
fufficient to mamntain the Indiétment 5 they are
two Witneffes of the fame Specics of Treafon
within the Meaning of the Law. So it was ex-
prefly refolved by all the Judges of the Airg's-
Beneby i the Cafe of Sir [ewiy Faire, which is
reported in Kefing 15, and that has been fince
followed by a Current of Authorities; the Cafe
of the five Jefuits, the Opinion of the Judges de-
livered to the Lords, upon the Trial of my Lord
Stafferd, 32 Cer, I and other Cafes.

My Lord, as this 15 cftablifhed by Autheri-
tics, {0 the Reafon and Necefiity of the Thing
is firong, becaufe otherwife treafonable Conful-
tations might eafily be carried on in fuch a Man-
ner, that no body could be convifted of them.
It would be but to lay the Scene npon the Con-
fines of feveral Counties, and take Care not to
confult with any two Perfons in the fame County s
then there could not be two Witnefes, and all
would be fafe.

I have done with their Obje&ions in Point of
Law, and fhall now endeavour to give fome
Anfwer to their Obfervations upon the Tudh.
And, Gentlemen, I think the Whole of thole
Obfervations may be reduced to one Flead, which
15, that it 1s highly improbable, that what the Wit-
neffes have fworn fhould be tive.  But upon that,
before I give particular Anfivers to what they have
offered, I beg leave to fay in general, that though
na doubtlul Cafe, where there is any Balancing
in the Proof, the Improbability of the Thing is a
Confideration of great Weight, yet where there is
plun and pofitive Evidence on one Side, not
weakened by any Counter-Evidence on the other
Side, the Objection of Improbability can be of littla
Force.

But to conlider this Improbability. They fay
s very ftrange, that Mr. Layer fhould be en-
gaged In fo dangerous an Undertaking, with
fuch Perfons as have fworn themfvlves to be his
Accomplices.  Tothis, T fay, *ts always {tranoe,
that Men fhould venwre to wruft one another
with fuch dangerous Secrets 5 but certain it is,
they often do; and as to the Witneffes in this
Cale, they are proved by the Prifoner’s own Evi-
dence, to be Perfons with whom he thought fic
to hold a Correfpondence.  How this great Con-
fidence was at laft created between them, - has been
accounted for by the Witnefles themfelves, in 2
very natural and probable Way, of which I have
already taken Notice,

Mr,
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Mr. Ketelbey infifted much upon the Impro-
bability of Plunkestr’s Evidence, in thofe Paris of
jt which concern Fames Plunkett and Fefferys the
Nonjuring-Parfon. That it is not credible, that
thofe two Men, whom Plunkett admits to be ab-
folute Strangers to him, fhould at firft Sight open
themfelves with fo great Freedom, to a Fellow of
his Degree on a Subject of Treafon. But that
will reccive this Anfwer.  Fames Plunkett and
“effreys were, asappears clearly from the Circum-
ftances, inthe Confidence of Layer. Layer had a
Contidence in Matthew Plunket? the Witnefs, on
the Recommendation of Major Barnwell, and
by Means of Layer, both Fasmes Plunkert and
Fefferys might be induced to truft him.  And
thus the Chain of the Correfpondence 15 made
compleat.

Another Objeftion was made to Plunkett, that
he had been guilty of a flat Contradiction mn his
Evidence. ‘That he frlt fwore, Fefferys told
him his Name upon his frft coming to him,
and afterwards that he did not know his Name
till he received the Letter from him about the
Prifoner’s being come to Town, But that Ob-
fervation was grounded upon a Miftake; for what
Plunkets {aid, was, that Fefferys did tell him his
Surname at firlt, but that he did not know his
Chriftian Name till he recetved the Letter, which
is very conhitent,

But the Counfel for the Prifoner were well a-
ware, that their Obfervations upon the Witnefics
could be of little Effect, if the Paper called the
Scheme found Credit; and therefore in the next
Place they attacked that as being incredible ; they
reprefent it as ridicilons and foolifh ——— The
Scheme of a Madman, <which conld never have taken
Place.

Gentlemen, as to this Obfervation, the Scheme
15 indeed fuch an one, as I hope in God could
never take Place any where, but in the Heads of
thofe that framed it. But with great Submiffion,
that is no Objection to the Credibility of 1t, pro-
vided it be proved. For the Conhideration is not,
how it now appears to you or to me; who look
upon it in a different Light, and on contrary
Principles from theirs 5 but the proper Confide-
ration is, what the Confpirators themlelves, with
recard to the Views and Principles they went
upon, might think of it. And, Gentlemen, in
that Light examine it, go through the feveral
Articles of it, compare them together, and you
will find them confiltent and cotcident 3 all the
Parts anfwering to one another. Every Quar-
ter of the Town 15 provided for Difpofitions
made of certain Numbers of Men, and Care
taken to preferve the Communication between
them by Watch-Words agreed upon for that
Purpofe. Thele Things make it plain, that it
was fully confidered by thofe who drew it, and
framed not at random, but upon Computation
of a Force of which they thought themfelves
affured. And what, though it {hould be admitted
to be extravagant, and not likely to fucceed ? If
that thould be given way to, as a certain Ob-
jection againft a Plot’s finding Crediz after it is
detetted, I am afraid it would be a fure Method
to make fuch Plots fucceed, or at lealt to {ecure
the Authors of them from Punifhment. Do but
itermix fome abfurd extravagant Parts in the Plan
of the Confpiracy, and then according to this
Reafoning 1t 1s below Notice, and muft be fuf-
fered to go on, or if a Stop be put to its Progrefs,
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yet 1t is incredible, and no body muft be believed
to be guilty of it.

But, Gentlemen, whatever Difficulties may be
raifed againft particular Parts of the written
Scheme, yet upon the Grounds and Suppofitions
which the Prifoner and his Accomplices proceeded
on, their general Defign might appear very fea-
fible to themfelves. For it is plain they had a
Dependence, however ill-founded, upon Difcon-
tents raifed in the Minds of the People, and on
corrupting great Numbers of the Army, which
would have dimintfhed the Strength of the Govern-
ment, and added to their own ; and after they had
made a Beginning here, it is proved that they cx-
pected Affiftance from Abroad.

The next Thing to be confidered, is the Te-
ftimony of the Prifoner’s Witneffes: And, Gen-
tlemen, you obferve that they have fcarce called
any Witnefles to contradiét the Fadts contained in
our Lvidence, for the People of the Houle at the
Green Man fay nothing to the Purpofe ; but all
their Iividence is applied to the Charaéter and
Credic of the Witnefles produced for the
King,.

As to that, T muft obferve to you, thatit is not
to be expected that Confpiacies and traiterous
Machinations of this Kind fhould be proved by
Perfons of the beft Charatters, *Tis neceffary
from the Nature of the Thing, that they fhould
be proved by thofe who have been privy to them,
and fuch Perlons cannot poflibly be of Charaéters
abfolutely unblemifhed, Therefore, to fay that
fuch Witnefles are not to be believed, is in effe
to fay that no Evidence of a Plot is ever to be
believed, which furely is an Argument that proves
too much. |

The firft Witnefs they called on this Head,
was my Lord North and Grey. 1 am heardily
forry to fee his Lordfhip here in his prefent Con-
dition upon this Occafion ; the rather, becaufe
it obliges me to obferve, that here are Circum-
ftances proved, which affet him; I will carry
it no farther, but fome Circumftances are proved
i this Caufe which do affet him, But what
is his Evidence ¢ Ihis Lordthip was called to
impeach the Charatter of Lyuch; and however
he may impeach his Charalter, I am fure he
fupports his Credit as to the Fafts fworn by
him. The Account his Lordfhip gave, was,
that the Prifoner brought Lyisch to his Houfe
at Epping, introduced Lynch to him, that he
was never acquainted with him before 5 but
upon Mr, Layer’s Introduétion, received him
civilly 5 and that Lywh came thither a fecond
Time.

Now, thefe are the very Fafls Lywch fwore
to, and confequently fo far my Lord fupports
him., Buct then, as to his Charader, his Lord-
fhip is pleafed to fay, that the firft Time Lynch
was there, he gave him a Hiftory of his Life s
and in that gave fo vile an Account of him-
felf, that when he came a fecond Time, his
Lordfhip would not give hirn a Lodging in his
Houfe, This, I think, was the Whole of my
Lord’s Teftimony ; and I can’t help remarking
upon it, that his Lord(hip gave no Accountatall
of any Bufinefs, which either the Prifoner cr
Lynech had with him, nor of any particular Occi.-
fion upon which the former introduced the Jaceer
to him. That was a Matter within his Lord-
fhip’s own Knowledge.

ST There
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There isa another Thing which is liede fur-
prizing ; and that 1S, _tlmt M. Lyich b'zing an
abfolute Stranger, as is confefled, to this noble
Lord, having the IHonour to be mtroduced by
a Friend toa Perlon of his great Quality, fhould
have fo little Regard to his Eriznd, or to the O-
pinion that Noble Lord was to conceive of him,
as at the firlt Interview to take fo odd a Way of

zing recommended, and give a moft vile, infa-
mous Chara&er of himfelt.  This 1s fomewhat
out of the ordinary Courle ; but youare told; thae
{0 1t was,

As to the other Witnelles to Lyvid's Credir,
notwithftanding their: Number, 1 apprehend
their Evidence, when duly confidered, will have
litetke Weighe, They were molt of them going,
to cnter inco particular Fadts 5 bue the Court
agteeably to the conftant Courfe of Ewvidence,
over-tuled them in 1ty and that you, Gentlemen
of the Jury, may be Ltsfied no Hardfhip was
done by this to the Prifoner, 1 will menuon the
Reon of it.  The Reafon why particular Fadls
are not to be given In Evidence to impeach the
Charafeer of a Wimnels, 15, that 1f i were per-
mitted, 1t would be umpoffible for that Witnes,
having no Notice of what will be fworn againft
him, to come prepared to give an Anlwer to it ;
and thus the Characters of Witnefles might be
vilified, without having any Opportunity of being
vindicated,

As to the Witnefles themfelves, fome of them
fay, they know no Il of Lyuch ; many of them
have known him but a little while 5 fome of them
give an Account of Declarations made fince this
Profucution  began, and how fairly they were
drawn from hiun don’t appear 5 and for fome o-
thers of them, I fubmit it to the View and Con-
fideration of the Jury, trom their Habit, and the
Appearance they made, whether they oughe noz
chemlelves 1o have brought Wimefls o fupport
st own Credi,

One appears plainly to be miflaken, and that
t, Dargy; he was atked how long he had
kaown Lyich 2 and, T think, he faid he knew
him m Laudon lalt Winter 5 now it appears
that  Lyweh came into  Liglawd but in April
latt,

Gentlemen, 1 the nexe Place they called Wit-
nelles to Plenbett’s Credit, and there the fame
Thing befell them as in the Cafe of Lyuch ; for
Mujor Barmzell their firft Witnefs on that Head,
though he 15 willing enough to give him an
I Charaéter, yet he contirms feveral of the
Fafls  which the other fwore, and gives cx-
aclly the lame Account of the Refcuing the
Goods, and the Circumitances of  Plandets’s be-
coining acquainted with Layer, which he gave,

Mius. Chi! ! iikewile fupports Plunkett as to the
Circumflance of his carrying her Hufband to the
Prifoner’s Tloul, and the Prifonet’s refufing 1o
fee him.

As to Mis, Mafes, they have taken 2 great
deal of Pains to prove her a very ill Woman.
What fhe 15, or what thofe Perfons are, whom
they have called to her Credity, we can’t tell ;
but fo much appears even from their own Wit-
nefles, that fhe s one with whom Mr. Layer
thought fit to converfe, and thercfore ’tis not
improbable that fhe might be entrufted by him ;
and 1t is from fuch only as he thought fit to con-
verfe with and entruft, that we can have any Dif-
covery. ‘Fhe Prifoner has, indecd brought two
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or three Women, who talk very fuft, and feen
very angry with her 5 and one of them tells the
Tury v o Scolding Way, that /e dow’t care wwher
Jhe fovs g does 5 another, that fhe wonld tale g-
way aiy Mai's Life for the Value of a Tarthing
and fuch Kind of vehement Expreflions. It is
futhcient to fay this, that People who tlk thus
loofely and vaffionately upon their Oaths, rather
bring a Suipicion upon their own Credir, than
upon the Creditof thofe againft whom they fwear,

But Gentlemen, 1f they had brought a much
ftronger Iividence againft the Charaders of the
King’s Witnefles than they have done, what
would 1t have availed them ? Does this Cafe
depend upon the Characters of thefe threc
Witnefles 2 Tt cannot be pretended that it docs,
Let their Characters be what they will, their
Credic in this Caufe is undeniably fupported ;
lupported as to feveral material Facts, by the 1.
vidence for the Prifoner, but moft ftrongly by
the Papers ; againft which, I apprehend nothing
has been faid to ke off their Force.  If thofc
Papers are not genuine, how fhould the Notew
fioned with the Pretender’s Hand, which the
Prifoner recetved from Sir William Ellis, come
to be amongft them ? How fhould this Scheme,
proved to be of Mr. Layer’s own Hand-Writing,
have been there 2 The Prifoner, 1 muft own, did
call one Wienels, Bewset, who was his Clerk, and
1s now his Sollicicor, to fwear he believed the
Scheme not to be the Prifoner’s Hand,  But it
happened with Bewnet, as it did with {everal others
of therr Witnefles, that though he is willing o
carry his Belief as far as he can, that this s not
his Mafter’s Hand ; yet he is forced to acknow-
ledge another Matter, which @il verifies the Pa-
pers contained in thele Pacquets to be his Mafter’s
Papers @ For being afked of whofe Hand-Writing
one of them was, he {vears it was written by him-
felf for the Prifoner, and by his Diretion.  This
comes out of the Mouth of his own Witnels, and
confirms Mrs. Mafoi’s Teltimony, that thefe Pa-
pers cane from Mir. Laver.

But over and above all this, you have the Pri-
foner’s own Conteffion, proved by two Gentlemen
whofe Credit 1s beyond all Difpute 5 and certainly
the Prifoner muft be allowed to be a good Wit-
nefs againft himfelf,

However, we tThall not leave the Credit of our
Witnefles fingly upon thefe Oblervations, though
I think we might fafely do it 5 but fhall endea-
vour to take oft any ill Impreflions their Evi-
dence may have left upon you, and vindicate their
Characters 5 and that, not by fuch Witnefles as
fome of thole produced for the Prifoner were,
who, I obferved betore, might ftand in need of
Witnefies to fupport their own Credit, but by Per-
fons of undoubted Reputation, who will fatisty you
that thetr general Character is fuch, that they very
well deferve to be believed by you.

I have now done with repeating and obferving
upon the Lvidence on both Sides; and I beg
leave to infift upon it, that we have fully made
good what was opened to you in the Beginning of
this Canfe, that in general there has been a horrid
Conlpiracy carried on, in order to over-throw our
happy Conftitution, and to deprive us of all the
Bleflings we enjoy, and promife ourfelves, under
Lftablithiment, in his Majefty and his Proteftant
Royal Family.  The Part the Prifoner hath acted
inthis fuily appzars to you, and it appears to be a
very confiderable one,

It
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1t has been faid, indeed, that he is but an m.
confiderable Man, of no Rank or Fortune fit to
(iftain fuch an Undertaking, That Obfervation
may be true 5 but fince 1ts plain he did undertake
it, that, joined with the other Circumftances
pruvcd in this Caufe, ferves only to demonitrate,
ehat he was fet on work, and fupported, by Der-
fons of greater Abilities for fuch an Enterprize,
And, Gentlemen, this is the moft affecting Confi-
deration of all.——But I would not, even In this
Caufee of your King and of your Country, fay any
thing to excite your Paflions 3 I choofe rilther t0 ap-
peal to your Judgments 5 and to thofe I fubmit
the Strength and Conequence of the Evidence you
have heard,

My Lord, Ibeg Pardon for having taken up
fo much of your Time; I have but one Thing
to 2dd, and that is, humbly to beg of your
Lordfhip, for the Suke of the King, for the
Sake of Myllf, and for the Sake of the Pn-
foner ac the Bar, that it I, through Miftake
or Inadvertency, have omitted or mufrepeated
any thing, or laid a greater Weight upon any
Part of the Evidence, than it will properly
bear, your Lordfhip will be pleafed to take No-
tice of it, and fet 1t right, that this whole Cafe
may come before the Jury in its true and jult
Light.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Tt is fo late, that it will
be incxcufable in me to trouble your Lordfhip
with any thing by Way of Reply, pecully
fince Mr. Sollicitor General hath done it lo fully,
We fhall only beg leave to call a few Wimeles to
the Credit of the King’s Witnefes.

M. Ketelbey. 1 fhall not take up much of
your Lordfhip’s Time; cfpecially fince your Lord-
fhip and the Court have been entertained fo well
and fo long by Mr. Sollicitor Generaly ac Jeaft
two Hours, as [ have obferved by my Wach ;
but twas impoffible for me to think him te-
dious, though fo late ar Night, and efpecially
fince his Conclufion is exactly agrecable to the
Conclufion of a late celebrated Sollicitor General »
on a like Occafion.

Mr. At Gen, We muft beg leave to call fome
Witnefes we have, who will fupport the Credit
of Mr., Lynch and Matthew Plunkett.

Mr. Pernon {worn.

Mr. Sers. Chefbire. Do you know Mr. Lynch ?

Fernon, Yes.

M. Serf. Chefhire. What Account do you give
of him ?

Vernon. 1 keep a Tavern at the Swan and Rui-
ser in Finech-lane, this Gentleman hath frequented
my Houfe thefe four Months every Day, till he
was in Cuftody 3 he hath been a very good Cul-
tomer, and naid me honeftly.

M. Serj. Chefbire, Do you know the Prifoner
at the Bar ? Have youfeen Mr, Lyueh and him in
Company together at your Houfe ?

Vernon, Yes ; I have feen them twice m Com-
pany together at my Houle.

Mr. Ketelbsy. How long hath he been your
Cuftomer ?

Verien,

Months.

Mr. Ketelbey, About four Months 3 Did he
fpend his Money plentifully and freely

Verngn, Yess fome Parcof it T have had fince
he hath been in Cuftody.

From the Beginning, about four
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Mr. Ketelbey, FHow much was he m your Delx
before he was in Cultody ?

Perion, Ten or cleven Shillings,

Mr., Aetelbey. How long had he been in Cutlody
before he paid you ? |

Ferneir.  Not long,

Mr. Hungerferd, He had the Filt-Fraits of his
being in Cultedy 5 he had fome Moncy, and fo
he paid you your Reckoning,

Mr. Serf, Pergelly, We nake ity that Mr, Ferien
proves, that Layer and Lynch were converfint
together,

Capt. Malthus fivorn,

Mr, Serj. Chefire. Do you know Srephen
Lyneh ¢

Malthus,  Yes,

Mr, Serj. Chefaire. How long have you krown
him ?

Malthus,  About Nine Years, I knew him
frft; when he was a Merchant at the Canaries,
I traded with him feveral Times, feveral Times
I was configned to him, and I have feen him at
Home,

M. Serj. Chefbire. What Account can you give
of his Behaviour ?

Malthus, He always behav'd himfell very well,
[ think.

M, . Geinn Do you think he would {wear
fallly to take away a Man’s Life ?

Melthus, No, I don’t think he would,

Mr. Ketelley. How long 1s it fince you have
been acquainted with him?

Malthus, Nine or ten Years,

Mr, Ketelbey, How long is it fince your Lt

Acquaintance ?
Malthus, About four Months.

Mr. Ketelbey. What Diftance of Time did there
ufe to be between your feeing of him ?

Melthus, 'I'wo or three Years, every Time I
came home,

Mr. Keteliy,  Doth he owe you any NMo-
ney ¢

Malthus, No,

Mr. Ketolby, Would you oult him with
Money ?

Malthus, He never afkt me.

Mr. Ketelbey. Your Witnefs we may afk as to
Particalars, Did you know his Aunt there, at that
Time?

Malthus, No.

Mr. Ketelbey. Did you know any thing of his
Behaviour ?

Malthus, 1 never knew an 1l Character of hiny
in my Life,

Capt, Arnold fworn,

Mr. Serj. Chebire. Do you know Siiphen
Lynch ?

drnold,  Yes.

Mr. Serf. Chofbire, How long have you known
him ?

Apneld, *Ths fourteen Years ago.

Mr. Ser. Chefbire. You have been acquainted
with him fince.  What Account do you give of
his Charatter ? Do you think he would forlwear
himielf ?

Arnold.  No. _

Mr, Serj. Chefbire, Do you take him to be a
Man of Credit ?

Arold, 1 nevar had any Dealings with
hirn,

* M, Finch, at Cols Sidney's Trial,
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Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Would you have trufted him
with five hundred Pounds ?

Mr. Ketelhey. Would you traft him with five
Shillings ¢

Arnold,  Five Shillings is a {mall Sum.

Col. Mannng lworn.

M. Serj. Chefbire. Do you know Matthe
Plunkett 2

Col. Maining. Yes.

Mr, Serj, Chefbire.  Tlow long have you known
him ?

Col. Maniing. Upwardsol ten Years,

M. Serj. Chefbire. What Credic hath he ? Do
you take him to be an honelt Man !

Col. Manning. He behaved himielf well, and
like an honeft Man.

Mr. Seij. Chebire. Do you think he wouid for-
fwear hinfelf ¢ |

Col, Mamiing. No, I believe not.

Priforer. Have you and 1 had any Difcourfe
about this very Plenketz 2 And did not you tell me

he was a Scoundrel ?

Col, Manning. No, I did not.

Mr. Hungerford. Did not you give him a bad
Charaéter to Mr. Layer ¢

Col. Manning. No, I did not.

Prifoncr. Do you mean thus, that he behaved
him{elf very well, asa Soldier 2 ¥What is that as
to his Character in general ?

Col. Manuing, 1 know no i1l Character of him
while he was with me.

Mr. Ketelbey. Did you never hear any thing in
relation to Sir Daniel Caroll, that he made a wrong
Demand upon him ?

L. C. Fuff. If he made an unjuit Demand, will
he theretore be perjur’d ?

M. Kefelbey. What have you heard about that
Affair between Mr. Plunkert and Sir Daniel Car-
roll 2

Col. Manuing, 1 have heard Mr. Layer fay——

Mr. Ketelber, Did vou never hear any Body
clfe fpeak of him 2 I .k youabour making this
Demand upon Sir Daneel Carroll, what you know
of 1t ?

L. C. Fuff. 1never heard any thing like 1t.

Mr. Keteliey, My Lord, we apprehend we
may crofs examine, as to Particulars, a Perfon
whom the other Side produces as a Witnels o
Character.

Prifeuer. Did not you afterwards, in Difcourfe
wich Mr. #/bite, mention it again with relation to
this of Sir Daniel Cariell ¢

Col. Manzizg, 1 deny it

Prifoncr. Did you defire me not to examine
you ¢

Col. Manning. No, I told you I had nothing
to lay in relation to Plukess’s Character.

Me, Hlungerford. Ler im alone, I would not
afl him any more Queltions,

Col. Mamuing. Why, let him alone ?

Mr. Hagerford. T would not have him examine
you any further.

Col. Manring.  You are very civil,

Mr. Hungerford. So 1 am, to give you no fur-
ther Trouble,

Major Hainel {worn.

Mr, Serj, Chefbire. Do you know Matibew
Plunkett ?

Maj. Hwnel, T have known him thele feventeen
Yecars,

Mr, Serj. Chefhire. What Character hath
he ? |
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May, Hemel,  He was then 2 Drummer in
the Regiment, and always did his Duty well ;
I never heard him complained of 5 he always
had a good Charatter 5 he went from Ireland to
Spain,

Mr. Hengerford. You {peak to his military
Condluct.

Maj. Hamel, 1 know of no other.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire.  You fay he always had a
oood Charalter,

Ma. Hamel,  Yes, he always had.

Captain Crofly fworn.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. Do you know Serjeant
Plunkett ¢

Cap. Crefly.  Yes.

Mr. Seryf. Chefbire. How long have you known
him ?

Cap. Crofly. Three Years.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. What Character had he for
that Time ?

Cap. Crofby. 'Whillt I knew him, he bore 2

good Charalter,

Mr. Sery. Chefhire.  Did you hear any Il of
him ¢

- Cap. Crgfly. Not during the Time that I knew
nim.

Mr. Ketelbey., Where was the Regiment at that
Time ?

Cap. Crgfly. It was in Town, about half a

Year ago.

Mr. Ketelbey. Were you not of the fame Regt-
ment ¢

Cap. Crofly. We were.

Mr. Serj. Chefbire. We won’t give your Lord-
thip any further Trouble,

Mr. Keteldey.  And we apprehend we have no
Occafion to give your Lordfhip any further
Trouble, by way of Reply.

Mr, att. Gen. My Lord, as to my Lord
North and Grey, we can prove he attempted to
get away, and was endeavouring to go to Fianee,
and was takenin the Jfz of J7ight 5 and that when
the Prifoner was feized, he fent a Meflenger to
give my Lord North Notice of it,  Thislaft was
confefled on his Examination, and we can prove
it,

Mr. Ketelbey. 1 mult fubmit 1t to your
Lordfhip, whether his Examination can be
admitted as Teftimony, fo as to affe& a Third
Perfon.

L.C. Just. It is not worth difputing.

Gentlemen of the Jury, This is an Indi¢tment
againft Mr. Layer, the Prifoner at the Bar, for

High-Treafon, The Treafon with which he
ftands charged, is the compaffing and imagining

the Death of the King: The Overt-Alts that

are laid i this Indiément, as Evidence of this
Treafon, are feveral 3 firft of all, thet he did
meet and confult, advife and agree, to levy War
againft the King ; the fecond is, that he did
publifh a feditious and traiterous Writing, ex-
citing and encouraging the People to an Infur-
rection, and offering Rewards for that Purpofe ;
the third 15, that he did engage in a Defign to
fet the Pretender on the Throne ; the fourth,
that he lifted Soldiers againft the King ; and the
laft, that he did confult and agree, to take, feize
imprifon the King : Thefe are the feveral Overt-
Acts that are Inid in the Indi@ment of the Trea-
fon, that is, the compafling and imagining the
Death of the King,  Gentlemen, I muit tell you,
betore I go on to lay before you, and obferve on

the
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the Evidence, what the Law 153 and I muft tell
ou, that the Law is undoubtedly fo, if a Man IS
charged with Treafon, in compaffing and imagin-
ing the Death of the King, there muft be an O-
vert-At of that Treafon proved in the County
where he is indi€ed ; and in the next Place, if
there be fuch Overt-A&t in that County, he may
be charged with any Overt-Act of the fame Species
of "T'reafon in any other County whatfoever. This
hath been frequently refolved and agreed, and was
hardly ever made a Queftion. I obferved in the
Hands of one of the Counfel, and he took Notice
of it, that he had the Trial of Sir 7illianm Perkins
he could not but obferve there laid down by my
Lord Chief Juftice Holt, if Evidence be given of
Treafon in one County where the Indictment 1s
Laid, he may be charged with any Overt Acts of
the fame Species of Treafon in any other County
whatfoever, The Law being fo, I will, 1 the
belt manner I can, fet out the Martters that have
been given in Evidence, on this long Lvidence,
in the cleareft Light that I can ftate the kxami-
nation, the ObjcCtions that have been made,
and the Obfervations that are proper to be made
upon 1t.

'T'o maintain this Indidtment, the King’s Coun-
fel have produced feveral Witnefles, The firlt
Wietnels is Mr. Lyach; the fecond Wimnels 15
My, Pluskett 3 all the other Evidence hath been
offered to confirm the Evidence given by thele
two Witneffes.  Asto M. Lyich, he tells you
how he came to the Acquaintance of Mr. Layer s
that he was an intimate Acquaintance of Dr.
Muiphey, and Dr. Afurphbey recommended him
to Mr. Layer 5 being fo recommended, he had
[everal Meetings with Mr. Layer in Middlefex,
at the Griffu-Tavern, and in Holbourn, at the
Coftle-Tevern, and 1 think, at Sewthampton-Build-
TS,

He tells you, at thefe feveral Meetings 1t was
declared, that there was to be a Rifing, and
it was thought neceflary, to make this Riling
the more cffeétual, that my Lord Cadsgan, the
Commander in chief of the King’s IForces fhould
be feized.

Mr. Layer faid to Mr. Lyach, he was looked
upon as a Perfon proper for the Undertaking, and
he declared that he was willing, and faid, if that
was the Opinion of thole concerned m the Affair,
he would undertake to do 1t: After this, they
went to my Lord Cadsgan’s Houle, to view the
Houfe, and the feveral Avenues about the Houfe s
and after they had taken this View, Lyneh declarcs
his Opinion, that 1t was feafible, and he would
undertake to do it.

After he had given you an Account of what
happened at the feveral Meetings in Middlefex,
then he comes to what was done in the County
of Effex : He tells you Mr. Layer came to him,
and afked him whether he would ride out with
him to take the Air ; heagreed to 1¢ 3 they both
went out of Town together 3 he faid, that as they
were going along, Mr. Layer told hun his In-
tention was to go to my Lord Neith and Grey’s;
he fays, they went forward with thar Intention,
but before they came to the Green-Mei at Lay-
ton-Stone, they thought 1t would be too late be-
fore they got to my Lord North and Gres for
Dinner, therefore they thought proper to halt
at the Green-Man, and take a Refrefhment there,
He tells you, they did ftop there at the Gieen-
Man, and at that Time Mr, Layer did repeat
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the Difcourfe of the Rifing that was intended to
be ;5 he faid, my Lord Zownfbend, and my Lord
Carteret and Mr. Walpole were to be feized, 2
Party were to be fent to feize the King ; and that
a Scheme was Jaid for feizing my Lord Cadegan,
and that 1t was propofed as a proper Time to put
this 1n Joxecution at the Breaking up of the Camp.
He faid, when he was mentioned, at firft he made
fome little doubr, whether that was a proper Op-
portunity 3 wich that Mr, Layer told him, pray
confider with your felf, if you do not think this
practicable, will you propofe fomething clfe, and
we will alter our Scheme 2

He fuith, acthis fame Time Mr. Layer puiled
out of his Pocket a Declaration, purporting an
Exhortation and LExcitation for People to rile, and
take up Arms againft the King, and Rewards of-
fered for that Purpofe,

Afterwards they went tomy Lord Noirh and
Groy’s, and that Mr. Layer introduced him to his
Lord(hip, as his Friend 5 that they were avilly
and kindly received, fupped there, lay there that
Night, and dined there the Dayafer. This s the
Evidence given with relation to what was done 1n
the County of Effex 5 and it tus Relation be true,
no doubt there is a good Overt-Act proved upon
him in the County of Zjfex, and confequently the
Indictment is well laid in £ffex, and then the k-
vidence in the County of Aiddlcfex will bea pro-
per Yvidence againtt the Prifoner.  But as to this

‘vidence of Mr. Lyuch, they fay for the Prifoner,
Mr. Lyuch is not to be believed, that he s a vile
profligate Wretch, and no Credit is to be givin
to him, though upon his Qath 3 and 1t mutt be
admitred the Evidence that hath been given for
that Purpole, by a great Number of Witnefics,
will be proper for your Confideration : But you
will confider, in a Cafe of this Nature, if you
arc to expect Witnefies without Exception, it 1s
impoffible to have any Evidence to convid a Man
of High-Treafon 3 no body will engage 1n fuch
an Alftair, that 1sof anice Credit and Reputation,
and thercfore it is not to be expetted 3 for if it
be, itis and will be impofiible to convict any Per-
fon of Treafon.

Bat then you will confider, although Credit is
not entitely to be given to a Man of 1}l Repute,
yet 1f he 1s fupported 1o his Lividence thathe gives
by other Evidences, you will confider whether that
will not remove all Sort of Objections as o hus
Character.,

As to the Overt-Act of publifhing the Decla-
ration, that is fupported beyond Contradiction ;
for it appears in his Lxamination before the
Lords of the Council, when he ts afked, whe-
ther he ever faw the Doclaration ? He fays, he
never faw any but one, and that was drawn by
himiclf.

Piifoner, Ny Lord, what Mr. Stanyan fays, 1
believe, he did not fay that I confefled that it was
drawn by me.

L. C. Fuff. You muft not interrupt me while
I am directing the Jury.  You have behaved your
felf intemperately hitherto, but you muft not in-
terrupt mey, I can’t bear it The Subfltance of
what Mr, Stanyan fatd is, that when 1t was de-
manded of you, whether you had feen the Decla-
ration, you faid, you had feen none but a rough
Draoght that was drawn by your felf,

Pitforcr, 1 beg your Lordfhip’s Pardon, Mr.
Stanyan is here in Court,

L. C, l;?:{:?..
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L.C. Fuf. Tshein Court? Let him be afked
the Queltion again,

IV% S.:‘mgymf My Lord, I believe I did fay,
that Mr. Layer did confefs, that 1t was the Heads
of a Declaration which he had drawn himfelf.

L. Q. Fut. Now, Sir, after this, I cxpect not
to be interrupted by you any more, _

This being the Matter, he doth at the fame
Time confefs, that "That was the Declaration which
he had fhewn to Mr, Lyneh at the Green Man, on
the Way as they were going to my Lord Norsh
and Grey’s.  So that Part of this Evidence 1s fup-
ported by Mr, Layer’s own Confeflion,  As to the

other Part, that he did confult and agree to levy
War, confider, that he confefled betore the Coun.

cil, that he did go to the Green Man, and there
fhewed the Declaration to Mr. Lyuch 3 whether
that doth not give Credit to what the other faith,
That he went to the Gicen Alan, and that chere
they talked of the InfurreCtion, and the levying
of War; and then went to my Lord Nerth and
Grey’s, with this, that he recommended Mr. Lyieh
to my Lovd North and Grey, as afit Perfon to feize
my Lord Cadogan, and 1o be concerned in the In-
jurreétion.

Gentlemen, This 15 not the only Matter by
which he is fupported in this Evidence, that the
Prifoner defigned an Infurrection, and to levy
War againfl the King 5 but he confefled before
the Council, that he went to Rowie, had two fe-
veral Confetences with the Pretender, ond was
very kindly received by him ¢ Fe faid he afked
the Pretendery 1t he would give him any  Creden-
tials that might recommend him to his Friends
in England 3 that was objected to, and not com-
plied with; but then he afked a particular Fa-
vour, that the Preteader’s Spoule would ftand
Godmother to his Chuld s that 15 granted 3 and
the Pretender himidf is willing to ftand God-
father.

Afterwards, when he cuurns into England, he
confidered of proper Proxics to reprefent the Pre-
tender and his Spoule 5 and afking my Lord Oy-
rery, he refufed him ; then he afked my Lord
Noith and Giey, who conlented : My Lord Noieh
and Grey ftood as Proxy for the Preteider, and the
Ducchels of Orinond as Proxy for the Preteuder’s
Wie.

He tells you, at this Time when he was at
Rome, he had told Sw William Ellis, it would
be of great Service if he could have a Lund of
Credit to raife Moncy with,  How muft that be?
Why, luth he, Jtme bave blank Receipts fign-
cd by the Pretender himlelt's and accordingly he
had.

This, he tells you, iswhat happened at that Time.
Now the Lvidence given by Mr. Lyuch, being of
an Inlurrection in Favour, and for the Service of
the Pictendeir, when Mr, Layer owns he had two
Conferences with the Pretender, and was receiv’d
fo kindly by him, and had fuch particular Marks
of his Favour ; confider whether this doth net
fupport the Lvidence which is given by M.
L_}‘Hf.‘/:?.

The next Lvidence 1s Mr. Pluikeit 5 he tells
you how he came recommended to Mr., Layer
by onc Myjor Barmwell, on this Occafion. He
tells you, Mr. Layer’s Goods were in - Exccution,
and he was employed by Major Barimwell to ref-
cuc them g accordingly he went and fetched &
Couple of Soldiers, got into the Houfe, drove
out the Officers, and refoued the Goods, By
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this 1t appears, that Mr. Pluskett was a bold
daring Man, fit to be employed on fuch an Qc-
cafion, and they aflign that as a Reafon, which
anfwers the ObjeCtion made,  Saith Mr, Layer,
how came 1t to pals, that when I had never feen
this Man, that I of a fudden fhould have fuch
a Confidence as to truft him in an Affair of this
Nature ¢ In anfwer to that, it is faid, he had
donc him a fingular Service before, he had done
a bold A&, he had got fome Grenadiers and
refcucd  his Goods when they were taken in Exe-
cution 5 and hkewife Fames Plunkett had given 2
Character of him, that he looked upon him as an
honeft Man, and therefore recommended him to
Mr. Layer.

Then he tells you, that Mr. Zayer faid they
wanted a Man to ferve on this Occafion 5 that
Sames Plunkett talked of Officers, but we don’t
want Ofhicers fo much as we do brave Serjeants, old
Soldiers, fuchas will be ready and qualificd to fup-
port the Mob, and to difcipline and head them ;
thefe are the Men we want, can you get fuch as
thefe? Such as you are, that will be able to difci-
pline the Moband put them in Order. 1 told him
(fays the Witnefs Pluirkess) T would do my Endea-
vours, and accordingly I advifed himy that I had
procured twenty five ready for the Service; he
defired to have Lifts of their Names, and the Pla-
ces of thetr Abode, that fo he might know where
to fend to them upon Oceafion,

Now the Objection to this Evidence being only,
how comes it to pals that a Man fhould be
trufted with fuch a Secret, and this on the frft
Sight or Acquaintance ? 'Why, faith he, T had
been employed before, and had fhewn myfelf
faithful on another Occafion, and did ferve him
in refening his Goods, when they were feized
upon 1n Execution, and Faswes Plunket! recomn-
mended me.  This is the Evidence of Matthew
Plunketty, and of Plunkett fwears true, if he was
defired by Mr. Layer to procure and lift Men for
the Service of the Pretender, and he fays and de-
clares he did do it, then, if this Evidence is to be
credited, the Prifoner at the Bar is guilty of the
Treafon wherewith he ftands charged : But il
they rely upon 1t, and hope you will not give Cre-
dit to the Witnefles.  You hear what hath been
aniwered by the Counfe] for the King, and Iobferve
to you now, that though here was fuch a Charge
againfl the Witnefles, the King’s Counfel have
produced feveral Perfons that had good Afpe@s,
and feemed to be Men of Reputation, who fay,
they know them, and believe them to be Men
of Reputation,

Then, Gentlemen, the next Thing infifted on
is, that the Lvidence given by Lyuch and Plus-
kett 1s fupported by the Papers that were feized
in Mrs. Mafow’s Cuftody.  Confider how that
Matter ftands ; Mrs. Mafon tells you, that Mr.
Layer brought two Pacquets of Papers fealed up
to her, and told her, they were Love-Letters ;
the fays, fhe was defired to keep them by the
Prifoner 5 and accordingly the did keep them
for him 5 and you have it afterwards from the
Witncfles, who have been produced, and againt
whole  Credit there is no Exception, that having
2 Warrant againft Mrs. Cock and Mrs, Mafon,
they came to Mrs. Cook’s Houfe to fearch for
Japers, and in Mrs. Mafew’s Room there was a
Trunk which was locked ; they ordered it to be
opened, which Mrs, Mafon did, and they took
out of the Trurk two Bundles of Papers fealed

up
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up as you have heard ; they tell you the_ Bundles
of Papers were opened, that they fet their Marks
apon cach Paper ; and one of them did not m-
mediately fet his Mark, but afl:?rwards ’tis proved
that he kept them from the Time they were de-
fivered to him till the other came back again, and
then upon his Return he delivered them back a-
gain to him ; then he fet his Mark upon them,
both fet their Marks upon them, and therefore
they can fivear that they are the fame Papers that
were taken out of Mrs. Mafon’s Trunk : Then,
if Mrs, Mafon fwears true, they are the Papers of
Mr. Layer, which were delivered to her by him ;
and fo tracing it from Hand to Hand, thefe are
the fame Papers that were found in Mrs. Mafon’s
Cuftedy. Mrs. Mafon {wears the fame, and fhe
alfo fet her Mark upon them.

But, faith Mr. Layer, there is no Credit to be
given to Mrs, Mafon, the is an i1l Woman, an
infamous Woman, therefore her Lvidence 15 not
to be regarded.

Gentlemen, confider how this Matter ftands;
in one of thefe Pacquets of Papers wetre found
the Pretender’s Receipts, which Mr, Layer be-
fore the Council faid, he had defired Sir William
EZis to procure for him from the Pretender, and
which he had accordingly procured, and that he
had recetved them ; and thefe Receipts being 1n
the Pacquet found upon Mrs. AMafon, how came
they there, if they had not been delivered to her
by Mr. Layer? Therefore thefe Receipts being
in this Pacquet, plainly demonftrate that thefe
Papers are the Papers of Mr. Layer, and were
by him dclivered to Mrs. Afafon : And 1f they
were his Papers, thefe Papers, and what is con-
tined in them, will be a ftrong Evidence againft
Mr. Layer.  Notwithftanding all this, fays Mr.
Layer, thefe were never my Papers; 1t is For-
ocry or Perjury.  Whether or no you will be-
hieve thefe Papers to be Mr. Layer’s, when it ap-
pears thofe Receipts were found amongft them s
befides that, here is a Paper amongft them, that
the Witnefs that is produced by Mr. Layer, one
that was his Clerk, fwears that it 1s his own Hand-
Writing ; how came that there, if this be not
the Bundle and Pacquet of Mr. Layer # And on
this they turn the Strength of their Cale,

If this be fo, confider, firlt here 1s 2 Scheme;
whole Hand-Writing it 15, here hath been Va-
riety of Evidence asto that. It is inftfted on by
the King’s Counfel, that the Scheme 1s of Mr.
Laysis Hand-Writing 3 and if fo, this s a ftronger
Evidence againft Mr. Layer, than if the Papers
had been only found in his Cuftody. How ftands
tat? Here 1s one that was Mr. Layer’s Mafter
formerly, who faith, he verily believes this to be
the Hand-Writing of Mr. Layer 5 if that be fo,
then all is well, and 1t ought to be read, not only
as a Paper that was tn his Poffcffion, but as a Pa-
per that was writ by him : But they difpute, and
tay, ’tis not his Hand-writing ; they afk this
Witnefs how long it is fince the Prifoner lived
with him as his Clerk ? about fourteen or fifteen
Yearsago, fays the Witnefs: A Man’s Hand, fay
they, may be changed in that Time : Bat, faith
the Witnefs, Iverily believe it to be his Hand-
Wititing, for I have within thele five Years re-
ceived feveral Letters from him about Bufinefs,
there being a Correfpondence between him and
me, I being his Agent in Town, and thefe Letters
are of the fame Charalter he ufed fourteen or fificen
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Years ago, therefore I believe it to be his Hand-
Writing,

But, fay the Counfel for the King, we won't
only prove this by thefe Gentlemen, but the Pri-
foner himfelf hath confeft it. Well, how ftands
that: He confeft, when he was afkt at the Coun-
cil-Table, what he knew of Arms that were pro-
vided ;3 he faid, he knew of none, To which
when 1t was faid, how came you to mention it
in this Scheme of your own Hand-Writing, there

you take Notice of Arms that were_ provided 2
Doth Mr, Layer difown it ? No, faith he, ’tis a

Miftake, 1 fhould have writ, which fonld be
provided.

Gentlemen, take this together, confider with
your felves, what the Import of it is, He faith,
when he is alked about thefe Arms, I fhould
have writ, which fbonld de provided, Whether
this doth not amount to a Confcflion of this Mat-
er, mulft be lefr to your Conlideration, as a con-
firming Evidence of what the other Witneffes,
{wear, But, faith Mr. Layer, let me call 2 Wit-
nefs to prove that it is not my Hand-Writing :
He calls a Gentleman, and he fays it is not his
Hand-Writing 5 he calls his Clerk, and his Cibrk
{aith it s not his Mafter’s Hand. Here are two
Witnefles : Then there is an additional Witnefs
on the other Side, and that is, his own Confeffion.
Whether it amounts to a Confeflion muft be left
to your Confideration; but if this Scheme be not
of his own Hand-Writing, it was a Scheme which
he had in his Cuftody, and that alone had been 2
confiderable Evidence againft him. How came
he by this Scheme ? What had he to do with it ?

The Scheme hath been read to you, which tells
you the feveral Methods to be proceeded 1n. I
the frft Place, the Zower is to be feized, an Offi-
cer is to mount the Guard that would be in their
Intereft, and at nine a-Clock at Night they are to
feize the Tower: Then they are to go to the
Bauk, and fet a Guard there, after they have taken
out Money from thence : After this he tells you
of feveral other Guards that are to be fet in other
Places, and then a Party is to be fent to fuize the
King; then he tells you, another Party is to be
fent over the Water to feize his Royal Highnefs
the Prince; he calls him by a Cant Name, but ’us
plain he 15 meant.

If this be all his own Hand-Writing, 1t 15 a
{trong Evidence that he was in this Conlpiracy ;
but if he had only a Scheme of this Nature in his
Cuftedy, that will be an Evidence againft him,
though he did not write it,

Now whether every Body is not fatished that
thefe Bundles were his, when in thefe Bundics
thefe Receipts figned by the Prefender himielf, and
the Paper that was of his Clerk’s own Hand-
Writing, were found ; it goes a great Wy to con-
firm the Evidence of Mrs, Mafon, who fwears
the Bundles to be his Papers.

'Thefe are Matters of Evidence, and muft be
left to your Confideration.

Then they go on and cxamine the treafonable
Papers, the Notes, the Lifts, {gc.

To raife an Infurreftion Money would be want-
ing ; faith Mr. Layer, I told Siv Wulliam Ellis
this. Upon that there are Receipts figned by
the Pretender, by which the Prifoner faid they
might take up Monecy on that Occafion, Sir
William Ellis agrees with me, faith Mr, Layer,
and accordingly fends me Receipts, and I had
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them, and they were found 1n thi_s Dundle of Pa-
pers 3 and how came they there, 1if they were not
Mr, Layer’s Papers ¢ _

Confider the other Papers; the Defign being;
for an Infurretion, they are to engage the Guards
in their Service 3 you fee that feveral Papers are
found in thefe Bundles that contain an Account ot
the Number of Men that were in fuch a Treop
of Guards, the Number in fuch a Troop of Gre-
nadicrs, and tells you what the Numbers were;
what was the meaning of all this? Iow came
this Gentleman to be {o follicitous 1n examining
into the Number of Guards and Ofhicers, but
only to get a true State of this Matter, that he
micht know who were the Perfons that were
molt likcly to be corrupted, and what a Num-
ber of Encries he might meet with on this Oc-
cifton.

T'hefe are very ftrong Circumitances againft Mr.
Levery unlels Mr, Layer can give any Account
why he kept thefe Papars fo carctully.

To ¢o a lietle back, as to the Bufinefs of Mr.
Lynch 3 it appears he did not know Mr. Lynch
belore this Affair was {et on Footr 3 he rode out
with hiin, gous to the Green Man with him, there
they talked over this Affair, there he publifhes
that traiterous D.claration, and afterwards pre-
fented Tynch to my Lord North and Grey,  How
came they fo inumarely acquanted unlefs on this
Occalion ?

Then, Gentlemen, they go on and tell you,
when this Gentleman was committed nto the
Cuftody of a Meffenger he made his Efcape, and
this we look upon as an Ividence of Guilt, not
a conclufive Evidence 5 a Man may efcape tho’
he is innocent, yet *as an Evidence that is mate-
rial to be Jeft to the Jury, and is proper for their
Coniideration ; he is purfued and retaken ; when
he is retaken he is under great Confternation 3 he
begs for the Lord’s Sake they would let him go,
and faid 1c was an Arrelt; he took out of his
Pocker a great Numb of Guineas, and faid,
they fhould have what Number they plealed,
if they would ler hun go s this Is a2 materal
Circumftance, and doth fhew that this Gentle-
man was morc than ordinary concerned in this
Adtair,

Yeu will fay thefe Things tooether, and con.
fider how far chey fansty you, that this Gentleman
5 guilty of the Treafon.

Then they give you an Account how he did
contuls before the Lovds of the Council every
Thing that hath been fworn by the Witneffes :
That he went to the Green Mair in your County,
and there confulted and agreed to carry on this
Affair; that he did take out and read the De-
claration 3 this is a ftrong Evidence, efpecially if
compared with what he confeffed, that he had
Two Conferences with the Pretender at Rore,
was Kindly received by him, and had particular
Marks of his Favour : He is defired to ftand
Godfather, and his Wife to ftand Godmother to
his Cluld 5 and accordingly they ftood 5 he de-
fires my Joord North and Grey to ftand as Proxy
for the Pretender, and the Dutchefs of Ormond
to be Proxy for the Pretender’s Spoufe 5 and they
were Proxies at the Chriftening of his Child.
Thele are the Circumflances that have been Iaid
before you on Behalf of the King againft the
Prifoner at the Bar, But ts faid on the Behalf
of the Prifoner, that he flands at the Bar upon
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his Life and Death, which will depend upon your
Verdict,

I think you ought to confider of that, and
that I hope will induce you to confider and
weigh well the Itvidence, and not to find the
Prifoner Guilty, unlefs you are fatisfied he is {o.

Itis true, here is the Life of a Man in the
Cale, but then you muft conflider likewife the M.
fery and Delolation, the Blood and Confufion, that
muft have happened if this had eaken Effe&, and
put one againit the other; and I belicve that Cop.
lideration, which 1son the Behalf of the King,
will be much the ftrongeft. 7

Thefe Things are proper to be confidered, i
Order to prepare you to be carcful in examining
and weighing the Evidence well5 but in giving
your Verdict I hope you will lay them all afide ;
you will confider the Weight of the Evidence
on either Side, and the Credit of the two Wit
nefles, and how far they are fupported by 2 Wric-
ing under his own Hand, a Confcffion ar the
Council-Table ; confider how far that will fupport
their Iovidence, though not Men of the clearctt
Reputation.

A Cypher hath been taken Notice of, by which
were explaned feveral Names that fuch and fuch
Perfons and Things were to be called by ; there
was the Name of kins, which was to lignify
the Pretendzy 3 there was another Name for the
Pictender, and that was 8. Fobn; and conform.
able to thefe Names they have read feveral Leteers,
by which 1t appears that a trealonable Correfpon-
dence was carried on by Mr. Layer.  This is the
Circumitance of the Evidence that hath been [aid
before you.  Confider this Evidence, and the
Objections that have been made to it, and how
far thofe Objetions have been anfwered.

Difcharge the Part of Honeft Men, confider
and weigh well the Evidence,

Upon the whole Matter, if you do believe that
there was an Overt-Aét of Treafon in the County
of Effex, and that it was proved by Mr. Lynch,
and confirmed by the Confeflion of Mr, Layer;
and 1f there be any Overt-A¢t in another County,
as hus hiting or employing any to Iift or engage
Men in the Service of the Preteuder, then you
will find the Prifoner guilty.

If you are not fatished thefe Things are true,
then you’ll acquit him,

The Jury withdrew for about half an Hour,
to confider of their Verdiét, and when
they returned into Court, were called over
by the Clerk of the Crown and anfwered
to their Names,

Cl. of ibe Cr. Gentlemen of the Jury, are you
agreed on your Verdict ?

Fury., Yes,

Cl. of the Cr. Who fhall fay for you?

Fury, Qur Foreman.

Cl. of the Cr. Chrifiopber Layer, hold up your
Hand. (Which he did.)

You of the Jury look upon the Prifoner.

How fay you? Is Christopher Layer guilty of
the High-Treafon whereof he ftands indicted, or
not guilty ;

Fury.  Guilty.

Cl. of the Cr. What Goods and Chattels, Lands
and Tenements had he at the Time of the faid
High-Treafon committed, or at any Time fince,
to your Knowledge ?

Fury, None.
CI. l‘5f fbf Cr 5
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Cl. of the Cr. Hearken to your Verdit as the
Court has recorded it, You fay that Chriffopher
Layer is guilty of the High-Treafon whereof he
itands indicted 3 and you fay he had no Goods
nor Chattels, Lands nor Tenements at the Time
of the faid High-Treafon committed, or at any
Time fince, to your Knowledge, and fo you fay
all.

Mr. Att. Gen. We pray a Rule may be made to
bring up the Prifoner to receive Sentence.

Mr. Fuft. Lyre. He muft have four Days to
move in Arreft of Judpment. et there bea
Rule to bring him again upon Zhuifday next.

Then the Prifoner was remanded back to the

swr.

Die dlertis 27 die Novembris, 1722,
Chriftopher Layer, Efg; wwas lrought 1o the Bay
of the Court of Kang’s Bench, 7 order 10 recoive
Senteice.

Y Lord, the Prifoner at

the Bar flands convicted
of High-Treafon 3 I pray your Lordfhip’s Jude-
ment againit him for the King,

Cl of the Cr. Chriffepher Layer, hold up thy
Hand, (which he did) Thou haft been indiéted
tor High Trealon, for compaffing, and imagining
the Death of the King, and thereupon been ar-
raigned 5 and thereunto haft pleaded not Guilty,
and for thy Trial put thy feli’ upon God and thy
Country, which Country hath found thee Guilty 4
what can’tt thou now fay for thy fulf why the
Court fhould not give Judgment of Death againft
thee according to Law ?

» Mr. uigeiford. Is it your Lordflp’s Pleafure
to give any Directions touching the Matter of the
Prifoner’s being in Irons ? T hope your Lordfhip
will order them to be taken off, at leaft during
his Attendance here.

L. C. fuft.
the Cafes that have been, which go further than
during the Time of his Trial 5 his Trial is over,
if he hath any thing to offer to the Courr, and
thinks he may not be able to do 1t fo well while
he 1s under thefe Irons, T would recommend it to
Mer. Attorney, not to make a Precedent of it, that
his Trons may be taken off.

Prifoner.  Yes my Lovd, I have a great deal
to fay, which I fhall offer in Arreft of Judgment,

Mr. lumgeiford, He hath complain®d fince he
hath been here, that he is in great Pain, in the
Polition he ftands with hus Irons.

L. C. Jup. Cowme, Brother Pengelly, have you
any thing to objedt againit his Irons being taken
off, or do you confent to it ?

Mr, Serj. Pengelly. My Lord, we don’t oppofe
L.

Mr. A, Gen.

‘Then the Irons were taken off.

Mr. Serp., Peugells, My Lord, the Prifoner at
the Bar, Mr. Layer, afier a long and a fair Thrial,
hath been found guilty of High-Treafons and on
Behalf of the King, we pray the Judgment of

Lt
the Court againft the Prifoner.

Mr, Hawgerferd. By your Lordfhip’s Indul-
gence, I am Counfel for the Prifoner at the Bar,
I have, and I hope fhall continue to do him what
Scrvice I can : The Prifoner’s Life is at Stake, and
I hope, I {hall not be fuppofed to be troublelome,
if 1 defire a Record to be read, which harh not
been yet read in Court 5 it is the Vewire, and that

Vou. VL -

for High-Treafon,

I don’t know, there 1s none of
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being part of the Record, we think we are proper
to have it read.

Mr. Setj. Pengelly. We apprehend it is fuch a
Requeft as has never been made : If they have
any Objeétions to any Part of the Proceedings,
or any Exceptions to take, they are at Liberty
to take them, and to flate their Obje&ions, thac
the Court, if neceffary, may refer to the Record
to {ee whether they are jult or no; but to come
and defire the Procefs to be laid before the Court
for the Information of the Prifoner and his Coun-
fel, 1t never hath been done: They are entitled
now to offer any Thing, if they can, in Arrelt
of Judgment.

Mr. A Gen.  IF what they defire thould be
granted, it would be a Precedent which migh
be of very ill Confequence, and I apprehend whae
they defire, 1s diretly contrary to Law 5 there
are no Authorities that the Prifoner fhould either
have Copies of the Procels, or that the Procefs
fhould be read to him, only to enable him to find
a [ault. I believe no Inftance can be given what-
{oever, that it was ever allowed in a Cafe of this
Nature, 1f it be done now, it will be a Precedent
{or the future,

The A& of Parliament went as far as was

thought proper, Copics of the Indictment and
Copics of the Names of the Jury, are direfted
to be delivered to the Prifoner 5 but as to any
of the Procefs, the A& gives no Direétion, and
therefore as what they defire 15 nerther {ounded
on Law, nor Precedent, we hope 1t thall not be
aranted.
- M. Soll. Geir. My Lord, Mr. Hungerford has
been pleafed, in the Courfe of this Cafe, trequent-
ly to put us in mind, as he does now, that what
he has infifted on, wasin favour of Life. That is
a moving Argument, but it proves nothing, fave
that the Prifoner onght to have all the Indulgence
which the Law and the fettled Forms of Proceed-
ing do allow ; but 1 apprehend 1t is a Reafon fer
no more. What is afked, 1s of more Confequence
than appears in this particufar Cafe 5 and whatfo-
ever your Lordfhip doth now, will be made a
Precedent for the future.

My Lord, before the At of Parliament, which
allows the Prifoner to have a Copy of his Indit-
ment, and of the Pannel of the jury, it 1s moit
certain, he was not entitled to have fuch Copices,
Before that Law was made, he was mformed of
nothing but by having the Indictment read to him
in Court upon his Arraignment, and that not bare-
ly to give him an Opportunity of taking Excep-
tions to it, but from the Neceffity of the Thing,
becaufe it was the Charge to which he was to ani-
wer. Then comes the A& of Parliament, the
~th Year of King /#2/liain, and allows the Prifon-
cr a Copy of his Indictment, and of the Pannel
of his Jury. But the Legiflature, when they had
thefe Matters under their Confideration, and feem
to have intended to give at leaft all the Indulgence,
confiftent with Reafon, to Prifoners in Cales of
High-Treafon, even at that Time they went no
further, and did not think fit to direét that to be
done, which is now defired on the Behalf of ¢his
Gentleman. Thercfore this Motion of Mr. Hunger-

ford’s muft be underftood to be made at Commeon

Law ; but I muft beg leave to rely upon it, until
fome Precedent is produced on the other Side,
that there is no Inftance whatfoever, either before
or fince the A¢ of Parliament, wherein any Re-

Ttz cord
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cord of the Proceedings hath been read to the
Prifoner befides the Indiétment,  This 152 Con-
fideration merely of Practice and Regulartty 5 and
in a Point of that kind, where there 1s no Prece-
dent, I hope your Lordfhip will not make one.
Mr. Serj. Chefbire. My Lord, the Carrage
and Behaviour of the King’s Council towards the
Prifoner, hath been fo fair and candid, that 1t de-
ferves Thanks from him, rather than Complaint;
and I believe this Temper will hold on to the
latt « Bur my Lord, we have no Authority to
aive up the Right of the Crown, or to fix thaton
the Crown to grant, which the Prifoner hath no

Right to demand. |

My Lord, it muft be admitted, that this 15 2
Demand made at Common Law, and 1t 1t be a
Demand of Riaht, I don’t know but 1t may go
to every Thing in an cqual Degree 5 that he hath
the fame Right to demand a light of the Com-
miflion 5 Certiciari, &c. T don’t know but he
hath the fame Right to enquire into every Step
that is upon Record in this Calz. "The Officers
concerned, I dare fay, have done their Duaty.
There is nething of Law, but what comes in up-
on the Statute ot King 7F4//iau; that he hath had
the Benefit of to the full extent of it 3 he hath
had 1 Copy of the Pannel of the Jury ; he hath
had a Copy of the Indictment, and 1n fuch T'ime
as was proper for him to make due ufe of it ;
and this they afk now, we apprchend 15 only to
lenethen out ‘Time, and to ntroduce that which
may be greatly inconvenient. We have very little
Reafon of apprehending that it can be of any
Profit to him 3 but for Example fake, and as he
hath no Right to tt, we cannot come 1nto a Con-
fent to 1t.

Therefore we fubmit it to your Lovdthip’s Con-
fideration, from the Inconvenience that may enfue
from the Precedent, whether the Prifoner hath
any Right to make tius Demand,

Mr. Hungerferd. Tacknowledee that before the
2th of King /75, e Prifoner was not en-
titled to have a Copy of his Inditment, and
therefore 1 fo far concur with the Gentlemen of
the other Side, that we are not eotitled to a Copy
of the Record of the Friiie Fucies.  But what
humbly pray now, is, what T apprehend we were
entitled to before the A&t of Parliament lor re-
culating Trials in Cafes of High Trealon,  The
Inftances are feveral, where n the Courfe of a
Trial for Tligh Treafon, before that A&t which
oave the Prifoner feveral new Advantages, the
Prifoner hath defired his Indictiment to be read,
and the Court never denied 1ts to have any other
Part of the Record to be read, fecins to be as
reafonable as the Indiciment. T'he Objection had
been ftronger, if we had defived for the Prifoncr
at the Bar, the Copy of the Peuise s there we
fhould have been jultly told that we had been en-
titled to nothing bur what the At of Parhament
had directed, iz, the Copy of the Indifiment.
We pray a Copy of nothing, but only pray that
a fmall Part of the Record that makes up the
whole Record of this Gendeman’s Convidtion,
may be read.  And this, with Submiffion, we
hope we are entitled to have for the fame Reafon
as the IndiClment was read before the A&, Coll.
Siduev defired, that his Indiétment fhould be read,
and it was fo.  And can any Reafon be afligned,
why the Veaire, which is but a Part of the Record,
. fhould not be read as well as the Indictment ¢ no

one Part of the Record of Conviétion is more fi-
cred than the other 5 and why therefore thould nog
one Part be read as well as the other ?

Mr. Ser). Pengelly. Can you fhew any Cafe
where the Inditment was read, upon the Prayer
of the Prifoner, after Convi€tion, and before fome
Exception taken ¢

L. C. Jusi. We would be far from refufingany
[ndulgence to the Prifoner that by Law we are
warranted to grant him 5 whar you afk now, you
muft own 1s without any Precedent whatfoever.
You know, that before the A&t of Parhament
you were not entitled to, nor could demand a
Copy of the Indi¢tment : It is very true what you
fay before the A¢t of Parliament 5 when it hath
been defired by the Prifoner the Indictment hath
been read, and that Method of proceeding hav-
ing been allowed, gave hin a Right to demand
it 5 but you cannot produce any one Inflance that
ever he demanded this that now you offer 3 that
ever he demanded the Fenire thould be produced
ond read to him,

Confider how ftrict the Law was i Cafes of
High-Treafon 3 fee the A of Rights : The
Courfe of the Court 1s the Law ; this which vou
now defire was never fo much as afk’d for, nor
did this Court ever grant it; and 1if fo, how can
the Court be warranted to grant that which was
never granted, nor was ever defired to be granted ?
The Reafon of it 1s, that every Body was fatsty’d
by Law it could not be granted.

You have mftanced in Cafes of great Perfons,
Colonel Siduey, Lord Ruffe/, and others that have
been attainted of High-T'reafon, who could not
want Adviee to defire any Thing that was proper,
or that they had a Right to demand. Neither
they nor any of the greatett Quality that have had
the Misfortune of being try’d for an Offence of this
Nuture, ever demanded it which is an Admifiion
that they were not entided to it 3 and if the
Courfe of the Court be fo, we muft not eftablifh
1 mew Courles we can’t fee what the Confequen-
ces may be,

Mr. Fiuft. Eyre. The Cafe of reading the In-
dictment to a Prifoner is certainly very different,
and can be no Authority to warrant the reading
of the Fewiye 5 for the Indictment is the Chargge
to which the Prifoner is obliged to plead, and
he muit know his Charge before he can give it
an Anlwer : Befides, the Merit and Juitice of the
Cafe depend entirely upon the Indiétment, which
muit be read, in order to underftand the true
State of the Queftion, and to fee the Fa&t to
which the Witnefits are o be examin’d, °Tis
therefore abfolutely neceffary, that the Indi®ment
fhould be read ; but none of thefe Reafons will
ferve for reading’ the Fomire, which is only to
fummon the Jury, and bring them to the Bar
and therefore as it was never done, nor cver afked

before, T'ean by no means think it fit for us to
allow 1t now.

Mr. Fusf. Powys. 1think it isa perfe@t No-
velty what you demand, and not enly {o, but in
its Conlequences very dangerous : Ior, properly
fpeaking, the common Ulage to move in Arreft
of Judgment, hath been out of the Indi@ments
but to run back to thofe Things, which if you
had a Right to demand, it had been proper to
have done it before 5 and fince you have many
Times known that nothing but the Indi€tment
hath been read, fince the Judges were never

mov’d,
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mov’d, nor any Thing of this kind done, and
nothing in the World hath been demanded hike
it; if it fhould be granted at this Time, when
Men are to receive Judgment, and Exceptions are
to be taken to the Indiétment, if they fhould run
back to all the Proceedings, it would be a thing
of ftrange Cﬁnﬁ:qucnge. But beﬁdes_ that, 1t 15 a
Thing you have no Example for, it hath been
never done 3 and 1t hath been obferved, that no-
thing but the Copy of the IndiCtment hath been
read before this A&t of Parliament of King
IFilliam., Now there are two Things given by
this A& of Parliament of King /Filliain 5 the
Prifoner is to have the Copy of his Indictment
five Days, the Copy of the Pannel of the Jury
wwo Days before his Trial, and thefe were pro-
pofed as Advantages which the Common Law
did not admit: Shall we come to unravel all
the Matters preceding ? 1t would be a Matter
of firange Confequence, and what we can’t do
or warrarnt by Law : If you have any Thing to
move out of the Indictment, we are ready to
hear 1t.

Mr. Tuft, Fortefene Aland, This 15 perfectly
ncew, or clle in Favour of Life I fhould be ready
to grant it : The true Reafon of having the In-
dictment read s, that the Prifoner may know
what his Charge 1s, in order to make his Defence
at his T'rial; but that Reafon holds not in this
Cafe, which 1s after Conviction, and what 15 afl’d
now 1s not relattve to his Charge, but concerns
the Acts of the Court only. The Court will al-
fitt in Matters of Law, when they appear, but
will never affift the Prifoner with IFaéts, 1 order
to make Points of Law s and thercfore it has
been denied the Prifoner 1o take Minutes even
of the Indictment, and for the fame Reafon Coun-
tel has ever been denied, in all capital Cafes, be-
fore the late A&t of Parhament, unlefs a difput-
able Point of Law did anfe and appear.

You move this Matter as a Motion purely at
Common Law s and as fuch 1t will extend to all
Indiétments of Murder, and other capital Cafes,
which may be of very evil Confequence. It would
be very firange to have all the Procecdings upon
[ndi¢tments read to the Prifoners and there 1s as
much Reafon to call for all as for the Feuie fo-
cias: I wke 1t clearly there never was a Cale,
where the Acts and Proceedings of the Court
have been called for to be read to the Prifoner,
and for no other Purpoie but to make an Error :
{t is a Thing that ts entirely new, the Confequen-
ces may be very fatal;) and thercfore T think it
1s an unrcafonable Motion, and ought not to ba
aranted.

Mr, [uigerfera, 1 aflure your Lordthip T did
not do it out of an AffeCtation of Noveley, nei-
ther fhall I perflift 1n wrging it further, fince the
Court hath given their Opinion 5 bat I thoughe
the Reafon of the Thing, in reading the Indilt-
ment, before the At of Parliament was wich me;
but fince it 1s your Lordithip’s Opinion that it is
otherwife, I defire your Lordfhip to give me leave
10 g0 on,

Prifencr, I beg leave to fay but & thort Word
i relpect to this Objection that hath been made
by Mr. Hungerferd, If I take the Thing right,
it 15, that the Fewie may be read, to fee if it is
properly iflued, and I hope thus far it (hall be
oranted, to fhew a Reafon why this e 1s re-
turned on one Day, and the Jury appear on an-
other 5 and :f it doth appear that there is an Lr-
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ror in the Proceedings on the Foot of the Zenire,
I humbly hope I {hall have the Benefit of it. The
Objection, I take it, muft be this; the Penire, 1
take 1t, is returnable the rgth of the Month of
Novenber, T was not try’d till the 21t 5 therefore,
what I humbly ofter 15, whether or no, after the
Return of the Writ, this is 2 good convening of
the Jury together to try me on a Writ when there
was no fuch Writ in being, more efpecially when
the Proceedings agninft me are by Original, where
the Returns 1 this Court are the fame as in the
Common Pleas 5 {o I fhall leave it to my Coun-
fc] to fay the reft, and humbly hope, that I fhail
have Jeave to look into the Pemire, and if it come
out fo, I hope it is erroncous, and that Judament
{hall be arrefted.

Mr. Hungerford. The Gentleman hath given
Uteerance to fome of my Thoughts 3 and not by
comparing of Notes, for I have not feen his Face,
nor heard from him fince I faw him here at the
Bar at his Trial,

"That which occurs to me on this Occafion, but
I can but guels at fome Part of the Fadt, is, I take
it, that the Vemre bears Teite the laft Day of
Ociober, and is retarned the 1gth of November
there arc ftated Return Days of the Law, and,
my Lord, it a Man appears in a Court of Juftice
one Day, and he 1s not by the Courfe of proceed-
ing nduiged with a further Day of appearing,
there 1s 2 Difcontinuance of the Procefs, and the
Man 1s out of Court. The different Days the
Law takes notice of for this Purpofe are, the Ef-
forgn Day, the Day of Exceptions, the Day of
Appearance, the guarto die poft; 1 tke the
guarfo die poft to be an Indulgence which a
Court of Juflice gives to a Suitor to appear at
a further Day, when he ought to have appear-
ed at a former Day; and this is the Pra&ice
in real Actions in the Court of Common Pleas:
As to the Exception Day, the Ufe of that is,
that a Man that 1s fummon’d may obje&t to the
Summons, as not being a hit and regular Sum-
mons to draw him in Contempt,

But, my Lord, in Cales of Juries, who are
not Suitors in Court, I take the Law and the Prac-
tice 10 be, that they are obiig’d to attend upon
the Procefs of the Court 3 T take ity they muwft
do Duty on the Return of the Pewire, which, in
this Cale, 15 on Moiday the 19th of Novewber,
and did not appear tll #ediefday the 218t 5 {o that
if they were to appear on Aonday the 19th of Ne-
vember, and did not appear then, there muft ap-
pear fome Act of the Court, by which they are
indulg’d to a further Day: And I put it upon Mr.
Harcourt to fhew, whether there is any Indulgence
of the Court entered upon Record for the continu-
ing of the Jury ull 77ednefday following 5 and if
there 1s not, there is then a Difcontinuance of
their being in this Court, and confequently the
Procecdings are nreguiar, and the Trial 2 Mil-
trial : T fhall quote jome Authorities which jultify
this Oblfervation 5 when a Man by a Procefs of
Court appears on the Day of the Return of that
Procefs, unlefs there be a Continuance of that Pro-
cefs, that wlterior dies datus eff to the Party, or a
[ublequent Procefs iflues that Day, the Law deems
that Chafm i the Procedings to be a Difcontinu-
ance, and that the Party is out of Court. It was
o refolved in 2efuerton, 204 5 and 2d Coke, 284.
Tt is the Cafe of Bradley and Banks 3 and reported
in both Books, but molt fully in Yelverton. There
is an Authority which weighs with me fomething
more,




3 26

more, and feems to be a Cafe in Point 5 it 15 the
Cafe of Peploso and Rowley, 2d of Croke, 357. and
and there the Cafe is on a Writ of Error brought
upon Proceedings 1n the Court of Shrewfoury,
where the Ulage was, to hold Plex m fome real
A&ions, and there was an Entry that the Partics
did not appear on a preceeding Day, but made
Default: And the Entry was babuit diem per de-
fanlt’ gwven to the Party by the Court, jfecosduin
confuctudinein ille praditfe, This came before
this Court by a Writ of Lirror, and it was ad-
judg’d, that both the Entry and the Cuftom were
naught, The Reafon affigned why the Entry was
fo, is, for that the Party having made Default,
was out of Court, and the Court could upon that
Procefs gtve hun no new Day to appear.  And
the Reafon why the Cuftom itfelf is maught, is,
for that there can be no Cuftomn to help that (which
the Bool calls) a Difcontinuance at Common Law ;
for if the Man be out of Court, he can’t be brought
in there again by the fame Writ.

My Lord, 1f that be the Cale then, that the
Jury were to appear on the rgth, and there is
no Lntry to continue them till 7fedinefday the 2 11t
then by the Authority of . thele Cales they had no
Cail nor Right to appear, but were out of Court,
the Trial was no legal Trial, and confequently no
Trial at all.

[am told, that the Pra&ice of all Trmls at
Bar 1s, that the Jury do appear here on the Re-
turn of the Peudre, and immediately proceed to
do Bufinefs 5 why fhould it not be fo too in a
criminal Cale, as thus 15 ? I think the Realon in
both Cafes 1s the fame : I humbly hope therefore,
my Lord, that if the Fact be as [ have reprefent-
ed, that there 1s no Latry to continue over the
Attendanc of the Jury from Aladay to IVedief-
day, there 1s 2 Blemifh in this Proceeding 5 and
you can’t procced to Judgment amainit the Pri-
foner at the Bar.

Mr, Ketelbey,
me ———
L. C. Fuft. You fhall be fully heard; bot be-
caule Mr. Hungerford hath appeal’d to Mr. Fai-
coutit, 1{hall afk Mr. Harcsnit tins Queltion about
the Matter of the Peusre,

Mr, Harconrt, 1 fhall be very tender in this
Matter, where the Life of the Prifoner is at Stake,
as Mr. Hungerford has obferv’d, and will not fay
any thing but what Iam fure is the Courfe of the
Court. It a Pewire be returnable the firft general
Return of the Term, the Appearance-Day of
the Jury 1s the quarto die poft, which is the firft
Day of the Term. If the Court be not pleafed
to try the Prifoner then, they may adjourn the
Jury over to any Day before the next Return in
the Term ; but no Entry is ever made on Record
of fuch Adjournment, and the Proceedings are al-
ways cnter’d on Record to be at the Return of the
Writ.  Inall other Returns in the Term, there is
the fame Courle oblerv’d : The Jury is never ob-
lig’d to appear before the guaito die pofi 3 nor can
the Priloner be try’d fooner, What makes this clear
15, to confider the Proceedings on Diffriigas, where
the Prifoner 1s not try’d on the Pewiie : In fuch
Cales the Diffringas 15 never tefted on the Return-
Day, but the guarto div poff 3 which, if what is
infilted on by the Prifoner’s Countel is Law, would
make a Difcontinuance, and that has always been
held otherwife 5 for till there has been a Default
of the Jury’s appearing on the Peuire, no Diffringas
can-iffue, and no Default can be objefled to the

If your Lordfhip will favour
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Jury {or not appearing till the quarto die poft 3 nor
are they amerciable fooner for not appearing. ‘This
Matter was fettled on grear Deliberation, by my
Lord Chief Juftice Helt 3 and I am confident, has
been ever fince fo practis’d,

Mr. Ketelbey, My Lord, it was my Misfor-
tune not to get into Court fooner 5 fo that I did
not hear the firft Application Mr. Ifungeiford
made to your Lordfhip on Behalt of the Prifo-
ner, nor fhall I prefume to break 1n upon what
your Lordlhip has already determin’d 5 but whe-
ther or not we are enuel’d to fee the Jiiiie, or
hear that Patt of the Record read. T hope we
fhall be able to make out, that there has been
a Mif-trial in this Cale.  The Vewire, 1t 1s agreed
on all ands, was returnable eéfebis Aloitii,
which was Aviday the 19th of Neweater. That
the Priioner was not tried ull the 21t 15 moft
certain, The general Return was ofFalis Martisi,
and he was not tried till two Days after 5 and not-
withftanding what Mr. Harcort hath faid, IT'muit
beg Leave humbly to infitt, that there hach buen
a Mif-trial, and Judgment ought to be arrelted
and for that I have as flrong an Authority as any
that can be cited in this Court, 2tis the Trial of
Reokzcood 3 and for the greater certainty, 1 have
brought the Book along with me, and have it in
my Hand 3 where it isagreed, by the Court, and
all the King’s Counfel, that the Trial muft be on
the Day of the Return of the Penire, or clfe that
it would be Error : And my Lord Chief Juftice
Holt declared, the Iflue could nor be tricd after
the Day of the Return : This Matter came before
the Court upon an Exception taken by Sir Beas-
tholoincws Sheweer,

Mr. Fuff. Eyre. That was on a Commiflion of
chr and Feriincr, which was guite diffcrent; there
is N0 qraito dic poft there, no Day of Appearance,
but the Day of the Return of the Writ,

L. C. Fuff. It muft be fo, becaufe there is no
fuch Thing as a guarto die psff in Commiffions of
Oyerr and Zerminer,

Mr. Netelbey, 1 fubmit it to your Lordfhip,
whether there is any quarto die poff in a Veire ?

L. C. Fuft, Tt s always fo.

Mr. Juft. Eyre. You know we had the Con-
[ideration of this when we appointed the Trial,

Mr, Ketelicy, 1 beg leave to ofter one Word,
that in cafe of a Peniie, there is no guarto dic poff,
becavde there is no Effeign, no Exception-Day for
the Jury, The Authority n firft Roil’s Abiidg-
ety 822, Placit. 4. &9 6. is exprefs, that in a
Vewire facias or a Scire facias, there is no Lffoign:
And where there is no Effsign, there can be no
Day of Exception, becaufe the Exception depends
on the Effsign-Day, and confequently the Day of
the Return, and of the Appearance muft be the
fame, The Cafe of Effoign, Exception, Return,
and Appearance - Days, concerns only original
Writs, and the Plamntfts and Defendants thereins
there 1f the Defendant appears the guaris dic poft,
his Appearance fhall be accepted as good, and no
further Procefs made againft him.  But who ever
heard that a Jury were LEfloigned? There are
{everal other Authorities for this, Dalten, 413,
od. Inflit. 125 & 33 H. V1. 5. b, that no Ef-
foign lies upon a Vewive facias 5 and the Efleign was
quathed,

L. C: Fuft. This you now offer will fet afide
all the Proceedings either on the Plea Side, or
the Crown Side,

Mr,
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Mr. Ketelbey. There is a Cafe reported in the
Ycar—BO{Jk, Michs. 33 Hefzr;y VI ﬁ?l. 25. 36_ and
abridged in Brook, Title Nijfi prius, Pl 32. It
was difputed by the Judges of the Bench, and at
frft there was a Difference of Opinion among
them 5 but at laft it was unanimoufly refolved,
That the Nif prius was not well taken. T will
ftate the Cale as it appears in the Year-Book and
the Abridgment. There was a Writ of Nii prias
made with a certain Return, apd the Juftices
iried the Iffue upon a Day mefie during the In-
terval between the guarto die poff, and the Return
of the Writ. This was objected to, and faid to
be a Mif-trial; and afterwards the Judges agreed
in their Opinion, that 1t was a Mit-trial, becaufe
it was not upon the Return-Day of the Wrir of
Nifi priuss and if not upon that-Day, the Trial
ought not to have been at all.  And I don’t ap-
prehend any Difference between thar Cafe and
this, but only that was at Ny prius, and this a
Trial in Bank. There 1s no Continuance lies on a
Venive focias 3 and'if fo, I thall fubmut it, whether
there 1s any Day of Appearance.

Mr. Fast. Eyre. Sure there 1s a Day of Ap-
pearance on the Pemire facias; the Proceedings
in this Cafe are like thofe upon an Original. The
fame Day which is the Day of Appearance for the
Party upon an Original, 1s the Day of Apparance
for the Jury upon a Veuire.

Mr. Ketelbey, I believe it will be hard for Mr.
Harcourt 1o thew where there is an Effsign on a
Vemre facias.

L. C. Fut. We have heard already what Mr.
Harcourt bath faid. 1 defire My, Simmonds may
inform you how it is on the Civil Side.

Mr. Simmonds. Our Procels where the Suit is
commenced by Bull, is return’d on a Day certain
in Courr; that doth not refpect this Cale,

L. C. Juft. How is it when it 1s by Original?

Mr. Suumonds. Where it is by Origtnal, 1t 1s
always returnable as the Procefs 1sin the Cosmion
Pleas 3 and the Day of the Appearance of the
Jury, I take to be the guarto die poft.

Mr. Harcourt, If this was to be a Difconti-
nuance, what will become of all the Recerds
where the Proceedings are at general Returns,
and which are tried on the Diflringas, which al-
ways bears fefle the quarto die poft after the Re-
turn of the Venire 2 Every one of thefe Records,
which are many every Term, would be difcon-
tinued.

L. C. Fusf. You can’t but be fenfible that
there is nothing in this Exception.

Mr. Serj. Pangelly. There is no Foundation for
it in Practice,

L. C. Fuff. You need not labour It,

Mr. Scrj. Pergell.  The Sheniff, or the Jury,
are not amerciable, tho’ they did not appear on
the Day of the Return, if the Jury do appear up-
on the querto die poft 5 that fhews it

Mr. Att. Gen, If this Obpection prevails, 1t
will overturn all the fertled Courfe of Trials at
Bar.

Prifoner.  One Thing I would humbly offer to
your Lordthip, I have not had my Books by
me, but only what occurs to my Mcmory, I can-
not be fo exa& as I ought to be. This Overt-
A& in Effex of Treafon tound by the Jury to be
fo, ] humbly apprehend, and [ offer it to your
Lordfup’s Judgment, in Law 1s no Overt-Act
at all, Al the Reafon I fhall humbly offer to
your Lordfhip, that tho® it hath been faid, chat

For High=Trealon,
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there was a confulting afid agrecing in order to

levy War, yet it doth not appear thar War to
be levyed was fuch a War as in the Law i5 ad

My Lord, this differs
from the levying War it felf.  An Intention and
Conlfultation, or a Confpiracy barcly to levy Wat,
unlefs War be levy’d, it is no Treafon, If it be
a Confultation to levy War againft the King's
Perfon, to tmprifon the King, to dethrone and
murder him, it ever hath been adjude’d to be
Treafon. Tf it be only a Confulting to levy War,
as if to agree to break open Meeting-Houfes, to
throw doivn Houlfes, was the fame as doing of it.
ow
There muft be a War that is levy’d, or elic it
s no Treafon. Not only that, but I beg Jeave
to fay one Word more, In my Cafe, all the Evi-
dence given in refpect of this Overt-A& in Efer,
there 15 no Foundation for it and if there isno
Overt-Aét in Effex, no Overt-Aé elfewhere can
affc® me. It itands on the Evidence only of
Mr. Lyuch: He tilks of a Declaration.  Who
read it? The only two Things are a Difcourfe be-
tween us, and a Declaration which I gave him to
read. If that, as I humbly fubmit ir, ke an A&
of Trecafon, 1t is carrying the Matter furcher than
it hath been in thofe fuw Cales I beg leave to men-
tion that juft occur to my Memiery, 1f I {tace
them wrong, I fhall be forry. The Cafc of Collepe,
the Oxferd Joiner, It was afked the Courr, Do
you take my Words diflin& from my Adtions?
No, fays the Court, we do not do fo, You de-
clared you weuld godown to Oxferd, ard allaflinare
the King’s Perfon.  In order to thar, you went
down with Piflols before you. ‘That at that Time
was declared to bean Overt-Act 5 the going down
to Oxford 1n that Manner 5 and the Court feemed
to rely upon it as the Overt-Aét of the Treafon,
and not the talking here, or confpiring that he
would afflaflinate the King, but the going down
in a hoftile Manner,  So likewife in the Cafe of
my Lord Preflen s there the Queftion was, whe-
ther thofe Letters that were found with him in
the Ship ; whether that was an Overt-A¢& of
Treafon.  The Judges feemed to be of Opinion,
that the taking thofe Letters with him as he was
ooing to France, and there to confult the flirring
u» an Infurrection here, and to invite the Freuch
King to invade us, was an Overt- A& of Traalon.
But there is a ftronger Cale, the Cafe of my Lord
Ruffel.  He was indicted, as I am, for compafiing
and imagining the Death of the King. The
Overt-Act laid 1 the Indiétment o manifeft that
Intention, was, that he, with the reft of the Con-
{pirators, confulted to feize upon the King’s Guards:
In purfuance to that Difcourfe and Confpiracy
which they had had, 1t appeared that Sir Thomas
Armftrong was fent to take a View of the Guards
in order to carry on the Defign.  Notwithitand-
ing there was a purfuing of their Defign of feiz-
ing the King’s Guards, in fending Sir Themas
Arinstrong o view them, yet the Cafe was thought
fo very hard 1n refpe¢t o my Lord Rufel], that
his Atainder was reverfed by an A& of Par-
liament, Therefore I only argue, with great
Submiffion, that in my Cale, where nothing is
done but accidentally calling in at the Green Aan,
ftaying a lietle while there, and, as hath been
{ivorn, here was nothing but a mere Difcourfe,
and then T gave him a Declaration o read,  If I
did fo, it was only Words, As to the fecond,
it was nothing but publifhinga Libel.  And fhall
this be 2 Foundation to deprive me of my Life

and
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and Eftate, to the utter Ruin of myfelf and Fa-
mily ? Itis an unprecedented Thing, hath it ever
been? Therefore I hope your Lordfhip, before
you give any Judgment tn this Matter, will take it
mnto your Conlfideraiion, whether any Thing done
m Lffex doth amount to an Overt-Act of Treafon.

Mr. Hungerford,. My Lord, I humbly hope,
as it is my Duty to do what Service I can to
my Client, and as 1t 15 in Cafe of Life, that I
fhall have your Lordfhip’s Indulgence for a few
Wouds. My Lord, he hach juftly ebferved ——

Mr. Sery. Pergelly, My Lord, 1 would not
nterrupt Mr, Layer, becaule it may be fuppofed
he 1s not fo well acquainted with the Method of
Proceeding.  But T hope I may take the Liberty
to terrupt his Counfel, who know by wvery
great Lxpertence the Method of Proceedings,
that they are not now to infilt on the Nature of

the Lividence, whether the Evidence that hath been
given 15 fufficient to maingain the Indictment ; that
1s not the Bulinels of this Day. It they have any
thing to offer, any Objections to make in arreft of
Judgment, that 1s the Bufinefs of the Day : But to
arraign the Proceedings upon the Trial, as it is faid
that the Lvidence given did not amount toa Con-
iultation, or to prove any Overt-Act of the Treafon
alledg’d, 1 don’t apprehend it to be proper at this
Time : I did not interrupe the Prifoner himfelf 5
but I hope his Counte), who know the Method
of Preceeding better, in Cafes of High-Treafon,
fball not bz permitted to go on in that Manner.,

Mr. A, Gen. The Gentlemen thae are Coundel
for the Prifoner know very well, that the Evidence
aiven on the Trial is not now before your Lord-
fhup; the fingle Quellion that can now be made s,
whether the Indiclment is good, and the Falls
charged and found by the Jury, are well laid, and
do amount to {uflicicet Overt-A@s of the High-
Treaton, of which the Prifoner ftands indited.
Mr, Layer hath been giving an Account of the
Witnefles, and making Obfervations on the things
which they fworey he . as borne with: But the
Gentlemen thar are his Counfel, feem to be open.
g in the fame Manner, but as to them, we mult
infilt upon it, that they fhould be confin’d to what
15 proper, and apply themfelves to move in Arreft
of Judgment, if they can find any thing upon
the Face of the Record of which they can take
Advantage.  But I think they are not entitled to
go on with Obilervations apon the Evidence in the
Manner they were beginning,

Mr. Hungerford. I affure your Lordfhip Idid not
defign it, T did not intend to recapitulate any part
of the Evidence, or to obferve upon it. And there-
fore there was no Oceafion for the Caution, I thank
yout Lordlhup for the Indulgence you give me, and
I will conform myfelf to the Rules the King’s Coun-
Jel preferibe, to obferve upon nothing but the Record.

My Lord, the Indi@ment is 1n this Manner
the Species of the Treafon laid to the Charge of
the Prifoner, s the compafling and imagining the
Death of the King,  The firlt Overt-A& of that
Treafon, 15, that he did- meet, confult, confpire
and agree to ratle a Rebellion, and 2 Guerram in
the Kingdom, which is no Overt-Aét of compal-
fing and imagining the Death of the King,

I know how the Authorities have been 3 but in
the Cafe of Life, your Lordfhip will give me leave
to oblerve, that by the Statute of 25 Edw, 111
compalling and imagining the Death of the King—

L. C. Just. Mr. Hungerford, we would hear you
in any thing that is proper, but confider if you are
not offering & matter in Arreft of Judgment that
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hath been determined againft you a hundred times,
Hath it not been conftantly allowed as an Overt-
A& of Treafon in compafling and imagining the
Death of the King, if the Parties did meet, con-
fult, and agree to levy War? Hath it not been
conftantly agreed, and doth it not ftand allowed to
befo? Now to perfuade us at this Time to over-
throw thofe Refolutions taken by our Predeceffors,
is {uch a thing as is not right. Do you think we
will give a Judgment contrary to what our learned
Predeceflors have given in Cafes of the greateft
Moment? If I thought 1t wasof any Effect, 1 thould
not grudge {pending time to hear you, but you
muft agree, ic hath been over-ruled a hundred times.

Mr. Fuft. Eyre. It hath been fettled a great many
times, particularly in the Cale of Dorrel, Gordon and
Keiiry 1nwhich 1t was argued over and over again,
and the Court was of Opinion that the confulting
and agreeing to levy 'War, was an Overt-A& of
Treafon in compafling and imagining the Death
of the King, and gave Judgment accordingly.

Mr. Fuf. Fortefeue Aland. Mr. Kettelbey was
Counfel lor the Prifoners in that Cafe, which was
in this Court in the xft Year of this King, when
this Objection was made ; and very well knows,
that the Court, upon that Occafion, faid, that they
ought not to have fuffcred this mateer to be made
a Queftion, for that it was arraigning the Judg-
ments of very many learnced Judges.

Mr, 7uff. Posys. No one thing relating to
‘T'reafon 1s more lettled 5 and in that Cafe as hath
been mentioned, it was agreed, and It was the
Judgment of all the Judges that tried that Caufe.

Mr. Hungerfora, My Lord, I humbly hope —

Mr. Faff. Eyre. It mult not be admitted, we
muft not lutter fo plain a Point to be difputed ; it
1s not only milpending of time, but fhaking what
has been eltablifhed by every Trial in which any
thing of this kind has been mentioned, from the
Cale of the Regicides to this Day.

Mr. Ful. Poxys. In the Cafes of the Regicides,
thefe Matters are printed in Keyliing,

L. C. Juft. And in all the Trials ever fince, there
15 fearce one Cafe hath happened, where the Cafe
hath been for compafling and imagining the Death
of the King, but that i¢ hath been laid for an Overt-
Alt, that the Party charged, did confult and agree
tolevy War to bring his wicked Intentions to Effet.

Mr, Hungerford. There 1s no Doubt, but that
the Regicides were the worlt and moft notorious
Criminals that were ever broughe before a Court of
Juftice ; and yet there is one Circumflance of thofe
Lrials, quoted in the very Book which Mr. Juftice
Powys mentions, which was never practifed before,
and [ am lure never was fince 5 that is, the Judges
who were to try the Criminals, and the King’s
Counfe] who were to profecute them, met and con-
fulted together to form and fix the Accufation.

Bue 1t it 15 your Lordthip’s Pleafure, 1 fhall
fpeak no further to that Matter.

L. C. juwt. You have the Opinion of the
Court, and I dare fay it is your own Opinion ;
and as the Refolutions are 1o pofitive, it is not for
us to make IndiCtments at this Day.

Mr. Hungeiford. 1 Ihall not prefs ic any forther,
There 15 another thing arifes upon another Overt-
A lud i the Indi€tment, that is, Publicavit
quoddam Scriptum, &c. Iapprehend the Subftance

of the guoddam Scriptum ought to be mentioned
i the Indi¢tment,

L. C. 7Fuff. Itis mentioned in Effe@, that it
was to excite People to a Rebellion and an Infur-
rection,

Mr.
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M. Hungerford. Your Lordfhip will obferve that
the criminal Words in the Scriptum, are not men-
tioned in the Inditment ; and by the Rule given
by all the Judges of Englaid in Dr. Sacheverell’s
Cafe, inall Accufations, whether by Informationor
Indi@ment, the Words fuppofed to be criminal
ought to be inferted 3 and fince that is not done In
this Cafe, the Overt-Aét 15 not well laid, and the
Judgment ought to be arrefted.

L.C. Fuf. You know, Mr. Hmgerford, if but one
Overt-Aét is well-laid and prov’d, it 1s fufhicient.

I don’t know, I was {orry you forc’d me to re-
member what I would willingly have forgot. [ re-
member, on that Occafion, you was pleafed to
compare 1t to a Ballad, which is an Expreflion that
oughtnot to be us’d, Is that a Thing, when a Prifo-
ner 1s on ‘Lrial for his Life, and a Matter of Infur-
rection is intended againft the King, to be treated in
{o ludicrousa manner? It is Jaid as an Overt-A&t of
Treafon, and what isan Overt-Act of Treaton, 1f a
Man’s publifhing a traiterous Libel, and exciting
Perfons to a Rebellion and Infurretion againtt the
King is not ? Thisisundoubtedlyfo: And when we
are upon this Confideration, to compare it to a
Ballad, and fay he might as well publifh a Ballad,
and lay it as an Overt-Aé& of Treafon in the In-
dictment 3 1t 15 an Expreflion that ought not to be
us’d, and I wasvery forry you did ufe it.

Mr, Hungerford, 1am fure I did not fay he
might as well publifh a Ballad and make 5t T'rea-
fon 3 [ have a greater Duty, and a more tender
Regard to lus facred Muyjefty, and the Quict of
his Kingdom and People, than to exprefs myfelf
fo. What I then obferved, as near as I can recol-
le€t, was, that there were but few Minutes to
ranfact the Bufinels at the Greerr Man 3 that what
was done, could not amount to the publifhing of
a Declaration, when there was nothing done but
2 Man’s reading to hunfelf: 1 knew the whole
Accufation did tarn upon that Tranfaction at the
Gieen Maeny and m Service to my Client, 1
thought it my Bufinefs to make itappear as incon~
fiderable as Iceuld 5 and if in this I have offended
your Lordthip, or the Court, 1 am heartily lorry
for 1t, and beg their Pardon.

Mr. Ketelbey, It your Lordthip pleale to fa-
vour me with a few Words,

I (hail bevery tender of offering to your Lord-
thipany Thing on this Indictment, which hath
been over-raled in any of the Cufes where [
have been before concerned 5 whether conipi-
ring to levy War, unlefs War be actually levy’d
15 an Overt-A&t of High-Treafon, was menti-
oned on the Trial of Deriel, Gerdenr, and Kerr,
aid 1 then took that among other Exceptions in
Arreft of Judgmenr, which were not allowed ;
but the Statute of 13 Elrz. cap. 1. was not at that
Time mentioned 5 and I have fome other Mat-
ters to offer on that Head, if it is now open to

ne.

L. C. Fuff. Confider a little how you treat
the Court ; the Objection hath been {foleminly -
ken in this Court, argued and adjudged by this
Court, and now you come to arraign that Jude-
ment that was then given.

Mr. Ketelbey. 1 fhall go off from that, and fay
no more upon it, fince your Lordfhip is of Opi-
nion that 1t is a Point ferled.  Bur, my Lord,
I mult beg Leave to take Notice of what Mr.,
Attorney has oblerved relating to the five Overt-
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Ads laid 1n the Indiétment, and fubmiit to your
Lordfhip ; for Idon’t know that it was ever de-
termined otherwife, but that if one of the Overt-
Acts appears to be bad, Judgment muft be ar-
refted, |

L. C. Fust. Alas! quite thecontrary : T believe
you will find in Roeskweod’s Trial, which youhave
in your Hand : "There it is faid, if one Overt-A&
held, the Indi€tment is good.

M. Ketelbey. If Tam not miltaken, in Sir Fobi
Friena’s Cale it was not fo : We can’t take upon
us to fay, That all the Overt-Aé&s ase wrong.
Isit not like an Aion in a Civil Cafe, where
there are feveral Counts in the Declaration ? It
there be one wrong, that will flay Judgment for
the whole,

L. G, Fust. Becaufe it 1s an entire Declaration 5
and the Jury inftead of giving Damages on ane
Count, may have given it on the Count they ought
not.

Mr, fuff. Eyre. Butif one Count be fufficient,
the Pluntft fhall certainly have Judgment upon
Demurrer,

Mr, Ketelbey, What I had to offer was, that if
one Overt-Act 1s bad, the Indifétment s bad 5 burt
if 1t be otherways, and if there be any one Overt-
Act well Jaid, that that thall make che Indictment
good 3 and your Lordfhip will mainein that In-
dictment : I have nothing ¢llc to offer,

Mr. 11, Ger. Say what you have a Mind
to fay.

Mr. Kerelvey. I did not know but I was right
in what I was going to fay ; and [ think it a Point
too material to be eafily given up.

L. C. fust. Youallow one of the Overt-Adls
15 well laid 5 confider if there is no Overt-A&t but
that one; muft there not be Judgment aganit
the Prifoner ¢ Suppofe one Overt-Aétthat is not
good, mult that take off the Force ot that which
i5 pood ?

Mr. Ketelbey. 1 fubmit it, whether this 15a Pa-
rallel Cafe in a Declaration for Work and La-
bour done, if there be but one Count, and that
well laid, the Plaintift thall recover : But if in
a {econd Count, he comes and fays in Court, that
he had done fuch Work and Labour ; that the
Defendant promifed to pay him fuch a Sum, if
either thefe Counts are naught, 1t may be moved
in Arreft of Judgment.

Mr. Fuft. Eyre.  If the Damages are taken ge-
nerally, otherwile not.

Mr. Seij. Penselly, You find in Reokwood's Cale,
it 1s there held, if the Jury tound him guilty of
any one Over-Act, that it would mamtain the
Indi¢tment : But what 1s your Olyjection ?

L. C. Just. We will hear any Thing that you
think material to ofter.

Mr., Ketelbev, T would not have offered i¢, if 1
did not think it material 3 and for my pare, I can-
not find any {uch thing in Reokivood’s T'rial, orany
where elfe, (I beg Pardon it 1 have overlooked
it) that one good Overt-A&t fhould maintain the
whole Indi¢tment 3 T admit three or four of them
to be good, as they are [aid in this Indictment 5
the only Objection 1 have, is, to the Uncertainty
of that which rclates to the publifhing of 2 ma-
licious, fcandalous, feditious, and traiterous
Wriung, contenci® &' purpertan’ cxbortation’ inci-
tainens & praomicrnm promiffior’ ad fuadendum &5
excitand® fubdites Domini Regis ad avina & guerram

U contra
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contra Domingm Regem, Sc. My Lord, the‘Rul_c
that my Lord Chicf ]uﬂicc Coke lays dow:vn in his
frft Tnffitates, fo 303, 4. 15, Th:lE in Ind:&m@ts,
a Certainty to a common Intent s not fufficient,
no more than in Counts, Replications, or other
Pleadines of the Phinuff. Now whether this,
15 it s Jaid, hath the Certainty which that Rule
requires, your Lordfhip will determine. In all
capital Cales, cfpecially in High-Trealon, the
Indictments nult be drawn with the utmolt Ac-
curacy and Curtainty,  The Words Lere are,
that he pallicavit quoddain wmaliticfuin, feditiofusi,
& proditorizm feriptuin : And then fets forth only
the Subflance of the Libel in general.  Isthere
not the fame Realon that the Words fhould have
been fet forth in this Indictment, asin an Tndict-
ment fora Libel, that {o the Court might judge,
apon the Face of the Indictment, whether they
did import Excitement and Lxhortation, /fevare
Guerrens. T mult own, in two or three late Cales,
the Words have not been {ct forth,

L. C. Fu7, Remember Francia’s Cafe, |

Mr. Ketelbey,  Lam going to mention Liancia’s,
and hope I {hall be able to account for that, as
well as the others : In Fraucia’s Caie the In:.lirﬂ‘.-
ment was, that he wrote feveral Letters, notl-
fying his Intention to Levy War, and requiring
Aid from Abroad, without particularizing the
Words of thote Letters, or the Subftance of them.
The Quellion was not upon an Arreft of Judg-
ment s bur 1t came on in the Courle of the Tral,
whether fuch Evidence fhould be allowesd. 1t
was Infifted upon, that there was a Letter mien-
tioned, and the Subftance of that Letier ought to
have been et forth m the Indictiment ¢ or elie the
Leteer itlelf ought not to be read, much lefs a
Copy of 1t entered in the Prifoncr’s Copy-book,
as Eviderceagaimft him: And I muft bee Leave
to refy on the folemn Refolution of all vour Lord-
fhips i Dr. Saencr 75  Cale, thar the very
Words fhould be expreite fet torth i ali Indide-
ment whatfoever.  In o owde’s Cale, there was
no Metion in Arrelt ef Judement 5 for there was
ro Verdict agamil hium o Thorelore, whether that
Precedent will fland incar Way, fo as to lop us
in our prefent Obiection, vour Lordthip will de-
rermine: And e Cale of Colonel iy, the
vay Words are fet forth, the Title of the
Book, and the Part charged to be
Treston.  In KRolioze 22, i Teoine’s
(Tale, he was indicted for com-
pafling the Death of the King ; and his Overt-
Act va, the publitbing o Boolk calld, o/ Tieatife
of the Exccntivi of uflice s and the Tide of that
Book, and the vary traafomable Part objedled a-
gainfl the Purloner were fet forth at large,  In
Clemai’s Indictmens, two Letters were menti-
oned, which were declared to be his Hand : There
was no Counlely, nor Motton made 1n Arrelt of
Judgment, 1 don’t remember any Cale where
they latd fo generaly as o this Indi€tment, ex-
cept Livicie’s ad Coleman’s, 1 fhall only beg
[ cave to add, that where there s a Libel, o Book,
or Latiers, charged as the Overt-Act of that
which is fuppoled to be Trealon, and upon which
the Offence is grounded, they ought to be fo far
fe forth, thaca Perfon may have an Opportunity
to clear hisfell of the Accufation ; T don’t know
any Precedent to the contrary, but that of frai-
cia’s Cale, where there was not any Opportun:ty

Tiial !'5.;_.
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of debating it, he being acquitted on his Tria] 5
and the Cafe of Coleman, which was before any
Counlcl was allowed.

L. C. fust. The Objettion was taken then in
Francia’s Cafe as properly, as if it had been taken
in Arreft of Judement 5 for the A& of Parliamene
fays, thatno Evidence fhall be admitted or given
of any Overt-Adt, that is not exprefly Iaid in the
Indiétment, againftany Perfon or Perfons whatfo-
ever, You took the Objedtion, and faid, that
this Overt-Act of Treafon is not exprefly Jaid in
the Indittment 5 and therefore it ought not to be
given In Evidence : You know, that that was
over-rul’d at the Time of making the Objection,
and thac the Opinion of the Court was aginit
you. Asto what you fay, that the Words muft
be fet forth, it is perfectly wrong 5 a Man may fet
forth the Subflance of the Words, without fhew-
Ing the Words themiclves: That is the Way that
1s proper to be taken, and when it is otherwife, it
1s not fo as it ought to be done.,

Mr. Fuf. Eyre. Itwas indeed the Opinion of the
Judges who were prefent at Dr, Sg-
cheverell’s Trial, that the particular  Trial 181
Words fuppofed to be criminal ought
to be exprefly fpecified in every Indiétment or In-
formation for any Mifdemeanour by writing or
fpeaking s and fince itis urged as an Authonty to
conclude our Judgments, I can’t forbear faying,
that it was a great Surprize to WWofliinfler-Tall,
and particularly to thofe who attended this Court,
to hear that any fuch Opinton had been given ;
for it had never been kid down in any of our
Books as the Rule of Law or Praétice, that the
particalar Words fuppoled to be criminal, oaghe
to be {pecify’d m the Indictment or Information 3
and we had learned from my Lord Chict Juflice
Helty that a Libel might be deferibed cither by
the Senfe and Subftance, or by the particular
Words, and thatan Indiétment or Information in
cither of thefe Forms would be good,  IF you
look 1nto the Books of Lintrics you will find feveral
Inflances where Slanders and  Perjuries are charg-
ed 1 Latin, as falfe and feandalous Affertions,
and not in the Wordsas fpoken.  And in $ralsy’s
* Cale who was indicted for treafonable Words
npon the otat. 13 Car, 11 it was chareed in the
Indictment, that he Ipaaking of the King, had
traiteroufly declared,  qued ipfe predicius Staley
ipfeiit Domiinie: Reocit sateificeret s and the Fadk
was, that S7aley in Converfation had fpoke Words
to this cfivCt in Freuch, which were proved by two
Witndiles; and this Evidence was thought fuffici-
ent to convict him of High-Treafon ; and yet the
particular Words  fuppoled and adjudged to be
criminal, were not {pecificd in the Indi@ment -
and there was an Information for Perjury -, in
which all the great Countel of Englaid were con-
ceried on one Sule or other, which was tried at
Bar in my Lord Clicf Jultice 7/2/2°s Time, and
the Ofience was charged in the fime Manner ; for
the Subftance of what the Defendant had fivorn
was et forth in Latin, and the Evidence which
he gave w Englifh being prov’d to be falfe, he was
convitted of the Perjury without any Objection ;
and yet the particular Zzglih Words in which he
gave his Lyidence were not exprefly fpecified in
the Information 3 and I dont find that the [pecity-
ing of the particalar Words was ever faid or fu-
gelted to be necefary, till this fudden Opinion

1 Dom. Rexe v Griepe, Trin, § Will,
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- was given 3 and th_erefore as [ never tltuught it
right, I can’chear iturged asan Authority with-
ot offering my Reafons to the contrary, and ac-
knowledging that I have been long in a great Mif-
take, if there be any one Refolutton i the Books
to fupport it.

Mr. Faft. Pewis. In the Cale of Fraicia it was
infifted on in order to ftop the Trial 5 the main of
the Obje€tion was, that they ought not to pro-
duce Evidence of the Letters, becaufe thole Let-
ters were not exprefly fet forth in the IndiCiment,
and that very Objection was made 1 order to ftop
the Trial,  What was fad there i Cales of Li-
bels is intended when fet forth 72 bec vorde, and
not in Latiin, the more common Way : But it 1s
another Thing where 1t is an Overt-Act of the I-
magination of a Man’s Heart 1n Tl‘f_‘;’lr(fl‘l, it 1S
fufficient to fct forth the Subftance of them
therefore it was fo fully fetded in Piancie’s Cale,
that T thought 1t would be never mentioned  a-
aain 3 the Pointwas argaed, the Objections were
made and over ral’d, and it was the very Pomnt on
which the Trial proceeded.

Mr. /it Gen. In my Lord Prefler’s Cale there
were {everal Notes, Memorandums and Writings,
that were the very Overt-Adts of the Trealon,
yet they were not particalarly et forth 1n the In-
dictment.

Mr., Seif. Peirgelly. There it was ailedged, that
the Lord Preflon prepared and compofed {everal
Writings, feveral traiterous Notes and Memoran-
dums, for the giving Inftrution and Information
for the Freuch King how to invade Euglond, 1
defire to put Mr. Ketelbey this Cafe : Suppole any
one had proclatmed the Pretender at Charnig-Crofs,
or elfewhere, and had read his Declaranon, ox-
citing the People to revole and to come in to him,
and promifing themn Rewards 5 and then the De-
claration had been carried off, or {o difpofud of
that it could not be recovered and produced 1n
Evidence ; T would be glad to know, whether that
Perton might not be indicted {or Treafon, without
{etting forth the particalar Words which he read
out of fuch Declaration; or whether he fhould
elcap. Punifnment for want of being able 10 fer
aut the particular Words ? ;

Mr. Kevelbey, The reading of the Paper 1n tha
Cafe would be fuflicient.

L. C. fust. Have you done, or have you any
thing further to ofker for the Prifoner ?

Cl. of the Cr. Chiiflopher Lever, hold up your
Hand. You have been mdicted of Fligh-Trea-
fon, &,

Prif. T have nothing more to fay now, becaufc
my Counfel have given 1t up.  But afrer your
Lordfhip hath paficd Sentence upon me, I hope
and defire, for the Sake of other People more than
myfelf, thofe that [ have had very great Dealings
and Correfpondence with, particularly my Yord
Londonderry, and feveral others, that I would do
Juftice toy that your Lord(hip would give me a
realonable Time to make up their Accounts; and
when that is done, I hope your Lord(hip will give
me {tll a further Time to makeup that great Ac-
count which I have in another Place : When this
18 done, 1f his Majefty doth not think fit gracioufly
to continue me in this World, I will dare to die
like a Gentdeman and a Chriftian, not doubting
but that I fhall meet with a double Portion of
Mercy and Jultice in the next World, tho® *tis
denied me m this,

L.C Fuft, Chrifloyher Layer, You have been
Andicted, and afer a long Examination and fair

for High-Treafon.

331
Trial, have been convifted of High-Treafon in
compafling and imagining the Death of the King.

You have had all the Induleence and Advan-
tage that the Law would allow you. You have
had Countel affigned you of your own chufing, to
advife you preparatory to your Trial, and to
aili{t you 1n making your Defence at your Trial.

Thefe Counfel have been permitted to fay
whatever they thought proper for your Service ;
and I heartily wifh that I could fay that they had
not exceeded, that they had not taken a preater
Laberty than they ought to have done : But how-
ever that was, the Court thought fit to permit it
In themn, that they might not be difcouraged in
offering any thing that was proper for your De-
fence 5 we did not cenfure it then, on this Con-
(ideration,

The Jury that bhave found you suilty, are fuch,
as may be juflly fid, you yourfell approved of 5
for, tho’ the Law givesyoua Libzrty of challeng-
ing five and thirty, you challenged but four and
thirty 3 fo you allowed the reft o be an indiffe-
rent Jury, to pafs beeween the King and you as
to your Life and Death,

The Evidence on which you have been conviét-
ed, 1s the cleareft and plancdt that ever T heard.
Your perfonal Conferences with the Pretender at
Roine 5 your conftant Corrcfpondence with him
andd his Agents afterwards 5 the Scheme yeu had
formed for the Ixecating this Treafon; your
Confeflion of the greatelt Part of it before the
Lords of the Council ; and at luft your Flight
when 1 the Hands of Juftice, out of Window
two Pair of Stairs, and the Endeavours you ufed
wien retaken to corrupt and prevail with thofe
that took you, by Rewards, to let you go off';
thefe are Matters fo very clear and plain, and did
concur fo exaétly with the Evidence of the Wit-
nefies, that it did not reft on thetr Credic; the
only Queftion was, whether the Jury did believe
what you yourfclf had declared on your Exami-
nation before the Lords of the Council, and by
the Scheme that was found tn your Cuaftody,

This being the Nature of the Evideace, T muit,
according to what 1s ufual, put you in mind of
the horrid Wickednefs you have been found guilty
of. .

The hirft Matter projected to be done, was to
{eize the Tower of Loudsin, to {et a Guard at the
Exchange and other Places 5 to feize the Bank, and
take from thence what Money you had Oceafion
fors by wiich the whole City of Laudon, and i
confcquence the whole Nation, would inevitably
have been 1nvolved in Blood and Confufion :
This was to have been the firft Fruits of this pro-
jelted Scheme.,

The next Step to be taken by this execrable
Scheme, was to fcize the facred Perfon of the
King : a King, whoduring the whole Courle of
his Reign hath been the moft religious Obferver
of our Laws, the moft careful Preferver and Pro-
teCtor of all our Civil and Religious Rights, and
the moft merciful Prince that ever fat on the
Throne of thefe Kingdoms ; yet chis, this moft
excellent Prince, was to be fuized and made a
Sacrifice to Popery and arbitrary Power.,

The next Step to be taken, was to feize the
Prince 3 and when that was done, no body can
doubt but the young Prince and Princeffes mufk
and fhould have followed the Fate of their F -

ther : So that the Proje&t muft and would have
ended in the Deftrufiion of all the Royal Family
©on
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on this Side the Water; and when that was done,
*twas thought ’twould be an ealy Matter to fec
the Pretender on the Throne.

This being done, the King and the Royal Fa-
mily deltroyed, and the Prewender advanced to
the Throne, what the Confequence of that muft
and would have been, 15 obvious to every body ;
it mult have ended in the entire Deftruction and
Diffolution of our moft happy Lftablithmene and
Conftitution 5 the happieft, T think, that ever
any People emjoyed 5 ic muft have ended in the
Deftruction of our Laws, our Liberties, our Re-
ligion, and the Church of £iglend as by Law clta-
blithed 5 and we muft have become from the motl
happy, the moft miferable People on Larth,

Thefe horrid and weeerable Dehignsare lo very
hetnous in themifclves, that they hardly will ad-
mit of any Circumflance of Aggravition : But |
muft fay, I can’t avoid faying, that there are
Circumltances with relpeét to you, that make
them more hemous, 1f poflible,  You were bred
up to the Law, and you muft be fuppoled t
know the Lxcellency of our happy Conititution
and Government, and the Laws which you pro-
fefled 5 which makes your Crime much  the
OrCater.

Another Matter, which 1s a great Aggrava-
tion of your Offence, 15, that you were, or at leadt
profcled yourlelf, a Proteftant, and a Member of
the Church of Englend, whiltt you engaged your-
felf in Meatures which mult mevitably have de-
flroyed that Church which you profefs yourfelt a
Member of.

Thele are the Tralons which youare convicted
of 3 and being fo, the Law adjudges you not fit to
lives and the Judgmentof che Law s, and 1t s
conlidered by the Court, that

2o, Chriftopher Layer, ¢ red 15 the Place fivir

wheitce Yoi caiisey end [roi théice vou gite 10 be
dratcir to the Place of Fouccuions aid there you
aic tobe hang*d oy Neck, but ot il vou aie
dead, but you aire to be cut desen afive, aind your
Bowels to be tokein vty and bupnt bifore your
Face 5 your flead is 1o be feod froin vour Body,
aird your Body to be divided iinto four Quarters
and that your [lead cid Quarters be difpofed of
where bis Majefly foall thik fi,
" Then the Prifoner was carried back to the
Tower of Londoirs but on TFeduefluy Noveiner
28, the Attorney and Sollicitor General moved
tor & Rule for his Luxecution, and that che Court
would appoint a Time and Place for that Pur-
pofe s and faid, that the chict Dehgn of execu-
ting fuch Criminals was to be an Example to o-
thers not to offend in the like Manner, and w
deter them from commutting Trealon, and there-
fore they moved that the Exccution might be 1
Middlofexy though the Fact was done 1 £ffexy, and
faid, that there were many Precedents for execu-
ting, Criminals n fuch Places as this Court fhould
think proper.

Thercupon the Court afked the Clerk of the
Crown if he knew any tuch Precedents, who re-
plied, thatone Frzzpatrick *, who wus an Affociare
with the Lord Auaddey, was exceuted 1 Addlefex
for a Facl committed in Wiltfbire, and two other
fate Precedents of the lame Nature,

So 4 Rule was made to the Licutenant of the
Tower, to deliver the Prifoner to the Sherifts of
Londoi and Afiddlzfex: 3 and another Rule to the
faid Sheriffs o exccute him on Monday Deceinber
rhe 12th, at Thdwii,

* See Trals 7ol 10 N 320 fe 3700 + lis Hriting aever appar'd in Patlic,
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Then the King’s Council moved the Court to
alter the Rule made the Day before, for Mr. -
gan, the Clergyman, to attend the Prifoner; for
that he was wken into Cuftody upon  Sufpicion
of Treafon, and had given Bond to appear in
Court this Day.

The Court anfwered, That any Clergyman
fhould be admitted to the Prifoner, who was g
Perfon of known Honelly, Integrity, and Learn-
g, but not fuch who might harden him in his
Iniquity 1n bis faft Moments 5 fo two more Cler-
oymen were jomned 1n the Rule, and the other
two {lruck out.

Afterwards, and on that very Day before he
was to be executed, he had a Reprieve, and there

2ing fome Opintons, that he could not be execy-
ted by Virtue of any Warrant figned by the King
but that a new Rule muft be made in the Court of
King’s-Bencls tor his Iixecution, he was according-
Iy bronghe o the Bar m Iilav-Term following,
and a2 Rule was made for his Execution on the
27thof ek but before that Time he procured
another Reprieve, and afterwards another Rule
was made to execute him on the 17th Dayof A2
following, which was done accordingly, He mad:
a fhort Spueech to the Affiltants, wherein he avowd
the Principles tor which he fuffered, recommuend-
ing the Interelt of the Pretender 5 and delivered
a Paper to the Under-Shieriti, and allo another to
a Iriend of his,  Fis Head wasaticrwards carried
to Newgate, and was the next Day, fixt upon
Teiiple-Bui 3 but his Quariers were delivered 1o
his Friends 5 who took care to ger them decently
interr’d. The Paper abovementioned wis -
cloled ina Cover, fup.rferibad,

To AMr. Walwr Price, Under-Shoriff, ar ?is
Howfe m Caltle-Yard, s [olbourn s And

was as followeth, w7z,

M. SHERITFF,

Flaving previoufly refelved to imploy all

Time allowed me at the Place of Idxecution,
m Devotion, and making my Peace with Gop,
thro® the All-Sufficient Merits and Mediation of
y Gracious Saviour, 1 have, mftad of any
Speech 1 could maike to the Spectators, on this
unfortunare Occalion, committed my laft Thoucht;
of all Worldly Aftursto Writing *, while I ad
fome Intervals of "Time tor fo doing 3 and have {tnz
two sAuthentic Duphicares thereof, with my Fand
lubleribed to tie Bottom of each Sheet, to two
trufty Iriends, o tefbity thereby to the World, in
duc Time, and as Occalion olkers, the True Pris-
ciples of both my Religisn and Rayalty, as well as
the wnparallclPd Harcfhips and Tyngiice Thave lacely
met with s for which I pray Gad forgive the Aun-
thors thereof,

And to the End, that none of my Friends, who
had Acecls to me fince I'was fentenced to die, may
be hable to come into any Trouble upon the Score
of publifhing my faid Writings, T fent the Draught.
thercof fealed up, together with Dravglits of two
feveral Letters direéted to certatn Perlons in the #4-
itmiflration, toOne of my Friends abovemention?d,
defiving him to copy them all over fair, and return
them to me @ And then 1 fubferibed them, and re-
twrned them to my Friends, without letting the
Bearers, Firlt or Lafl, know any thing ot the
Contents,

S0, taking Leave of this vain World, God in
Mercy, Receive my Soul! Amen.

Chriftop. Layer.

CXCIV, Ze
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CXCIV. Proceedings in Parliament againft John Plunket,
George Kelly alias Johnfon, and Dr. Francis Atterbury,
Bz/l)o of Rochelter, wpon Bills of Pains and Penalties for

a Treafonable Confpiracy, May 1723.

HYE abovenamed Perfons having

been taken into Cuitody by Order
[' I of the Governmenr, fora treafonable
: @:}% Confpiracy, it was thought proper
; %9 to lay the Lerrers, Papers, and Lxa-
minations relating thereto, before the Parliament;
whercupon the Houfe of Commons appointed a
Committee, faei. 15. confifling of the following
Perfons:

The Right Honourable Syencerr Compton Llq;
Speaker.

Robert IWalpole Efq; Chancellor of the

qucr,

Sir ]ajm D Fekvll, Mafter of the Rolls,

Pand Methuen Elq, Comptroller of his Majefty’s
Floufhold,

IWilliam Poulteiey Efqs

Fobir Smitis Eigs

Richard Hampden Fiq;

Licutenant General }73lls,

Sir Robert Sutton,

Exche-

The Committce chofe Hilliam Pullney Efqs
their Chairman, and made their Report to the
Houfe, March 1. which was as follows :

HE Committee appointed to examine Chrif-

topoer Leyer and others, m relation to the
Confpiracy mentioned in His Majelty’s Speech,
1o be carrying on againit his Perfon and Govern-
ment, having p{,ru[ul the feveral Papers and ix-
aminations referred to them, and having goone
throngh the Examinacion of thofe Perfons, have
agreed on the tollowing Reporrt.

In fuch variousand fo long Examinations, and
m {o extenfive an Inquiry, your Committee are in
Hopes that they need not be ftrictly ty’d to the
NMethod and Order in which they were appointed,
but may for the Lafe of the Houle range the fe-
veral Mateers occurring to them, as near as they
can, in the Order of Tiwe in which they were
tranfuted, or as they belt ferve by their mutual
Connection to illuftrare each other, without add-
ing any obfervations of their own, but {uch as na-
turaily arife from comparing the feveral Papers
and Lxaminaciens together, and fuch asare necef-
fary to help the Houle the more eafily to per-
cerve the Contradictions and Inconfiftencies of the
Conleflions made by the Prifoners, as well as the
Conbirmations and Coincidence of the Ialts in-
quir’d 1nto.

The Commiuttee obferve 1n general, that a De-
fien has long been carrying on by Perfons of Fi-
gure and Diftinction at home, in Conjunétion

with Traitors abroad, for placing the Pretender
Vo, VI,

9 Geo. .

on the Throne of thefe Kingdoms: That various
Methods have been attempted, and various Times
fixed for putting this Defign in execution, . That
the firlt Intention was to have procured a regular
Body of foreign Forces to invade thefe Kingdoms
at the Time of the late EFlecticns 5 but that the
Confpirators being difappointed in this Expedta.
tion, next refolved to make an Attempt at the
Time thac it was generally believed His Majefly
intended to go to Hanever, by the Help of {uch
Officers and Soldiers as could pafs into Ligland
unobferved from abroad, under the Command of
the late Duke of Ormond, who was to have Janded
in the River with a great Quanuity of Arms, pro-
vided in Sgain for that Purpofe; at which Time
the Tower was likewtle to have been feized, and
the City of London to have been made a Place of
Arms: But this Defign being alfo difappointed,
by the Difcoveries made in ’“fw!fzfzd and his Ma-
jefty’s putting off his ]ourncy by the Incamp-
ment of his Forces at home, as well as che fending
for thofe from Jreland 3 and by the readinefs of his
Majetty’s good Allies the States General to affift
him in cafeof Need 3 by the Orders given 1n Spain,
that the late Duke of Ormoend thould not be {uf-
fered to embark, and the like Orders iu’d in
France, that he fhould not be fuffered to pafs
through that Kingdom 3 the Confpirators found
themfelves under a Necellity of deferring their
Enterprize till the breaking up of the Camp: dur-
ing which Interval, they were labouring by their
Agents and Emiffaries to corrupt and feduce the
Officers and Soldiers of His Majefty’s Army, and
depended fo much on this Defection, as to enter-
tain hopes of placing the Pretender on the Throne,
though they fhould obtain no Afliltance from
abroad, which neverthelefs they {till continu’d to
follicit for.

The Truth and Reality of thefe wicked Defigns,
your Committee are of Opinion will appear con-
firmed to the FHoufe by concurrent and unquef-
tionable Advices from almoft all Parts of Errrape,
fent by Perfons who appear to have had no Com-

wunication with each other ; which Advices have
again been verify’d and fupported by feveral Dif-
coveries made at home, by the Informations and
Confeflions of fome of the Perfons concerned, as
well as by a long and regular Series of Corref] pon-
dence, which the Confpuatom have {urnithed the
Govcrnment with againft themfelves, and the fe-
veral Branches of which appear to the Committee
connected with one another, and :1]1 concurring
in one continued Defign of fubverting our plefent
happy Eftablifhment, and mvolvmg thefe King-
doms in Blood and Con{ufion.

XX The
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The feveral Examinations, Letters, and other
Papers, areallcontamned in an* Appendix to this
Report ; and as they areall feverally numbred, fo
the feveral Paragraphs which are quoted from
them have References to thofe Numbers, that
they may the ealier be turned to upon occafion,
and be fupported by the Auchorities from whence
they are taken.

That the firft Defign was to have been executed
during the leCtions, and to have been fuppore-
ed by foreign Forces, is collected from the fol-
lowing Circumftances :

Philip Neyunoe Clerk (who was drowned m at-
tempting to make his Efcapz from the Meflengers)

declared upon his ® Examination befors fome of

the Lords of the Council, ¢ That he had been
¢ imploycd by George Kelly, and one Haljon,
¢ whom he took to be the late Earl Marfhal, and
¢ who was in Lugland lalt Spring, to draw up
¢ three feveral Memorials to the Regent of Frasuce,
¢ to follicit him to fend Forces to the Aflitance
¢ of the Confpirators, That the laft of thefe Me-
¢ morials was drawn up in December 1721, and
¢ contatned a Demand of Five thoufand Men, to
¢ be {ent over by the Regent to invade thele
¢ Kingdoms,”

This 1s confirmed by unqueftionible © Advices
from Lrance, the 1gth of Aprid Jaft, in which it
1s expreflly afirmed, ¢ That repeated A pplication
¢ had been made to the Regent for fome Time
¢ paft, to furnifh only a Body of Three thoufand
¢ Men, by the help of which the Confpirators
¢ made no doubt but to be able to place the Pre-
“ tender on the Throne.’

Layer, at his® Examination before a Committee

of Lords of the Council, confefs’d, ¢ That being
¢ 1n Dilcourfe with Lord Orrery, foon after his
¢ firft acquaintance with him, (which was before
¢ the Incampment) Lord Orrery faid, Nothing
¢ could relieve the Nation, but a Reftoration ;
¢« and that he would be glad if he could contri-
¢ bute to bring it abcut: That it muft be done by
¢ foreign Forces, and could be done no other
¢ way, That he olten afked Lord Orreiry what
¢ Mcthods they bad taken to procure them?
¢ That Lord Oriery faid, they had Friends abroad
“ that bad maae Application to ihe Regent for Affif-
¢ tance to briny about a Revelution y but he does
< nor know whom his Lordfhip meant; General
¢ Dillen might be s Correfpondent for oughe he
¢ knew: That Lord Orrery likewife told him, the
¢ Regent might be brought to wink at any thing,
¢ but was fo perfidious that he was not to be
¢ trufted 5 and that the Fiench had made a Tool
of the Pretender,’
Layer repeated the fame m part, at two other
© Examinations before his Trial, and has fince
confirmed to your Committee, upon his' Exami-
nation at the Tower, ¢ That Lord Osrery de-
¢ clared himfelf conftantly of Opinion, that ne.
¢ thing could be done to any purpofe in the Pre-
¢ tender’s Favour, without foreign Forces.”

About the latter endl of Aprif, a ® Letter was
intercepted here, coming from Spain, inclofing the
" Copy of one from O——to L , which will
be thewn in the Sequel of this Report, to have
been from the late Duke of Ormond s in which
Ormond fays, ¢ Pray tell Mrs. Chanmont, that
¢ fince the Parliament is dead and gone, I think

™
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¢ it is 2 good Time to make an Effort, when e
¢ BElector 15 gone to Hansver? It will ippear
from the Sequel of this Report, that by Mys,
Chamount 15 probably meant the Pretender,

On the 23d of April another * Leteer was inses-
cepted, fign’d 1387, and direlted 1o Mr, Yaclfi,
which your Committee have good Reafon to e
lieve was from the Bithop of Kochefler to the Pre.
tender, as will be thewn in the following Part of
this Report.  In this Letter he fays, ¢ Notwith-
¢ ftanding this Opportunity is elapfed, T agree with
¢ you another may offer belore the End of (.
¢ Year, though not perhansevery way f favour-
¢ able  This Letter was wrir on the 20th of
Aprily when moft of the Flections were over, and
confequently that Oppertunity was elapied.

‘Thatan Infurrection was thoughtof atthe Time
of the Ilections, 1s fareher confirmed from the {ol-
lowing Particulars ; Layer ¥ contefitd before the
Lords, that Gieow the Gunlinith being in com-
¢ pany withl.ord North after Dinner, and talking
¢ of Five thoufand Arms, and Seven thoufand
© Arins that were ready, faid, Z0en the Wel-
“nunfler Meb sgere up, if they bad bad Arms!
“ Upon which Lord Nessh interrupted him, and
¢ faid, Dor’t talk, you are a Citizen, you know
¢ there are no Arms; but that the Man infifted
“ there were Five thoufand Arms ready in the
¢ City,

Neyee Udeclared, ¢ that Tho. Cartz, Clerk,
¢ made two Expeditiens in the Spring {during, the
¢ Elections) one into Corirzeall, and another into
“ the Counties of [Farwick, Nottingham, Derby
“and Stefferd; and that upon Nevise®s blaming
¢ the riotous Conduct at the Coventiy Eleétion,
¢ Ceite replied, Hang the Lletion, you never
“ faw Fellows of fuch Mettle, fo well trained, fo
¢ fir for bufinefs.’

Among Mr. Dennys Kelly's Papers was feized
an exact " Lilt of the Quarters of all his Majefty’s
IForces in Great Britaiz, abouc the Time that they
were drawn out of moft of the great Towns and
Boroughs, on account of the Ele&ions.

Fromall thefe Circumf{tances the Committee fee
reafon to conrclude, that the frft Defien was ro
have been executed with the Affiflance of forcign
Forces, at the Time of the EFleftions s that the
Pretender, the late Dake of Ormgid, Lord Oriery,
and the Bilhop of Hscliefleis were of this Opinion s
that Memorials were drawn up here, to be pre-
fented to the Regent for this Purpofe; and thar
thofe Memorials were aually prefented, or at
leaft Application made to the Kegent in confe-
quence of them, by Diredtions from Perfons in
Longlaiid 5 and that fuch Difpofitions had been
made for this Enterprife at that Time, as broke
out Into Riots at fome of the Elections: which
muft be allowed to have been no unfavourable
Juncture for fuch an Attempt, confidering the Dif-
contents occafioned by the late Sonth Sea Scheme,
which the Confpirators have all ulong flattered
themfelves they fhould be able to improve into a
Spirit of Rebellion; and the Liberties ufually ta-
ken at {uch a Seafon, when all the Freeholders of
Lingland are neceffarily and legally afftmbled ro-
gether, and when the whole Nation is too apt to
be In a ferment, even in the quicteft Times.

This Defign farling, on account (as tis reafon-
able to behieve) of the Confpirators not being able
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¢0 obtain the Forces they follicited from abroad,
and of their being themielves divided in Opinion
as to the Time and Manner of Execution, their
next Indeavour was to attempt an Infurreétion at
the Time when they fuppofed Iis Majefty would
be going to Hansver, |

Of the Reality of this Defign your Commit-
tee have found fuch evident and concurrent Tefti-
monies. that they think ftronger could not rea-
fonably be expected, n an Affair where 1t was fo
much the Intereft of the Confpirators to act with
the utmoft Caution and Secrecy.

It has already been oblerved, that the late Duke
of Ormsad * thought the Time of the King's
going for Germany, a favourable Opportunity for
making an Efiort, and that the Perfon who figns
1378, * fays, ¢ Notwithftanding this Oppor-
« eunity is clapfed, 1 agree with you another
¢« may offer betore the End of the Year, tho’
¢ not perhaps every way fo favourable.’

Layer confels’d to the Lords at © two [everal
[.xaminations previous to his Trial, and has fince

confirmed to your Committee, ¢ That he made
¢ Application to Lord Orresy to ftand Godfather

« to his Child for the Pretender, intending that
¢ this Mark of Kindnels from the Prerender
¢ fhould ferve as a Credential to Lord Orrery to
¢ induce lim to converle freely with him, in re-
¢ lation to the Pretender’s Affairs: that their Ac-
¢ quaintance having begun i this Manner, °
¢« Lord QOrrery fent to him to inquire into the
¢ Pretender’s Character and Quabhications, and
¢ asked him feveral T'imes whether he had any Re-
¢« commendation from the Pretender to any Per-
¢ {on 3 that upon his anfwering No, his Lord.
« fhip told him, that he feemed to be an horelt
¢ Man, and People of his Integrity fhould be
¢ always welcome to him, whether they had any
¢ Credentials or noj that he, Layer, then gave
¢ his Lordfhip an Account of what had paffed
¢ between the Pretender and him during his Stay
¢« at Rome, and asked his Lordfhip what FHopes
< there were? To which his Lordihip anfwered,
¢ that there were Hopes, for all the Nation were
« aenerally for the Pretender, excepr fuch as
¢ had Places, or Money due to them from the
« Government. That Lord Orrery farther told
¢« him, that Lord North, Siv Harry Geriug, Lord
¢ Strafford and others were going to do a rafh
« Thing in Favour ot the Pretender, which he,
¢ Lord Orrery, was forry for, becaufe it would
« prove abortive, and hinder its fucceeding an-
< other Time: That Layer atked him, who was
< to have the Command, and Lord Oriery told
< him, he believed Lord North and Grey was to
¢ have the Command, and that the faid Lord had
¢ 1 Commiffion from the Pretender; that the
¢« Lord Orrery calied this Defign rafh, becaufe
« not duly concerted, nor fupported by foreign
¢ Forces, without which, he faid, he thought
< they muft be more than Madmen to hope to
< do any Thing to Effe&, for the Pretender’s Ser-
¢ vice. That he, Layer, the next Time he faw
¢« Lord North and Grey, which was before the
< Encampment of the Troops, acquainted him
¢« with what Lord Orrery had faid abour the
¢ Rathnefs of the Defign; that Lord Nereh and

¢ Grey replied, Lord Orrery was a timorous Fel-
¢ low, and was always making Difficulties, and

¢ Schemes out of his own Brain; that he knew
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¢ nothing, northould know; but that it was his,
¢ [Lord Nertl’s] Opinion, the Pretender might be
“ reftored by the People of England, without the
¢ Affiftance of any foreign Force. That he,
“ Layer, talked to Lord North aind Grey of his
¢ Lordfhip’s being General; but Lord Nerth
¢ faid, he was not popular enough, that the Duke
“ of Ormead would be fit for it, and if they had
¢ him here, his Lordfhip believed moft of the
¢ Soldiers would join him: That he, Layer, con.
¢ unuing to prels Lord North aud Grey on this
¢ head, by telling him that he was ficter for a
¢ General, and was popular, the faid Lord an-
¢ {wered No, the Duke of Ormoend was the Man,
¢ he was the Soldiers Darling, That he, Layer,
¢ often talked of this Aflair to the Lord Nosrth,
¢ being mduced fo to do, by the Impatience he
¢ obferved in him, and in Lord Orrery, that
¢ fomething fhould be done.’

Matibew Plunket, Serjeant of Invalids, has ¢
depoled upon QOath, ¢ that Layer told him (in
¢« Yuly laft) that the late Duke of Ormond would
come 1n a fingle Ship with fome Officers, and
that i1t had been done long ago, if the French
« Ambaflador had not been told of i, who told

it again to the King.? |
* It appears to your Committee from feveral
Depofitions on QOath, as well as from Informa-
tions and written Intelligence, that in  confe-
quence of this Defign of bringing over the late
Duke of Ormond, Captain Charles Halffead, a Lan-
cafhire Man (who was concerned in the Infurrec-
tion intended at Oxford in the Year 1715) fet fail
from the River for Bifhoa, about the 12th Day of
March 1734, on board the Ship Plineas of Driffel,
IVilhiam Arueld Mafter, with a Provilicn of Arms
and Powder on board, which one of the Sailors on
his " Examination declared, ¢ He apprehends to
¢ have been greater than was neceffary for an or-
dinary trading Voyage. ' That the foid Ship
¢ was hired at one Hundred Pounds Freight per
¢ Month, two Hundred being paid in Advance
¢ (as Halffead himfelt owned) and had no Goods
¢ nor any Paflenger on board, except the fud
¢ Halffead, who went by the Name of Newell,
¢ and was known to the Malter and Satlors by
¢ that Name only, during the Voyage to Spain.
¢ * Thar the {aid Ship was cleared at the Cuftom-
“ hounle in Ballaft for Lisbsn; bLut that when they
¢ came into the Bay of Bifcay, the Malter, who
¢ had Orders to follow Nowel’s Direltions, ' gave
¢ private Inftructions to the Pilor to fleer to
¢ Bilboa 5 that they arrived there on the 25th of
¢ March, O.§.and that Halffead wene on Shore,
“ and lay that Night at Mr, Brown’s an Irifh
¢ Merchant, and the next Day went forward to-
¢ wards Madrid, being furnifhed with Horfes by
¢ the fatd Brown, on which Journey he wasabient
¢ about a Fortnight; that during his Abfence, a
¢ ™ Report was current all over the Town of
“ Btlvoa, and particularly among the Convents,
¢ that the faid Ship was come to fetch over the
¢ Duke of Ormend’ And Thomas Carler, one of
the Sailors of the faid Ship, who was employ’d
by Haltead to wait on him as a Servant, has
" depofed upon Qath, ¢ That three Days after
¢ the faid Notwel’s Return, the Deponent heard
¢ him propofe to the abeve-named Caprain Ar-
¢ nold, to carry the late Duke of QOrmond and
¢ Four other Paffengers to England ; which the
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¢ faid Captain Arnold refufing to do, the faid
¢ Npwell infifted, faying, the Ship was his fo long
< as he paid the Hirc of her, and the Wagesand
¢ Viétnalling, and they had high Words upon 1,
¢ Carter farther depofed, that Halflead received a
¢ Letter directed to Colonel Nowell Butler, which
¢ was the Name the faid Nowell went by, when
¢ he was in Spain.  That, when the Ship was re-
¢ leafed, they plied off and on about four Hours
¢ off St. Andero, expelting fome Body to come
¢ off in a Boat; but'no Body coming, and Night
¢ drawing on, they made the belt of their way
¢ to England, and arrived in the Dotwns the Be-
¢ oinning of July it Allifoir, who came over
to Lngland a Paffenger in the faid Ship, has * de-
pofed upon Oath, ¢ that he Icft Madiid on- the
¢ athof Fune, N. §. and that fome Time before
¢ he came away, the late Duke of Ormond, who
¢ had refided a confiderable Time at Madrid, had
¢ {entaway his Horfes and Equipage from thence,
¢ and put his Servants on Board-wages, and that
¢ it was reported he was to go to Fentoftlla, That
¢ he, Allifon, upon his coming to Bifboa, {ound
< the Ship Phineas bound for Lugland, but {topt;
¢ that heagreed to take his Paflage on board her,
¢ and going to the Corregidor of Bilvoa for a Pafs,
¢ he found there Mr. Browi a Merchant, and one
¢« who went by the Name of Newel!; that Brows
< afking the Corregidor why the Ship was {topt,
¢ he faid, it was not the Ship, but Nozwwel’s Per-
¢ {on, that was detained, by Orders trom Madrid
¢ that he, Allifon, heard a Report at Bilhoea,
< that the laté Duke of Ormend was on the Coaft
¢ in Difeuife, and that Nowel had been at Madrid,
¢ and come back again in Fifteen Days; the
¢« Lxpedition of which Journey, and the Ship’s
¢ coming in Ballaft, had raifed a Sufpicion in
!
¢
<

Bilboa, that New:ell came over to the late Duke
£ Ormond, on Account of the Confpiracy. The
Sailors * obferved, that during Newell’s Stay at
< Bilboa, Brigadier Campbell (a Perfon concerned
< in the Preflon Rebeion) was frequently on
¢ board with im, but did not care to own his
¢ Name.” The fame Paruculars are confirmed
by © Letters from Sir futhony IVefcomb, who was
fent to Spain to gan Intelligence, with {everal
other ¢ Circumltinces relating to Ships, Arms
and Recruits, provided for the Pretender’s Service
1 Sgaii,

During thefe Tranfactions, ¢ Colonel Stanbope,
his Majelty’s Ambaflador at Madrid, who does
not appear to have known any ching of this Ship’s
being come to Bilboa, having received Intelligence
from other Hands, that the Duke of Ormoid was
preparing to fet out for England with fome Irif)
Ofhcers, in order to put himfelf at the Head of
the Rebels, obtain’d Orders from the Court of
Madrid, to hinder the late Duke of Ormona’s
Embarkation, as will appear more fully in the re-
maining part of this Report.

In confequence of thefe Orders, the King of
Spati’s Qfficers* came on board che Ship, and
laid an Embargo upon her for about a Fortnight,
till Halffead, finding himielf difappointed of his
Defign, agreed chat Pare of a Cargo of Wooll
and Iron fhould be put on board the faid Ship by
Browon andSlinger; and then returned to ¥ kngland
with one Maxwel/, whom the Sailors underttood
to be a Relation of the late Lord Mar#'s, and
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two other Pafiengers, and arriv’d in the River a-
bout the 7th or 8th of Fuly, ‘

About the Beginning of Adaya™ Letter was inter-
cepted here coming from Spain, direéted to Monf
Dumuille Precurenr, and enclofed under Cover o
one WWilmere at Mr, Stokoe’s Bookfeller near
Charing-Chrofs,  'Who 1s meant by the Name
Dumwille, the Committee have not been able to
difcover,

In this Letter was enclofed the ' Copy of a l.ct-
ter, which the Committee have Reafon to belizve
was from the late Duke of Ormond to fome Per-
{fons abroad, the mital Letter of whele Name ie
difcovered by the Decypherers to be 1.

The Letter to Dumvi'le, as well as the Copy
of the late Duke of Ormond’s Lerter, was writ
partly in Cypher; and among the Words out
of Cypher feveral Aétitious Names were made
Ufc oty which the Committee obferve 1s the Cafe
alfo in feveral others of the intercepred Letters
referred to them.

It was reafonable to expect, that in managing
Correlpondences of fo hazardous a Nature, all
fort of Art and Induftry thouvld be ufed, and all
the Help ot Cypbers and Jareon called in, to
difguife the real Delizns, and to conceal the
true Names of-the Perfons concerned, in order
to therr avoiding the Danger of leaal Conviétion:
but your Committee likewile oblerve, that feve-
ral of thefe Difguiles are fo grofs and obvious,
that they only {erve to betray themfelves 3 others
of them are expluned by the Skill of different
Decypherers, agreeing in the fame Explication;
which Explication 1s again confirmed by Fadts
unknown to thofe Perfons at the Time of the
Decyphering.  Others are explained by Cyphers
and L.afts of ficticious Names, {eized on the Con-
{prators themfelves, as well as by compuring the
feveral Parts of their Correlpondence togetier;
and others again by direct Informations upon
Ouath.  And, as the Degrees of Evidence, in a
Search of this Nature, mult be various, the Com-
mittee have taken all the Care they can, 1o di-
[Lingutth whatappears to them fully proved, from
what 1s {fupported by ftrong and probable Con-
jectures only,

In this * Letter to Dumzille, dated the 27th of
April 1722, (N.§.) mention 1s made of its be-
ing publickly known in Srain. by Letters from
Bilboa and other Parts, * that a Ship came to
¢ Bilbea, with an exprefs to Qrmond, in order to
bring Ormond to Erpland 5 that the fuid Ex-
¢ prefs went to the Place where Ormend was ;
¢ that this had made {o much Noife, that it
“ was neceflary to fend to England wizh all pot-
“ fible Diipatch; that a Ship’s coming with Bal-
¢ laft only gave Occafion to thofe Reports, and
“ that in order to ftifle them it was neceflary to
¢ put in the Ship Goods for England y that this
¢ would be a conliderable Expence to Tom, who
¢ hopes that Friends will confider ir, and fend
“ him if poffible a greater Supply than the five
¢ ‘Thouland Pounds that he wrote for in hisof the
“ 6th and 20th of April5 that the Bills muft be
¢ fentdirectly to B——, and mav be boueht at
“ the Excoange of London. ' ”

The Committee are of Opinion, that by B.
1s meant Browon the Irifh Merchant at Bifboa, be-

caufe the ' Cargoe was put on Board by the faid
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Brown and Slinger 3 and it appears by fubfequent
« Lerters that this Brewsn had twelve Thoufand
Arms in his Cuftody, for the Service of the ate
Duke of Ormond. It is alfo proved b by the
Sailors, that Halflead was frequently in Company
with this Brewa and his Nephews, and lay fome-
eimes at his Houle,

Who is meant by Tom n the faid Letter, the
Committee will not take upon them to determime;
but they believe it will appear probable to the
Houfe, from the Connexion and other Circum-
lances, that it muft mean the late Duke of
Orinoid,

The Perfon that writes this© Letter to Dum-
~ille, adds, ¢ That fince Mrs. Chanmeint cannot
« meet Ormond at any Place on the Road, it is
« abfolutely neceflary that Oringnd thould have as
« oond a Preparation of Arms as can be had
¢ there, and In order to make it, he will want
« more Money from Friends.”

The fame Perfon {ays, that he had that Day
received a Letter, importing, ¢ That M -
« could get more Arms if he had more Money.’
The Committee are of Opinton, that by M ——
is meant Morzan, who is mentioned in feveral
¢ Letters from Spain, as Intendant of the Pre-
tender’s Ships at Cadiz, and active in procuring
Oficers and Arms s which Letters are confirmed
by the Scizure of the Ship Revolution at Geirea, of
which it appears by Caprain Scof’s © Letter from
Geiva, that Morgan had the chief Care, going
by the Name of 7¥alton 5 which is again confirmed
by a f Letter from Str Antheny IWefcomb at
Bilbea.

The Perfon that 5 writes to Dumville, farther
adds, ¢ That Ormond hopes Onflowy and Hawley
¢« will fend a Pare of the Money they have raifed
< dire€tly to Ormond; for Ormand,upon the Hopes
« of 1t, bas fent Credit to A= 3 he defires
¢ Diseells 1o mind this, and not to lofe a Mo-
¢ ment.

Who are meant by Ouflow and Hawley, the
Committee cannot determine 3 but they are incli-
ned to believe, that they are the fame Perfons,
who in another ® Letter, enclofed to 7Wilmore
foon after, and writ in the fame Cypher, are
found by the Decypherers to have the nitial Let-
ters of their Names G and New——; 1n which
Conjeture they are the more confirmed, by ‘a
Cypher feized on febn Pluiket, m which the real
Names beginning with G. are conftantly defigned
by fictinous ones beginning with £ the Leteer
immediately following n the Alphabet, and the
real Names of the Letter N, by others begin-
ning with O,

In the® Letter to Dumwille above-mentioned,
was enclofed the ! Copy of a Letter from the late
Duke of Ormond to L, which was fent to Dum-
ville as being in part an Anfwer to one received
from lim; who is meant by L, the Committec
cannot determine.,

In this Letter, the Iate Duke of Ormond men-
tions his having received an Account from D ——
(General Dilon probably} that he had procured
ten Thoufand Arms, and advifes the joyning
Stocks with D e, fince they cannot have tou
many Arms; and fays he can only depend on
two Thoufand Arms from Af——(Morgan pro-
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bably} but that he could have had more Arms,
if he had had more Money.

The Committee obferve, That this Account
of ten Thoufand Arms procured by D—-, and
of two Thoufand by Af——— agrees exactly
with an ™ Account fent foon after from Mr. Stan-
hope at Madrid, and ™ confirmed by Sir Authony
Wefeomb, that twelve Thoufand Arms were lodged
in the Hands of Brocon at Bilbea, for the Pre-
tender’s Service 3 and that Abrgan was ordered

to the Bay of Bifcay, in order to tranfport the
faidd Arms to Eigland,

The Committee talce Notice likewife, that the
very fame Number of Arms 1s mentioned in &
° Letter, writ, asthey have good Reafon to be-
lieve, by George Kelly, to General Dillow’s Secre-
tary 5 and the Arms are there {poken of, as pro-
vided by Mansfeld’s Relations, which Name
George Kelly P explained to Neyiwoe to mean tha
late Duke of Ormend,

The Circumftance of Kelly’s mentioning thefe
Arms to Dillaw’s Secretary, makes it probable
that by D. in Ormond's Letter, is meant the faid
Dillon, who, as your Committee are informed,
is an Jrifo Roman Catholick, and quitted Ireland
on the Capielition of Limerick, and is at pre-
fent a Lieutenant-General in the French Service,
and has the Command of one of the Irifh Regi-
ments in [rance; and he appears to your Com-
mittee, from feveral Parts of the intercepred
Correfpondence, to have the chief Management
of the Pretender’s Afiairs, and to be the prin-
cipal Agent and Director of carrying on this
Confpiracy. -

Ormoind in his ? Letter to L afterwards
fays, ¢ That fince the Parliament is dead and
¢ gone, he thinks 1t will be a good Time to
* make an Effort when the Eleétor is gone to
Hanouer 5 and adds, I hope you have agrecd
¢ with D-—— the Time of going for Exnglaud, and
“ when that 1s lixed berween Mrs, Charment an
¢ De— you will let Orzend know the Place
‘ of lunding in Lugland, 1 defirc an Exprefs
may be fent to me, with particular Accounts
¢ of what is agreed on” Tlhis, the Committee
take Notice, agrees with Mr, Stanbops’s * Intelli-
eence, that Ormoud was going for England, and
likewife with * Intelligence fent from Keme, thac
the Pretender was to embark, as foon as two
Officers, Relations of the late Duke of Ormund,
fhould arrive at Porto Lougone 3 which Circum-
ftince makes it not improbable, that by Mrs.
Chanment may be meant the Pretender.

In the fame t Leceter to L s Ormend fays,
¢ I have ordered -/ ——"sShip, that [ depended
¢ on, to return to Lugland 5 it was not proper to
¢ make ufe of it, for Reafons not neceflary to
¢ trouble you with,  There was no Mefiage fent
¢ by him, becaufe of the Uncertainty of the
¢ Time of his getting to Ligland,

This Paflage, the Committee are of Opinion,
evidently relates to Halffead’s Ship.  Upon men-
toning his fending back this Ship, he immedi-
ately adds, ¢ I have ordered A4 ’s Ship o
¢ come to A————3' which agrees exaétly with
Mr. Stanbope’s * Account, that Morgan’s Ships
werc ordered to the Bay of Bifray, to tranfpor:
to Eugland the Arms above-mentioned, together

L
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with Ormond, and what Officers could be got ;
and it appears by fubfequent * Letters from Sir
Anthony Wefromb at Bilboa, that the faid Ships,
under the Command of Morgan, did put in at
Sainto Andero, which the Committee underftand
to be the Place meant by A, to which O#-
mond fays he had ordered A———"5 Ship to
come. The faicd Ships having put in at duuero,
and ftaid there fifteen Days, is again confirmed
by a * Letter from Genoa, writ by Captain Gar-
dincr, who commanded the Ship Revelution lately
taken,

Soon after this Letter to Dumwille, € another
was intercepted here coming from Spaiir, directed
A Monfieurr Dodpworth, not figned, enclofed an-
der Cover to 7/ilmore as the former, and writ in
the fame Cypher; the moft material Paragrapi
of which is thus explained by the Decypherers.

¢ I muft again entreat you to ufe your utmolt
¢ Tindeavours, to get the five Thoufand Pounds
¢ from Friends returned to O ———directly 5 the
¢ Hopes given by G ———to cxpect a great Sum,
¢ and by N——, that he had railed twenty Thou-
¢ {ir.d Pounds, induced O—— to fupply M—,
« and to make other neceflary Provifions.  Ii
¢ that Money be not retarned, it will fall heavy
¢ upon Q—~———, and he will be difabled from
¢ anfwering the Expectation of Friends, therefore
¢ ought to be your firft and greateft Concern,
< All other A&ions are Trifles in Comparifon of
¢ it; for the Hopes of Succefs depend princi-
4
<

pally on O «——. 1 mentioned this in former

Lerters, and Friends are defired to return
< more than five Thouland Pounds, 1f pofiible,
¢ 1f they do, more Arms and Ammunition, and
¢ Officers can be had here; and the End of ral-
¢ fing Moncy by I'riends, is to procure Arms,
¢ Ammunition and Olficers,

To whom thefe Letters were writ does not ap-
pear 3 but the Committee obferve thar they are
writ in the fame Cypher with three ¢ Lerters,
which they have Grounds to believe were from
the Bithop of Roecheffer,  They obferve likewte
that the fame Cypher is fometimes made ufe of
by © Geoige Kelly.

M. Stokoe the Bookfcller being examined about
IVilmore, under whole Cover thele Letters to
Duneille and Dadfiwortiy came enclofed, could give
no other F Account of him, but that e was cne
who once writ a Letter in his Shop, and defired
him by @ Leteer, dated Epfom the firfl of Marco,
1722, to take in fuch Irench Letters as fhould
come direfted to himy and by another Letter,
dated Harwich the 14th of Adey, defired him to
rake in no more 3 that he, Stokoz, did receive two
Letters from abroad fo direfted, which were
fetched away, and paid for by Perfons to him
unknown,

That the late Duke of Crmond was expected
to head an Infurreltion in Eungland, is farther con-
firmed by the following Particulars,

Neyioe upon his Examination before a Com-
mittce of Lords of the Counctl, ¢ declared,
¢« That the firlt Defign n the Spring was to have
¢ been exccuted in London, by feizing the Tower,
¢ and that the late Duke of Ormond was then to
¢ have landed in the River ; but upon Difcovery
¢ of the Plot, and the King’s not going beyond
¢ Sea, it was put off for fome Time; that the
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¢ Dithop of Rochefter, Lord Orrery, Lord North,
¢ and Sir Harry Goring, were the principal Lead-
¢ ers and Direétors of the whole Delign ; and
¢ that Zatfon (whom he took to be the lare Idq;
¢ Marifhal) had wold him, Lord North and Grevy
¢ was thought of for the Command.’ ]

On the 2gth of April, O.S. * Intelhgence came
from France, ¢ That the Week belore the Jage
Duke of Ormond had made Application to the
Regent by a Perfon of great Diltimlion, {or
Leave to pafs through France, under a Pretence
¢ of going into ltaly, but that the Regent hud
ablolutely refufed him, and at the fame Tip
¢ had difpatch’d the neceffaiy Orders to the Fron-
¢ tiers of Syain, to hinder him from pafiing cicher
¢ openly or 1n Difeuife.

On the 2d of May, 0. 8. Str Luke Schand fent
"Advice, ¢ That one Lefley had been looking
out for Lodgings at Paris for the late Duke of
Ormcad 5 and * on the gth, that Alderman
¢ Barber carried with him Bilis ot Exchange for
¢ filzy Thoufund Pounds Sterling for the Pre-
tender s and that the fame Sum was fent 1o
Ormend by another Fland, to emable him to
“ make the neceffary Preparations in Spaia and
¢ Italy. The Committce obferve, that this agrees,
as to the Divifion of the Money, with a Paffage
in another ' Letter from Diflon’s Sccretary to
Ge:rge Kely, duted the fecond of Aday, N.S.
which will be farther explained in its proper
Place.

On the 23d of Jilav, O.8. Sir Luke Schaub fent
m Advice, ¢ That the late Duke of Qimond was to
¢ fet out from Adedrid abour the 20th of that
“ Month, with his Family, withour its being
¢ known whither he was going 5 that it was be-
lieved he weuld give out that he was going w
fettle at a certain Diftance from Madiid, trom
¢ whence he might flez! away afterwards unch-
¢ ferved.

On the 28th of Alay, O. 8. Mr. Stunbspe ™ writes
Word from Aledrid, ¢ That having had Intelli-
¢ gence to be rely’d on, that the hite Duke ol
¢ Ormend ntended fpeedily to pals into Ligland,
¢ with a great Nuinber of Jrifh Officers ac thae
¢ time in the Service of his Catholick Muapefly, n
¢ order to put himfelf at the Head of the Rebels
¢ there, and for that purpofe was to fer out from
¢ Madiid the nexe Day, under Pretence of going
¢ for the reft of the Summer to Feouosllz, a
¢ Houfe of the Duke of Medina Celi, halt-way
¢ between Madrid and Digsa, but in reality to
¢ be thereby readier to pafs o that Pore, and
¢ with lefs Sufpicion to embark from thence ior
« England, whenever Matters thould be ripe for
¢ his fo doing ; he made Applicaion to s Ca-
¢ tholick Majelty by the Marquifs de Grimalds,
¢ for Orders to be {fent to all the Ports of Seain,
¢ to prevent the faid lrie Duke’s embarking with
¢ the Officers above-mentioned, and received a
¢« Letter from the Marquils de Grimalds, {4
¢ Copy ©of which 1sanuexcd to this Repore) ac-
¢ quainting him, that the kg of Spem had di-
¢ reted fuch Orders to be iffued, and was ready
¢« on all Oceafions, more particularly on  this
¢ which regarded the Quict and Tranquillity of
¢ his Britansick Muelty’s Kingdoms, to coutri-
¢ bute all in his Power towards his Majefty’s Sa-
¢ usfaction.”
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Andrewo Pancier, formerly Captain-Lieutenant
of Lord Cobbaw’s Dragoons, has * depofed upon
Oath, * That being grown intimately acquainted
¢ with Skecae (now in Cuftody) a Perfon related
¢ 1o Marr, and engaged in the Rebellions of Prof-
< ton and Glenfbeild, Skeere began to acquaint him,
¢ about Tine laft, that there wasa Dehgn carry-
¢ ing on in Lngland for placing the Pretender on
¢ the Throne, of which he at difkerent umes told
¢ him the following Particulars : That fix o eight
¢ Battalions of Nifh Foot, double Officer’d, were
¢ to have come over from Spain, which were
« quarter’d upon the Coalt of Gallicia for that pur-
¢ pofe: that the nine Spanifh Men of War which
¢ have jeined the Datch, and four more to have
¢ been fitted out at Barcelona, and threc at Ali-
¢ cart, (as he belt remembered) beng m all fix-
¢ teen Sparifh Men of War, were to have been
« imployed in this Service. That thefe Troops
¢ were to have landed either 1 Coricval, or near
¢ Brifol: That there were forty Thouland Stand
« of Arms in Great Britain, part in Scefland, other
« part in Lendon, other part in Briflely and other
¢« part in Cornwal, That there were feven or
« eight hundred Men, with Oificers among them,
< in London, fubfifted, and in readine{s for fuch an
¢« Qccafion, Thata Sum of two hundred thou-
¢ fand Pounds had been raifed by Contribution
¢ for carrying on tiis Delign, and put into the
¢« Management of the Bithop of Rochefier, who
¢ with the Lord Nowilr aind Grey were the leading
« Men among them ; and that the Lord Strafford
« an. Lord Kinoul: knew the Thing. That the
¢ Managers of this Affair in Spain, were the late
¢« Duke of Ormond and the late Barl Marifhal 3
« and thole in France the late Lord Mary, and
¢« Licutenant General Dilloi,  That the Court of
< Spain vas in their Intereft, but as to the Re-
« gont and Cirdinal Du Bois, they could not tell
¢ vt to make of chem: Thac this Defign was
¢ to have been executed fome time ago, but was
¢ then difippointed by the Regent: That the late
¢ Dake of Ormond, and the late Earl Marifhal,
¢ were to have come with the Troops before men-
< tioned from Spaiu, and the Pretender about the
¢ fame time was to have left Rome privately, and
¢ to have lain conceal’d fomewheie near, from
¢ whence he would have come over when there
¢ had been a fair Profpe& of Succefs. That as to
¢ any Oppofition they could expect, we had but
¢ fourteen Thoulind Men in all, of which three
¢ Thoufand were neceflary to guard London, three
< Thouland more for Scotland, and two Thouland
¢ for the Gartfons 3 fo that the Remainder would
¢ never dare toattack thole who came from Spain
¢ and i the Confufion, their (meaning the Preten-
¢ der’s) Friends weuld have been able to have gor
¢ toguther, and madea Head. Thatin the Conduét
< of this Affuir there pafied little in writing, and on-
< lythe four Lords before mentioned,viz. theBifhop
¢ of Rochefter and Lord North and Grey principally,
¢ and Lord Strafford and Lord Kinoule, were con-
¢ cerned in the Management of it here, That the
¢ Bulinefs was to have been done belore the Dutch
¢ Troops could come to our Affiftance.’

‘The Committee have laid thefe feveral Particu-
lars together, though of different Dates, that the
Houfe may {ec at one view, the Reafon there. is

and others, for a Treafonable Confpiracy.
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have landed in Eugland with Officers and Artns,
about the Time that it was gencrally fuppofed his
Majefty intended to go to Hamewver, The reafon
of Ormend’s not coming, is fufficiently explained
by the Orders iffued at Madrid and in Fraace, by
the King’s not going abroad, and by the Difcove-
ries, and Difpofition of the Forces made in England,
And notice 15 taken, in?® Letters to one of his
Majefly’s Secretaries of State from Kome, that a
Perfon of great Diftin€tion at that Place, had de-
clared 1t as his Opinion, that the grand Proju&t
formed in the Conclave for placing the Pretendes
on the Throne of Britain, was going to be put in
execution 3 but that the fame Perfon afterwards
afligned four Reafons for its having mifcarried ;
which were, the Want of Money, the fufpedted
Iaith of the Regent, the Want of Skill in thofe
who were to condutt 1t, and the Pufiilanimity of
the Pretender, who, to avoid hazarding his cwn
Perfon, propofed to fend his Child @ which 1af:
Particular 15 again mentioned in another © Letrer
from Rome,

The Committee now return to fhew what other
Evidences they have before them, of a Defion
Jaid for beginning an Infurrcéion in Loudon, at
the Time when it was fuppoled the Kinz intended
to go to Hanover,

Aboui the latter end of Zpril, his Majefty re-
ceived ¢ Intelligence from abroad, upon which b
can intirely depend, ¢ That a Defign was laid for
¢ bringing 1 the Pretender, which was thought
“ to be fo well concerted, and condufted by Pe-
¢ {ons of fuch Experience, that, if the S:cret was
but kept, as was propos’d, the Succefs was look-
¢ ed upon as nfailible ; and that it was to be pur
“ in Execution about the end of April, or begins
¢ ning of May.” The original Letter containing
this Intelligence, has been commuricated to your
Committee, and an © Exctract of it is annexed to
this Report.

On the 29th of April, the fame * Intelligerce
was repeated, with thefe farther Particulars, ¢ Thac
¢ the Confpirators did no longer think it neceflary
¢ to infift on foreign Affiftance, flattering themn-
¢ {2lves that great part of the King’s own Forces
¢ would declare  their favour, That they now
¢ contented themlielves with defiring the Regent
¢ fhould obferve a Neutrality between his Majefty
¢ and the Pretender; and that Lotd Lanfidecone
¢ was to prefent, or caufe to be prefented, a Me-
¢ morial to the Regent to this eflect, that Day or
¢ the next. That the Defign was probably to be
¢ exccuted in Lgiaon 5 that the beginning of May
¢ was the Time fixed on; and that the Pretender
¢ was {peedily to fet out for Eugland?

Your Committee do not find that the above-
mentioned Memortal was prefented to the Regent;
but in & Letters from Plunket to Dilion they find
the fame repeated in thefe Words; © If the Re-
¢ gent ftands neuter, we will foon bring the Lsw-
¢ Suit to bear :” which Layer ® cxplained to be the
¢ Pretender’s Caufu,

On the agth of dpril 0.8, Nr, Davenant, His
Majefty’s Minifter in Ktaly, fentan Exprels from
Rome, with ' Advice, ¢ that the Pretender's Ad-
¢ herents were making Preparations in Cadiz, and
¢ other Ports of Spain, for an Attempt on Eng-
¢ land; that the Pretender was fpeedily to embark

™
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¢ that Purpofe:’ And * itappears, that the fame
Advice was foon after confirmed to his Majelty,
by a foreigh Minifter refiding in Exglend, who re-
ceived the Intelligence from a Perfon of great Dil-
rintion abroad, and communicated it to his Ma-
tefty. ‘

On the gth of May, Mr. Cranfurd, His Ma-
jefty’s Refident at Paris, ® writes word, ¢ that the
¢ Yacobites in Francs expeted foon an Infurrection
¢ in England, which was to be begun by the
¢ Heads of their Party here foon after His Ma-
¢ jelty’s fetting out for Hanover, and was to be
¢ fupported Ly D ifb Officers and Soldicrs, who
¢ lay ready at Cadiz, befides fuch as fhould be
¢ able to pafs over into Eugland from Fraice by
¢ ftealths and in his © Leteer of the 26th of
May 0. §. he adds, ¢ that the Grounds of this Lix-
¢ peftation were, Affurances given from England,
¢ that the Confpirators would immediately make
¢ themfclves Mafters of the Tower, and City of
¢ Loudon

This Intelligence agrees with a ¢ Paper dehiver-
ed to the Secretaries of State in Fuly halt, by onc
of the Lords of his Majefty’s Council, who, as
they have © certified, aftured them that a Perfon,
whom he had good reafon to believe to be deeply
concerned in the Confpiracy, came to him 1 the
Month of Fuly, and brought him a Paper, which
he affirmed he had copied by ftealth out of the
Scrutore of 2 noble Lord, whom he refufed to
name 3 and that the faid Perfon writ out a fair
Copy of the Paper in his prefcnce, which contains
Minutes of Refolutions taken at & Confultation,
and is in the following Words,

¢« R, That the Arms be dug up immediately,

¢ anddifperfedin fmall Parcels, Begin in Sou/b-
¢ cyark, Vhitechagel, IVapping, Holbori and Smith-
« field, March into City, Peficls the Gates.
« Againft the Horfe, Barricades m the narrow
¢ Streets, efpecially at both Ends of Fleer-biridge,
« Shos-lane, Fetter-lane and Chancery-lane. Poflets
¢ St, Clemen’s Churchyard by a Party from Hel-
« bory, A flrong Barricade in the narrew Part of
¢ that Street. Line the two firft Stories. Bricks,
¢ Stones, &F¢. may be uletul in the vpper Rooms,
¢ and may be thrown by Women and others un-
< fit to bear Arms.  Lighters with Ammunitton
<« under Coals, lie at Blackfivars and Milford-laise.
¢« No Dependance or Afliftance from 7Feflminficr
¢« and thofe Parts, except fome few by Water, the
« Communication being cut off.  Mellage to the
¢« Lord Mayor by three Lords, Iroclamation
¢« made to oblige all who fhall not come in, to
¢ bring in their Mufkets, and Militta Arms,  De-
¢ claration ready printed, to be difperfed among
¢ the People, Twenty three Ofhcers of the
¢ Guards to be depended on: a great many
¢« others well afiected, efpecially the common
¢« Centinels, Day refolv’d on Apiil the zoth.
« R, That forty determin’d Perfons be imimedi-
« ately pitci’d upon, armed with Swords and
¢« Piftols, to execute all Orders 5 and chat for the
¢ Subfiftence of the fuid forty Gentlemen, Money
¢ he advanced out of the Fund, at the Rate of fe-
¢ ven Shillings por Diem for Man and Horle,
¢ Commander in Chief Lord N. Time leven in

¢ the Morning.’
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The Committee make no doubt but the Houfe
will readily obferve, that this Scheme, drawn up
in April, and delivered as aforefaid to one of the
Lords of the Council in Fuly laft, has a near Aff-
nity with ' that of Layer, and appears to be the
Groundwork of it, tho” Layei ® denies his haviug
cver feen any fuch Paper of Refolutions, or hav-
ing recerved any Inftructions relating to his
Scheme, except from /7ilfon a Surgeon, Misiphey
a Phyfician, and /Zhite a Serjeant, #

1he Commiittee likewile obferve from this and
Layer’s Scheme, as well as from a® Letter of
Sample’s (of which notice will be taken in its
Place) that the mvolving the City of Leudon in
Blood and Confulion, appears to have been uni-
veifally underflood and agreed on among all the
Confpiraters, as the frft Step to be taken, and the
Foundation of their future Hopes.

By another * Paper delivered in Fuly laft by the
fame Perfon, 1t appears, that when the Stroke
was {truck in Lendon, there were to be Infurrcc-
tions in feveral Counties of Lugland y and thar the
Numbers of Gentlemen and private Men, to be
depended on bothv 1n Lesaden and the Country,
were computed and fet down : and the Commit-
tee obferve, that the cxtending the Infurreétion
to the Country, after Lsinics was fcized, makes
hikewife a Part of ¥ Laver’s Scheme, and ! Sam-
ple’s Letter,

The Committee farther take notice that in thef=
Schemes, as well as m ™ Pancier’s Depofition, men-
tion is made of great quantizies cf Arms conceal’d
for the Ule of the Conipirators ;3 and Layer hav-
g confels’d at his * Examination before the
Lords, that he fuppofed there were Arms provi-
ded, and that Greenr the Gunimith being in com-
pany with Lord North, had mentioned  fiva
Thoufand Arms, and {even Thoufand Arms, and
mfifted, in contradi¢tion to Lord ANeriy who bid
him hold his Tongue, tiat there were five Theu-
fand Arms ready m the City ;5 the Committee ex-
amined him particularly on this Head, batcould
draw nothing more from im, than © that Grecs
had told Captain Donyiz at Lord iNortl’s, that he
could help him to five or feven Thoufand Arms
at an Four’s warning. And tho’ your Committes:
is fully fatisfied that no Care has been wanting
elfewhere to difcover thefe Arms, and to defeat the
Confpiracy in fo cflentiala Circumflance s yet they
cannot but think it a melancholy Confideration,
that through the determined Obftinacy of thie Con-
fpirators, thefe Endeavours have hitherto proved
unfuccefsful.

The Committee obferve farther, that in the
» Paper of Refolutions, Nention 15 made of a
Fund of Money provided, and of a great Num-
ber of determined Perfons fubfifted in Leudcr for
the Purpofes of the Confpiracy, for the Exceution
of which a Day was likewife fixed on and appoint-
ed, and the Commander in chiel known, Al
which feveral Particulars correfpond exactly with
the ¢ Intelligence received at the fame Time from
abroad, with * Parcics’s Depolition, with what
Layer * own’d Lord Orrery had told kim, that he
believed Lord Newth and Grey had o Commifiion
for commanding in chiets and with what Nevroe
twas told by #atfon, that Lord Nowth aid Gicy
was thought of for the Command; as likewtle
with what * was told AZitbew Pluiket by Layer
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and Fobu Plunket, that Lord North and Grey with
others were ready to head an Infurretion.
Your Committee having thus laid before you
the general Evidence, which convinc:es_ them that
a Defign was formed by Perfons of Diftinction, to
invade thefe Kingdoms with a foreign Forces
that being difappointed in this Expectation, they
flill perfitted to make an Auempe, with {uch
Onficers and Soldiers as could be procured private-

ly from Abroad; that the late Duke of Ormoid
was to have landed for this Purpole, and to have

been followed by the Pretender 5 that Arms and
Money were provided, and Men {ublifted for this
Service 5 that the Infurrection was to have been
begun in Loadsn, and thence to have been extend-
ed over the whole Kingdom. They will now
proceed more particularly o explain the feveral
Parts, which the Leaders and inferior Agents ap-
pear t0 have taken in conducting this Defign, as far
as the fame can be collected from the intercepred
Correfpondence, and other Papers referred to
thent, and from the Iixaminations of the Perfong
concerned 3 by which 1t will fartherappear to the
Foufe, that the Defign was conftantly profecuted
in all Pares, without any other Relaxation or In-
termiffion, than what the Neceflity of therr Affairs,
and the Difcoveries made, obliged them to, 1n or-
der to lay their Meafures Geeper, and to make the
Succefs of them more certam: And that the En-
erprize, wihich was firfl calcuiated fot the Spring,
was to have been afrerwards put in Execution ac
the breaking up of the Camp, with the Help of
Oificers and Soldiers from Abroad, if they could
be obtained 5 if not, on the Strength of {uch as
they hoped to be able to corrupr and feduce,
among his Majefty’s own Forces.

The Leaders, in order (as 'tis natural to believe)
to fave themfelves from the Danger of legal Con-
viction, chofe to manage their Correfpondences
by the Interveation of Perfons of a meaner Rank
and Figure, and of defperate Fortunes; who, they
hoped, might efcape the Obfervation of the Go-
vernment, being no otherwile confiderable, than
as the Trult repoled m chem made them fo.

The Committee think proper to take notice,
that oi thele inferior Agents, Layer appears to
have been principally intrufted by Lord Nort
aid Grev, and Lord Orrerys and that Plunket,
who travelled with Layer to Rome, and whofe trea-
fonable Pradtices and Correfpondences are clofely
ronnected with thofe of Layer; writes of himfelf
as tranfacting Part of his Treafons with Lord Or-
rery’s Clerk, and {ending frequent Accounts to the
Pretender’s Agents abroad, of Matters relating
to the fuid Lord.

George Kelly, a Nonpuring Clergyman at prefent
{tho? in the late Queen’s Time, the Conunittee is
informed, he took the Oaths to the Government,
and Jilewife the Abjuration) appears to have been
the Perfon principally entrufted by the Bifhop of
Rochefler, and to have been imployed in writing
for him, and conveying Letters to him, unti] the
Time that he, Kelly, was firft taken into Cuftody ;
after which it appears to the Committee, that 7/s-
mas Carte, another Nonjuring Clergyman, was
entrufted and employed by the Bifhop in the fame
Manuner. And the Committee obferve, that George
Kelly’s Correfpondence has a clofe Connexion with
that of Densis Kelly; and likewife that he appears

to have been privy to Plunket’s and Neynoe's
‘Tranfactions. | ,

The Perfon imployed by the Duke of Noxfolk,
In conveying Letters between him and George
Fernegan, an Agentof the Pretender’s in Flanders,
they find to be Mrs. Spelinan, alias Yallop; who
has likewife owned her conveying Letters in the
fame Manner between Mr, Harvey of Comb, and
one Moor of Brownlowe-flreet, and the faid Ferue-
gan. The Committee obferve, that Fobn Sample
acted under the Direétion of Mr. Sempi/l (commeon-
ly called L.ord Sempill) and his Son at Paris, and
that he wrote Letters to the late Duke of Ormond
and the Pretender ; but whom he tranfaéted Mat-
ters with in Enpland, your Committee do not find,
by his Examination, he would declare,

The Committee farther obferve, that this trea-
{onable Correfpondence extended itfelf into Scor-
land; that William Erfline remitted Money to
France for the Service of the Pretender’s Friends,
and had a Letter under the late Lord Marr's
Fland found upon him, when he was taken into
Coftody. That Mr. Cockran, now in Cuftody,
and others of that Country yet unknown, were
concerned 1n the fame treafonable Correfpondence,
carried on under the fame fiétitious Names and
IExpreflions that are made ufe of by feveral of
the Correfpondents in £rgland; and that the fame
Cant was likewife made ufe of, for the fame Pur-
pofes, by Perfons in Jreland. ‘That all thefe feve-
ral Negotiations and Correfpondences concurred
in one common Defign, of tirring up an Infur-
rection in thefe Kingdoms, and placing the Pre-
tender on the Throne.

‘The Committee have thought it proper to lay
before the Houfe fuch Particulars as occur to
them relating to each of thefe Negotiations, and
to begin with thofe of Layer and Plunket, as be-
ing clofely conneéted with one another, and fet
on foot earlier than it yet appears the others weres
and as being likewife what the Houfe thought fic
firft to refer to the Examination of the Commit-
tee: And by comparing the Subftance of the Pa-
pers, and Examinations of thefe two Perfons to-
gether, the Houfe will be enabled, at one View,
to form a true Judgment of the Sincerity of their
Conf:{lions. |

Before the Committee examin’d Mr. Layer,
they acquainted him that the feveral Queftions
they intended to propound to him were reduced
into Writing, and that to avoid all Miftakes, his
Anfwers fhould be fo likewife, and before they
were reported to the Houfe he fhould have the
Perufal of them, Accordingly he did review his
firlt Confeffion to the Committee, and made {eve-
ral Additions and Alterations, which will be ta-
ken Notice of in their proper Places.

Mr. Layer has own’d partly to a Committee of

Lords of the Council before his Trial, and pattly
to your Committec (as will appear by reference
had to his * feveral Examinations annex’d to this
Report) ¢ That being bred up under an Uncle
“ who was a Nonjuror in Norfolk, he early im-
¢ bib’d thofe Principles; that having a private Af-
¢ fair to tranfaét at Venice, this and a natural In-
¢ clination and Curiofity, which he had always had
¢ to {ec the Pretender, carried him on to Rome s
¢ that he fet out from Eugland on the firft of Apri)
¢ 1721, in company with Jobn Plunket, now in
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¢ Cuftody, who went fometimes by the Name of
¢ Rogers, whole Expences he bore on Account of
his being ufeful to him, as fpeaking feveral Lan-
« guages. That he believes from the Time of his
¢ firlt acquainting Plunket with his intended jour-
¢ pey (which was fome Months before their fetting
¢ out) the faid Plunket, in order to magnify his Ser-
¢ vices to the Pretender and his Adherents, might
¢ write to General Dillon, and others of them, that
¢ he was going to Rome with a Friend, and that
¢ his and his Friend’s Journey would be of great
¢ Confequence to the Pretender’s Affairs. DBut
this Particular he did not own till the Review of
his Examination, when he found the Committee
were apprifed that Notice had been {ent to Rome
of his Journeys; for he infifted at firft that his
Journey to Rome was purely accidental, and not
concerted with the Pretender or any of his Agents.

He farther owned, ¢ That in their Way to [taly,
¢ they pafled through Aitwerp, and that Pluikes
¢ there received a Letter from General Dillon,

< which he thewed to Layer, directing them whom
¢ to apply to on their Arrival at Reze, to intro-
¢ duce them to the Pretender”  And on his re-
viewing his Examination, when he found your
Commictee were in Pofieflion of that Letter, he
own’d, ¢ That Francis Kennedy was the Peilon
¢ they were directed by Dillon to apply to” A
Letter * to that Effec being found among Pluaiet’s
Papers, figned Dixzeell, and the fame being fhewn
by your Committee to Layer, he declared, ¢ That
¢ to the beft of his Memory and Belief, 1t was the
< very Letter which was thewn to him by Pluiict
¢ at Adutwwerp, and affirmed by Plunket to be from
¢ General Dillosn: That he, Layer, belteves Difion
¢ goes by the Names both of Diveell and Dighys
¢ and that by the Name of Fofeph, in the faid
¢« Letter, is to be underltood the Pretender,

¢ That he and Plunket arrived at Rome the lat-
¢ ter End of Muy 17215 and that after he had
¢ been a Day at Rome, he fent to Fraicis Kennedy,
¢ Secretary to the Pretender, to let him know he
¢ thould be glad to fee him, and to rencw Ac-
¢ quaintance with him.’

Being afked when and where he firft became
acquainted with Fraicis Keniredy, he faid, ¢ That
¢ Kennedy has a Brother, Secretary to the late
¢ Duke of Oimeind, with which Brother he had
¢ fome Acquaintance ; and he thinks he has former-
¢ ly been in Francis Kennedy's Company at Loi-
¢ doir along with the other Brother: But as to
¢ this Particular he cannot be pofiuve.”  This is
what he faid relating to Kennedy at his firft Exa-
mination ; and your Committee obferved by his
Behaviour, that he was under Difficulties how to
account for his applying to Keunedy, not having
owned at that T'ime he had any Direétions {o to do,
and being willing to have your Committee be-
lieve, that his Journey was not known of at Rome :
But after Plunker’s Examination, being uncertain
what Pluiket might have confels'd, he thought it
proper to be more open upon this Head, though
contradicing in fome Meafure his own former
Confeffion.” He farther faid, ¢ Thatupon his fend-
¢ ing to l'rancis Kennedy, as above, the faid Ken-
¢ nedy came to his Lodgings, which at the fame
¢ Time he faid he was furprized at, it being in the
¢ Face of all the Englifh Gentlemen 5 but that
< Kennedy told him, he needed not be uncafy at his

™
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¢ coming to his Lodings openly, fince he frequent-
¢ ed the Company of all the Eugltfh Gentlemen that
¢ came to Rome, without Diltinétion, That at the
¢« Arlt Vifit he defired Kennedy to introduce hiny to
¢ the Pretender, which he promifed to do. Thur
¢ Kennedy came to him again the next Nighe, and
¢ promifed to introduce him to the Pretender pri-
¢ vately in an Evening, fo that no Body ihould
< be able to prove his having been there.”

And when he reviewed his Examination, beine
afked by your Committec, whether he Lknew of
any Letter to Plzaket, on their filt coming w0
Rome 3 and being afked it in fuch a Manner ag et
him underltand chat they knew from whom 1t
came, and by whom it was writ; then, and no:
till then, he owned, ¢ That he believed aciiedy
delivered ro Plunket a Letter under the Preten-
¢ der’sown Hand, when Kewiedy and Pluidct were
alone together; for the next Mornmng, as he,

[ o

o
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Layer, was in Bed, ina Room next ;,ui_}?;ining 10
that where Pluaket lodged, Pluiket came w liis
Bedfide, and told him with feeming Satisfaction,
¢ that he had got a Letter under the King’s
¢ (meaning the Pretender’s) own Hand 5 but that
¢ Keinedy never faid one Word of this Letter to
¢ him, Layer, That Pluniet thewed him, Layer,
¢ the fatd Letter, the whole ot which he belicves
¢ to have been writ in the fame Hand 1in which
¢ the blank Receipts taken amongft his Papers at
¢ Mrs. Majeir’s are figned, which he beleves to
¢ be the Pretender’s own Hand,  That the Sub-
¢ {tance of the Letter was, that the Bearer, Fran-
¢ ¢is Keanedy, would introduce Pluuket to the Pre-
< tender, He faid he could not be pofitive whe-
¢ ther it was faid in that Letter, that Kewaedy
¢ would introduce Pluitet oniy, or whether he
¢ himfelf was mentioned likewife to be introduced
¢ by Kennedy, That Plunket told him he faw the
¢ Pretender the Night before Layer was introdu-
¢ ced to him,”

This Original Letter has fince been deliver’d
to your Committee, with the °* Depolitions relac-
ing to ity by which it appears, that Plunket de-
Jivered it with other Papers to one Mary Faghan,
about Michachnas lalt, which was near the Time
of Layer’s being taken ups it is dated Thurfday
Morn. figned Fames R, and divected to Mr. Plu-
Fet, and is in the following Words:

e

|

L

¢ This is only to diret you not to mention any
¢ Thing of Bufinels to any Body, till I have feen
« you. I have not much Leifure to-night, expect-
¢ ing Vifits; but however I fhall be glad to fee
¢ you alone, and agree with you the molt private

« Way and Manner for your Companion and me
¢ to meet., The Bearer Fr, Kennedy will bring

you very privately to my Houfe to-right abour
¢ eight a-Clock,

™

Fames R,
For My, Plunket,

Your Committee obferve from this Letter, as
well as from other Papers before them, what 2
Dearce of Truft and Confidence Pluiker was ad-
mitted to (notwichftanding he would endeavour
by his prefent Appearance to malke 1t feem ncredi-
ble) and perceive likewile by this Letter, that his
and Layer’s Journey to Rome had been reprefented
to the Pretender as an Affair of fome Importance.

*C. 70, 71,
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Layer farther faid, ¢ That Kennedy, in his fecond
¢ Vifit, appointed him to meet him and Colonel
¢ Haye in the Square before the Pretender’s Houfe
¢ at Ten the next Night s that he met them there,
¢ and that they conduéted him up a Pair of Back-
¢ Srairs to the Pretender.?

Betore the Committee proceed to give an Ac-
count of the Converfation which Mr. Layer fays
he had with the Pretender, they think it proper
to oblerve, that among Plunket’s Papers were
found two foul Draughts of Letters, which are
fworn to be Plunket’s Hand-writing, which give
fome Light to the Occafion of his and Layer’s
Tourney to KReme. The firlt is without Date or Di-
rection, but appears evidently by the Matter to
have been writ to the fame Perfon, and about the
fame Time as the fecond, which 1s dated the 224
of March, 1721. (about ten Days before his and
Laoyer’s fetang out) and direCed To Mr. Fackjon,
which Name is found in a * Cypher taken among
Pluukers Papers, and fworn likewife to be his
Hand-writing, to denote the Pretender.

[n the ® firft of thele foul Draughts are thefe
Words: ¢ There 1s one that fets out from Noifolk
“ ina few Days to let you know chey’ (that is the
Tanners, which he € explained to Layer 1o mean
the Tories) ¢ will ftand by you on Occalion: He
¢ only ftays for me, and offers to bear my Ex-
¢ pences, fothat I fhall wait on you, and have the
¢ Sausfaction to tell you by Word of Mouth what
¢ will be acceptable. He carries The Liff with
¢ him, no doubt on’t you may have many fuch
¢ pow.’

In the ¢ Letter to Fackfon of the 22d of March
are thefe Words: ¢ The Gentleman I mentioned
¢ to you formerly, is come out of the Country,
* with Inftructions to wait on you, and tender
¢ you his Service, He offers to bear my Ex-
¢ pences.’

From thefe Paflages compared with the © Letter
received by Puaket from Dillon av Antzeerp, in
which Diloi fays, ¢ | have fent Fofeph Advice of
¢ your Journey, m which I with you and your
 Companton, tho’ unknown, all Happinefs:” And
then direfts him to apply to Keniredy at Fofepl’s
Floufe for Introduction; and compared likewife
with the Pretender’s© Letter to Pluuker, in which
he direts him not to mention any thing of Bufrn:fs
to any Body, ull he had feen him alone, in order
to agree with him the moft private Way and
Manner for meeting his Companion. It appears
to your Committee to be moft evident, that Layer
did not undertake {o long and expenfive a Jour-
ney on uncertain Profpedts of private Bufine(s, or
out of mere Curiofity, but that his Journey was
concerted with the Pretender’s Friends at Home,
and notified to the Pretender and his Agents
Abroad; and that he carried over with him Ten-
ders of Service to the Pretender from Perfons in
Ligrland, as hkewife a Liff of Names, which was
of fuch Importance, and fo well underftood and
cxpected at Rome, as to be mentioned by Plusket
in one of his Letters to the Pretender, without
any other Defeription than barely that of The Liff.

The Committee thought this Obfervation the
more neceliary to be premifed, becaufe Layer did
of himfelt own to them his giving to the Preten-
der a Lift of Names, and the Pretender’s afking
him at a {ccond Interview, what he had to fay in
relation to bis Liff 3 but yet endeavoured to ex-
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plain that Affair in fuch a Manner, asyour Com-
mittee apprehend to be no Ways confiftent with
Plunket’s foul Draughts abovementioned ; nor
with the Expeltations that feem to have been raif-
ed in the Pretender and his Agents, from Eayer’s
and Plunket’s Journey. |

Layer told your Committee, ¢ That on his be-
¢ ing introduced to the Pretender by Kenyedy and
¢ Haye, as abovementioned, the Pretender afked
¢ him the Occafion of his coming; and whether
< lie had any Credentials from People in Zuglond ?
¢ that he anfwered, Nothing but Curiofity and a
¢ Deflire of paying my Duty to your Majefty has
¢ brought me hither, That the Pretender afked
¢ him, what Lords he was acquainted with ? To
¢ which he anfwered, None but fuch as he was
¢ concerned with in the Way of his Profefiion.
¢ That the Pretender again exprefled himfelf fur-
¢« prized at his having no Credentials nor Recom-
¢« mendations from any Perfon in England 5 and
¢ faid, This Journey muft have been very expen-
¢ five to you, I belicve it cannot coft you lefs
To which he an-
¢ fwered, That a private Aftair, which brought
¢ him to Penice, would have defrayed the Expence,
¢ if it had fucceeded ; but that betng difappointed
¢ in that, his Inclination drew him on to Rome, to
¢ pay his Daty to the Pretender, which he had
¢ Jong had 1n his Thought, fo ook this Oppor-
< tunity of doing it. That one Pluiket, who was
« now i Rome with him, had often told him that
¢ e need not fear being introduced, or to that Lf-
¢ fe&t, That the Pretender faid, He beheved that
¢ Plunket was a very honeft Man, and as propera
¢ Perfon as Layer could have had for a Com-
¢ panion.

The Committee obferve, that what is here faid
concerning the Pretender’s good Opinion of Plux-
Fet, and Plunker’shaving given Aflurances to Layer
of his being introduced, was not mentioned by
Layer, til] after Pluitket had been examined.

Layer farther faid, that the Pretender again re-
peated his Surprize at his having no Recomnen-
dation from any Perfon in England; but faid, I
am informed by Francis Kennedy, who knows you,
that you have a good Character, and for that Rea-
fon you are welcome without any Credentials,
Yet your Committee obferve, that Dr. Blackerby
Fuirfax (an intimate Acquaintance of Layer’s) has
¢ depofed upon Oath, ¢ That Layer, fince his Re-
¢ rurn from Rome, told him, that while he was in
¢ private Audience with the Pretender, a Scolch
¢ Colonel broke in upon them, upon which the
¢ Pretender took him into another Room ; and
¢ that he, Layer, did there deliver his Credentials
¢ to the Pretender,’

Layer told the Committee, ¢ That the Preten-
¢ der, after the Difcourfc abovementioned, afked
¢ him what County he was of, and what Gentle-
¢ men he knew: That he anfwer’d he was of Nor-
¢ folk, and knew all the Tory Gentlemen of that
¢ County. That the Pretender afked him 1f he
¢ could recotleét their Names, and put them
‘ down in Writing : To which he anfwerd, He
¢ could ealily do that, having brought with him
¢ Memorandums of their Names. “I'bat accord-
< ingly he drew up a fair Lift of the Tory Gen-
“ tlemen of Norfolk, and gave the {aid Lift to the

¢ Pretender at a fecond Interview, thinking it
¢ would be agrecable to him., That the Pretender
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¢« then afked him, whether he would fee the
¢ Queen (neaning his Spoufe) and promifed the
¢ fhould admit him to kifs her Hand.

¢ That about three Weeks or a Month after,
« Francis Kennedy and Colonel Haye appointed
¢ him to meet them at the fame Place and Time
¢ as before, and introduced him to the Pretender
« and his Spoufe, That the Pretender then called
¢ him to him, and afked him, Whether he had
< any thing to fay in Relation to his Lift? that he
¢ anfwer’d, He forgot fomething which he had to
¢ communicate to his Majefty; that the Preten-
¢ der faid, His Wife would go out of the Room
« prefently, and foon after {poke to her in Mtalian,
¢« to withdraw, as he believes. That the Preten-
¢ der then afked hinm, What he had to fay? to
< which he replied, I have nothing {o material to
¢ offer as ought to have procured me this grear
< Honour and Indulgence; but if there be any
¢ Service on Farth I can do, I am moft ready,
¢« That the Pretender faid, Whatcan you do? have
¢ you any Acquaintance? To which he replied,
< that all the Perfons mentioned in his Laft were
¢ entirely devoted to the Pretender’s Interelt; and
¢ all the Gentlemen in England the fame, except
¢ thofe in Places of Profit and Truft, and thatrall
< Parties were united in his Interefl.  That the
¢ Pretender then afked him, What the Gentlemen
¢ were whofe Names were on his Lift ? to which
¢ lie anfwer’d, They wereall Tories, and that Lic
¢ had not put down any of the Reman Catholicks
< of Norfolk, of whom there were feveral, Men
¢« of Eftates. That the Pretender fatd, he belie-
¢ ved the People of Ingland were generally well
¢ inclined to his Caufe, and pretty well convinced
< of their Error 3 and then fpoke of the Difcon-
¢ tents occalion’d by the Soush-Sea Scheme.” -

The Commitice obferve that n the Cypher
which Layer received from Sir /Filliam Ellis, the
Namesof (everal Norfolk Gentlemen are inferted s
who, they think it probable, madea Parg of the
Litt delivered by Layer to the Pretender s but at
the {fame Time they think it a Jultice due to thofe
Gentlemen, to obferve, that Layer has owned to
the Committee, that, In order to magnify the
Number of the Pretender’s Friends, he did, in
ftveral of the Lafts found among his Papers, infert
the Names of Perfons, as well aficéted to the
Vretender’s Service, without having the lealt Au-
thority from them for fo doing : And his falfe Af-
fertion to the Pretender, that all the Gendemen in
England, except thofe in Places of Profit and
Truft, wereentirely devoted to his Intereft; fhews,
that he made no Diftinction between the Innocent
and the Guiley.

IIe next acquainted the Committee, ¢ That
¢ after the Dilcourfe before-mentioned with the
¢ Pretender 1n relation to the Lift, the Pretender
¢ commended his Zeal, and told him, he nught
¢ depend onany Service he could do him.  That
¢ he, Layer, then defired fome Token, by which
¢ he might obtain Credit among the Pretender’s
¢ Friends of the Nobility in Eugland, and ob-
¢ tained that of the Pretender and his Spouie’s
¢ anfwering for his Child 3’ which the Commuttee
avoid repeating, the Account he gave them a.
greeing with that printed in his Trial.  He fud,
¢ That upon his defiring a Letter to the Dutchefs
¢ of Ormond, for her reprefenting the Pretender’s
¢ Spoufle, Colonel flaye told him, no Letter
¢ could be fent by him, but that Care would be
¢ taken the Dutchefs fhould ftand. That he like-
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wife gave him a Meflage to the Dutchefs, 1o
this Effect, that the Duke of Ormond <was 1,
and goie to Madrid, by which, he told him, fhe
would underftand the Bulinefs he came abour,

¢ That he returned to Englaid about the Fnd
of Auguft or Beginning of September 1721, and
waited on the Dutchefs with his Requell, add-
ing, that he hoped fhe was not aliogether 4
Stranger to that Aftair; to which flie returned
him no particular Anfwer, but promifed to ttaid
Godmother, as he defir’d.

¢ That he then made Apphication to Lord O
rery to ffand with her, by Thompfun, whom he
took to be her Chaplain, and by Swertfers.s,
Lord Orrery’s Secretary, who underflcod thag
Lord Orrery was defired to reprefent the Pre.
tender, That the faid Lord fent to the Dutchefs
to know whether fhe ftood, who anfwered that
fhe did 5 yet Lord Orrery refufed s Lur upon
farther Acquaintance, and hearing that Lord
North and Grey had confented to ftand, he fent
for Layers and made Excules to him for his
Refufal.  That he made ufe of this Credential
to Lord Orrery, to induce him to converfe free-
ly with him i relation to the Pretender’s AL
fairs, having heard that che faid Lord was in the
Pretender’s Interett,

¢ That upon his being refufed by Lord Oriery,
he made his Application to Lord Neith anid
Girey, as mention’d in his Trial, who flood ;
knowing, as he believes, that he ftood for the
Pretender, That this Tranfaction was the Begin-
ning of his Intimacy with Lord North and Grey,
* That the firft Converfation he had wich L.ord
North, relating to the Pretender’s Affairs, was
foon after the Chriflening 5 that he then afked
Lord Ngrth, whether nothing could be under-
taken in the Pretender’s Favour, his Lordfhip
being a military Man,  That his Lordfhip re-
plied, he believed the Pretender had Friends
enow, 1f they did but undeiftand one another;
that the Army in general, and mefl of the
Flalf-pay Officers were well inclined to the Pre-
tender,

¢ That in July laft he, Layer, going down to
Norfork on the Circute, called on Lord North at
Lpring, and again at his Return 5 that he then
afked the faid Lord again, whether nothing
could be done in Favour of the Pretender ?
Thet Lord North fud, Flow can any Thing be
done, while fo grear & Body of Forccs is en-
camped under the very Walls of London, be-
fides the Incampments in other Parts of the
Kingdom? That Layer told him, he found
moft of the Gentlemen in Nerfolk that were
Toriesbefore, Jacobitesnow; that Lord Nerib
and Grey faid, it was the fame in other Coun-
ties, but that nothing could be done ull the
Camp fhould break up. That upon Layer's
prefling him to know whether any Scheme was
formed, Lord Nerth faid, What does your
Friend Lord Orrery think of Things? that he
anfwered, Lord Orrery was of. Opinion, no-
thing could be done without a Foreign Force s
that Lord North and Grey reply’d, I cannotbe
of his Opinion, I believe the People of England
may do it of themfelves,

¢ That Layer vifiting him during the Vacation,
and ftaying two or three Days at his Houfe,
continued to prefs him about forming a Scheme s
that Lord North reply’d, We Soldiers do not
trouble ourfclves much about Schemes: Be oz
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¢ gmcn‘ fomething will be done’, And at his * Ex-
amination before the Lords, he owned, ¢ Lord
¢ North and Grey faid, If therc be a Rlﬁn g, you
¢ fhall not want Mcn, or Money, or Arms.

Layer farther gave your Committecan Account
of l‘llS becoming 1cqu11nted with Lynch, and of his
carrying him to > Lord North and Grey, upon Lynch’s
relling him that he had fomething to propole to
that Lord that might be of great Service to the
Pretender’s Caule, But in giving an Account of
what paffed between Lynch and him at the Gieen-
man, your Committee obferved, that Layer took
oreat Lains to fhew, that he did not communicate
any Papers to Lynch till after Dinner, and that he
then only fhewed him Memorandums, tran{cribed
out of the Prince of Orange’s Declaration, tho’
Lyneh has ® depofed upon Oath, that mention was

made in that Paper of Lord Cadogan’s being
feized, and remaining in the Cuftody of the Con-
{pirators.

He owned to your Committee his having car-
ried Lynch to Lord Cadogan’s, but faid, " He
« went thither orly in relation to the Purchafe of
« an Eftate ; that while they were waiting there in
¢ 2 Room next the Garden, Lynch viewed the
¢« Garden and Houfe, and faid, I can eafily feize
¢ you this General: but he deny’d their having
¢ had any previous Difcourfe to this Purpofe, and
« faid the Propofal arofe from Lyuch, and that
¢ he, Layer, wasmad enough to make 1t part of
¢ his Scheme,’

He faid, ¢ That when Lysch and he came to
¢« Lord Northaid Grey’s, his Lordfhip asked him
« who Lyireh was; that he faid, he was an honelt
¢ Gentleman, recommended by a particular
¢ Friend, 'That his Lordfhip faid, I wonder you
¢ would bring him, you know I am not eaiy nor
¢ free before Strangers, That however, Lord
« Noirth and Grey entertained Lyuch civilly, and
¢ after Supper tnquired of him, whether he was
¢ in the Army, to which Lyiuch anfwered, that
< he was bred up to Merchandize, but had been
< with the Pretender n Scotland, and had the
« Command of a Ship under the King of Spaii
¢« 1n the Defcent on Scotlaind, and cnlarn'{,d much
¢ on his Loyalty and Zeal ftor the Pretender ; bu
¢ that Lord Ne#th waved the Difcourfe.

¢ That not long after, Lynch came down again
¢ to Lord North aind Grey’s to Lpping, while
¢ Layer wasthere a fhooting, and was cvilly re-
¢ ceiv’d by his Lordfhip s and that after he was
¢ gone, Layer making Apologies for Lynch’s in-
¢ truding, Lord North and Grey faid, Lyu‘b Wil
¢ a good honelt Fellow, and had entertain’d chem
¢ with feveral merry Stores.”

The Committee obferved, That Leyerin rela-
ting what paffed while Lynech wasat Lord North’s,
took fo much pains to thew thar Lord North and
Grey could have no private Difcourfe with Lyuch,
that he left no room for the faid Lord North’s ha-
ving hadany private Difcourfe with him, Layer;
which yet Is mconfiftent with his ¢ Ixamination
taken before the Lords, as well as with his Con-
feffion to your Committee ; in another Part of
which he owns, that while Lyich was at Lord
North’s, he, Layer, fhewed Lord Nprth fome
part of his Schere o: Heads relating to a De-
claration, as he was walking with him in the
Garden, and that they had fome Difcourfe upon
iL.
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They obferve likewife, That what he ovwned to
the Cnmmlttec tn relation to his introducing I_};’t‘f.?
to Lord Nerth and Grey, falls very fliort of what
he confelted to the Lords of the Council on the
ﬁme Sub]e& previoufly to his Trial,  For he

* then faid, ¢ That Zyuch having told him he
¢ would feize Lord Cadsgair, he carried Lynch to
¢« Lord North and Grey’s, and recommended hint
¢ as a proper Perfon for fuch an Atteinpr. Thac
¢ he had beforc-hand propaled to Lord Nerth
« and Grey the carrying Lyach to hini, tha his
¢ Lordfhip made a Difficulty of feeing him, but
¢ that he, Layer, infifted on Lyuch’s being an
¢ honeft Man, fic to be t.mplnyed i an Infurrec-
¢ tion for the Pretender, faying Lynch would do
¢ any thing his Lordthip would have him, if
¢ there thould be a Rifing: That he was fit to be
¢ fent with a Party to 1:.12& any particular Perfon,
¢ and that Lynch was impatient to fee his Lord-
¢ thip, Layer having told him, that his Lordfhip
¢ was at the Head of thole Defigns.?

Layer farther acquainted your Committee,
¢ That during his Stay at Lord Nowth and Grey’s
¢ at Lpping, 10 the Vacation, he again prcﬂe.d his
¢ Lordfhip to bring Matters to fome Lffue i fa:
¢ vour of the Pretender, faying, 1t fomething be
¢ not done fpeedily, we fhall all be taken up;
¢ that his Lordfhip reply’d, Is not the Camyp.
¢ there flill? if you can find fome Lxpeaient it
¢« would be wcll, 1t 1s more than I can do, That
¢ Layer faid 1¢ was his Opinion fomething might
¢ be done even during the Encampment; and in
¢ order to difcover whether Lord North aid Grey
¢ and Lord Osrery had any Scheme of their own,
¢ he drew up a Scheme himfelf, and having fo
done, lodged 1t wich Mrs. Mafon, the Day be-
fore he was taken up. "That hec ntended to
have communicated this Scheme to Lord North
ard Greyand Lord Orrery s that he had fome
Difcourfe with George [71lfon, Dr. Aurphey anp
¢ oruErs on the Subjedt of 1t, belore it was
¢ drawn up.’ Bung asked, who thofe ornzrs
were, he fud, ¢ He could recolleét no one elic
¢« but one who called himfelt Serjeant 7Fhire,
¢ whom he faw in Company with Dr. Murphey
¢ a Tavern, and inquired of him how far fome
¢ Parts of his Scheme were practicable.”

Being asked whether he had thewn this Scheme
to any Body? he faid, ¢ He did fhew the Headsot

it to Lord North mzd Grev, as he was walking
¢ with him in the Garden, and that his Lordﬂnp
¢ {aid, all was impracticable during the Lncamp-
¢ ment: but that he never thewed hisScheme to
¢ any Body, after it wasdrawn up iz the form in
o qubich it was lift with Ars. Mafon”  Which Jaft
part of his Anfwer, the Committee obferve may
be evalive; fince by his own Account, as foon as
he had drawn it up i that Form, he lodged 1t
with Mrs. Aafern, and the Duay after way mlim
into Cuftody.

The Committee farther take Notice, That the
Accounts he gave when he was queftioned before
the Lords, whether he had fhewn this Scheme to
any Bod}, are tnconfiftent and can..:ﬂd:cm:y

For in fome Parts of that € Examination, he
fays, ¢ Lord Nosth and Gizy would not hear of
any thing till the Camp was broke up; That
¢ the faid Lord would not fee his Schemes; That
the faid Lord faid, he might keep his Heads
and his Schemes to him{clf, for there was no-
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¢ thing to be done; That the faid Lord faid
¢ there was Time enough for forming 2 Scheme;;
and yec in another Parr of the fame Examinatton,
he fays, ¢ Lord North did not diflike a Scheme in
¢ oeneral, but difapproved his Scheme.’

Your Committee beg leave to miake the fol-
Jowing Obfervations on thefe Paffages, with a
Defign to fhew the Infincerity and Inconliftency
of Layer’s Confellions, and without prefuming to
draw from them any other Conclufions.

Firft, That if what Layer faid, was true, Lord
Neorth muft have perufed and examined Layer’s
Scheme, fince a Man that did not diflike a Scheme
in general, could not be fuid to difapprove any
particular Scheme, unlefs he had firflt confidered
and examined it.

The Committee obferve farther, that the Scheme

itlelf does not appear drawn up by a Man of
Layer’s Profeflion, aflifted only, as he would 1n-
finuate, by Mwirphey a Doctor of Phyfick, #ilfus
a Surgcon, and //Lite a Serjeant; and they can-
not but think it very extraordinary, that his
Scheme drawn up in Auguft or September, thould
have fo great an Affinity with the * Paper of
Refolutions, for the digging up the drms, &ec.
mentioned above, which was drawn up the April
betore 3 and yetr that Layer fhould have had no
fight of that Paper, nor have recetved any In-
{truttions or Afliftance from any Perfons, who
were privy to thole Refolutions which he has de-
clared to the Commuttee he had not. And the
Committee are farther confirmed, that the Scheme
was not drawn up Dby himfelf, from a Particula-
rity contained 1n a ° Depofition of Dr. Blackerby
Fairfax, who has {worn, that being for four or
five Years pift employed in reading Civil Law
and [reaeh o the Ll Layer, he recolleéts that
Layer once afled Lim the meantng of the French
Motte, fince prefzod o his Scheme in thefe
Words, A djent o la Lvice L faut cmployer I
Rirje s and thav upon [ irfax’s explaining 1t to
him, L :yer faid, 1t hat en explined to him in
the fame manier by others,  Nether does the
Scheme appear drawn upata Venture, or merely
with a View of engaving the Pretender’s Friends
m the Exccution of this, or fome other Scheme of
their own, as Lover would infinuate, but feveral
affiges in i, compared with his other Papers,
make it probable, that the Officers, Serjeants,
Soldicrs and Arms mentioned in the Sclieme, were
firfl enoaged and prepared, and then the faid
Scheme drawn up, for employing inthe beft man-
ner poflible fucha Force ashad been fo prepared.

Thisappears by comparing thefe Words in the
third Paragraph ot his © Scheme (¢ And as there
¢ is cicht Serjeants, wiz Three of the firlt Re-
¢ aiment of Foot-Guards, Three of the fecond,
¢ and Two of the third, all ready ac an Hour’s
¢ warning toobey Ordersy” with two of his Papers
taken with his Scheme atlVirs, Mafen's, vis, * That
which contains a Lifl of Thirteen Serjeants of the
Guards, and another © Paper of Layer’s FHand-
writing, which contains Itleven of thefe Thirteen
Serjeants Names, and ight of thofe Eleven Ser-
jeants have Marks fer againft their Names: fo
that it may be concluded from thence, that Layer
had been able to engape but cight of the faid
‘Uhirtcen Serjeants, and cherefore in his Scheme
he mentions no more than Eight Serjeants,

The Truth of this Obfervation farther appears,

194. Proceedings againft Bifbop Atterbury,
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11t of OFober, with the fourth Paragraph of hjg
Scheme; for in that Examination he fays thag
George Wilfon had aflured him, that two hundred
of the Soilders in the Camp had been fpoken tg
and were ready : and therefore Layer, in the fiid
Fourth Paragraph of his Scheme, mentions only
two hundred Soilders to be ready, and gives every
onc of his cight Serjeants the Command of Five
and Twenty of the faid Two Hundred Men.
From whence 1t may be concluded, that the Offi-
cer that was to feize the Tower, and the Arms for
executing the Scheme, were alfo ina Readinefs,

It 15 farcher remarkable, that Layer intended,
as he owned to your Committee, to communicate
this Scheme in its prefent Lorm, to Lord Aprb
aid Giey and Lord Orrery s and yet feveral prin.
cipal Parts of it are not explained as things new,
but referred to as Matters already known and up-
derftood by the perfons that were to fee ir, which
could only be by previous Conlultstions on that
Subjeét s for Inftance,

In the Firft Paragraphi it is faid, ¢ Let the Ge-
“ neral and only one Officerof iigte in the Camp agree
“ upon a Day tor Executton 3’ which muft haveap-
peared a molt abfurd Begtnning toany Body that
had not had fome previous Difcourfe or Notice,
of feveral Officers in the Camp engaged in the
Defign, And the fame Obfervation will hold, vith
refpect to the Paragraphs where Arms are men-
tioned as provided 5 which fhews, at leaft, thar
Layer believed thofe Perfons that were to fee his
Scheme, had heard of Arms that were provided.

In the Third Paragraph, Geerge IVilion 15 na-
med in {uch 2 manner, as makes it probzble he
was already known to thofe who were to have
Sizhtof this Scheme; and the Committee oblerve
that Layer ¢ confefled to the Lowds thar he had
told Lord North and Grey, that i%i was 2
Fellow who had ferved in the Army, had a genc-
ral Acquaintance, and was fit to be employed if
his Lordthip would make ufe of himy 1o which
the faid Lord rephied, that when Lie had Oceafion
he would employ him.,

In the Tirteenth Paragraph of the Scheme it
is fard, ¢ Let the Generil order feur of the Iiaif-
pay Captaius, wicthout any farther Defeription
which thews that LZayer thousht thofe o whom
his Scheme was rohecommunicared, ncwalready
of Falf-pay Ofiicers that weie engaged, agree-
ably to what Lord Nesth and Go 3 b 1Y joid
him, that molt of the Hadt-pay Oifticers were wel]
inclined.

In the Nincteenth Paragraph, heallors part of
the Execution of the Defion to tle Dull’s Burre-
men, witheur any otner Addition: which 15 a
manner of Lxprefiion no one would have ufed in
a Paper to be thewn o Perfons, who were entire
Strangers to the Aftair.

Laver being in the Courfe of his Examination
defired by the Committee, to exphin by what
Services or Merit on his Pare, the Shynefs, which,
he would have it believed, the Prewender exprefs
fed towards him at his fuft coming to Reue, and
the little Acquaintance he then had with Perfons
of Diftinction at home n the Pretender’s Intereft,
came foon afier to be changed into fo great a
degree of Confidence both at Rewme and here, that
he fhould be trufted with negotiating Rlank
Recepts, under che Pretender’s own Hand, for
unlimited Sums; he told the Commitiee, that

by comparing Layei’s fud " Examination of the during his Stay at Reie, he contracted a Friend-
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fhip with Sir William Ellis, who i1s a Servant
of the Pretender’s, and that at his leaving Romre
he fectled a Correfpondence by Cypher with
the faid Ellis, and acquainted him from tme
to time how the Pretender’'s Aflairs went on
here: but the Commirttee obferve, that this ge-
neral Anfwer does by no means account for the
Terms of Thankfulnefsand Refpeé, with which
2 Eflis writes to him from the Pretender, nor
lay a fufficient Foundation for his being admitted
to fo particular a Truft. He faid that in the
Courfe of his Correfpondence, he writ to £/is
that he had got acquainted with Burfsid and
Symms (by the firlt of which Names he meant
Lord Orrery, and by the latter Lord North and
Grey) and that 1f he had but Blank Receipts,
under the King’s (meaning the Pretender’s) own
Hand, he believed he could raife a confliderable
Sum of Money upon them, and put the Preten-
der’s Affairsin a great Forwardnefs, byengaging
a confiderable Part of the King’s Army in the
Pretender’s Intereft, with the Money fo raifed.
That he did not name any particular Sum to
Eflis, but hoped himfelf to have raifed twenty
Thoufand Pounds by this Method., He faid he
received from Eflis only the ten Receipts taken
among his Papers at Mrs, Mafon’s, that he re-
cetved them at different times by the Poft, and
that the firft of them came to his Hands the Jat-
ter End of July lalt. He faid farther, he intended
to have tried to put off thefe Receipts among the
Norfolk Gentlemen named in the Lift which he
pave to the Pretender, but that he never had
fpoke to any of them on this Subjeét, nor re-
ceived any Affurance from them.

Being afked by the Committee whether he
had fhewn thefe Receipts to any other Per-
fons, or had any Difcourfe with any Body a-
bout raifing Money this way? he faid, he be-
fleved  he had mentioned to Lord Newth and
Grey and Lord Orrery, his having fuch Receipts
n his Poffeflion ; and that the faid Lords told him,
they believed they would be of lictle Ufe, for that
People would fcarce venture to keep fuch Receipts
by them, or to have them in their Cuftody, or
Words to that Efiedt.

The Committee take Notice, That when he was
examined before the Lords, lie prevaricated in
relation to the Cypher reccived from Sir William
£llis, which he faid was an old Cypher, in ufe
before the Preflor Rebellion.  But being fhewn
the Names of feveral Perfons in that ® Cypher,
with the addition of their Employments, which
they did not enjoy at the time of that Rebel-
hon, nor fome of them till very lately, he faid
that he applied to Plunke! for fuch Names as were
not in the old Cypher; tho’ the Committee ob-
ferve, that the whole Cypher is in the fame Hand
with the Letters he owned he received {rom
£1lis, and that the Perfons defigned by late Em-
ployments are notadded or interlined, but placed
in therr Alphabetical Order in the Body of the
Cypher. Being asked by the Committee, whe-
ther he had feen or knew of any other Cyphers,
he anfwered in the Negative; yet they obferve
that in the © Levter from Sir 27illiam Ellis dated
the 1t of OFober, he defired to make ufe of
a Pattern of Lace of Mrs, Kinders, (which Name
he owned to the Lords to mean Mrs. Hugbes,
Nurfe to the Pretender’s Child) Siv #illiam Ellis
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having loft or miflaid his own, Now the Word
Pattern in £/15°s Cypher denotes Cut- Paper, which
fhews that Layer was privy to another Cypher of
that Kind, in ufe among the Pretender’s Agents.

He likewife dented his knowing any fictitious
Names made ufe of by the Pretender or his Agents
for carrying on their Correfpondences, except
thofe mentioned m his Examinations before the
Lords; yet afterwards, upon being asked by the
Committee, who was meant by 7ofezh in Dillon’s
¢ Letter to Pluntet, he confefied chat he knew
Joferh was one of the Names made ufe of to
denote the Pretender. |

The Committee farcther obferve, that the Ac-
counts he has given, do by no means clear up
{everal Paflages in Sir #7:liam Ellis*s Leters, par-
ticularly one in the ® Letter of the goth of Fan.,
in which £//is fays, ¢ That Layer having read over
¢ feveral umes the Paper he fhewed him, and
¢ having a good Memory, /s does not think it
¢ neceffary to fend a Copy of 1.’

Layer being queftioned by the Committee about
the Lifts of Names taken at Mrs, Miafon’s, fays
he employed Geoige IVilfen and Dr. Murphey to
enquire into the Charaéters of Officers and Sol-
diers, and that he received moft of the Litts from
Wilfou, who told him, he believed if the late Duke:
of Ormond were to come over, and Lord Cadggans
were fhot, the Soldiers mentioned in thofe Lils,
would readily joyn Ormard in favour of the
Pretender., .

That 7776m made moft of the Marks againit
the Names, to explain what Men might or might
not be confided iny from which Circumflance
your Committee obferve, that there were Perfons
in thofe Lifts whom the Pretender’s Friends could
not confide i, IHHe told the Committee, that
Roath or Roeach in the ¥ Lift N° 1z, againit
whofe Name 1s fet 1000, 15 one whom he does
not know; but that Adurpley told him the faid
Roatly or Roach, was a Perfon of grear Interelt in
Staflordflire, and able to raife a thoufand Men.
That the & Paper N° 11, at the Bottom cf
which is writ Laguive of Nowth and Grey, was a
Memorandum for enquiting of the faid Lord whe-
ther he knew Cornet Reddisie in the Service a-
broad.

Being thewn the two Lifts endorfed B Riisuett’s
Lift, and ' Lord Fairmenth’s Lift, he fays D
quett 15 an eminent Tobaconift in the Cizy s that
the faid two Lalts enly contain Names of a Jury
for a Relation’s Crule, but that he intended o
fhew thofe two Lifls to Lord Oriery and Lord
North and Grey, as containing an account of Men
to be raifed fer the Pretender’s Service, m order
to magnify to thefe Lords the Number of the
Pretender’s Friends,

Being afked by the Committee what was the
Occalion of his taking away tis Papers from Mrs,
Mafor’s, when he went down to Lo ping, and
what Papers he ar that ume ook out? he faid,
he only took out a Paper cortaining a Tranleripe
of the Prince of Orange’s Declaration, and fome
other AMemorandum Papers.  He lfarther aaded,
that he was to have vone to Lord Noitd and
Grey's to Dinner the Day that he was taken up,
and chat he fent his Servant to the fud Lord’s,
to ler him know he was arrefted for High-Trea-
fon, that his Lordfhip might not be furprifed at
his not coming, and likewife that his Lordfhip
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